
LA VISTA CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
April 4, 2023 

6:00 p.m. 
Harold “Andy” Anderson Council Chamber 

La Vista City Hall 
8116 Park View Blvd 

• Call to Order

• Pledge of Allegiance

• Announcement of Location of Posted Open Meetings Act

• Swear In Police Officers – Cameron TenEyck and Seth Howard

• Proclamation – Appreciation of Service – Fire Chief Bill Bowes

All matters listed under item A, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the city council and will be enacted by one
motion in the form listed below.  There will be no separate discussion of these items.  If discussion is desired, that item will be
removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.

A. CONSENT AGENDA
1. Approval of the Agenda as Presented

2. Approval of the Minutes of the March 21, 2023 City Council Meeting

3. Request for Payment – Mackie Construction – Construction Services – Central Park

Access Road – Park View Blvd – $106,471.09

4. Request for Payment – Benesch – Professional Services – Terry Dr, Lillian Ave & S. 78th

St Pavement Rehabilitation – $5,662.00

5. Request for Payment – Thompson, Dreessen & Dorner, Inc. – Professional Services – 120th

and Giles Access Improvements – Drainage – $1,720.00

6. Request for Payment – RDG Planning & Design – Professional Services – Placemaking

Phase 1 – $3,660.00

7. Request for Payment – DLR Group – Professional Services – La Vista City Centre Parking

Structure 2 – $45,316.03

8. Request for Payment – DLR Group – Professional Services – La Vista City Centre Parking

Structure 2 – $5,972.33

9. Request for Payment – Sampson Construction – Construction Services – Offstreet

Parking District No. 2, Structure No. 2 – $345,925.00

10. Resolution – Award of Contract – Eastern Nebraska Office on Aging

11. Approval of Claims

• Reports from City Administrator and Department Heads

B. Resolution – Audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year Ending 
September 30, 2022

C. Resolution – Award Contract – Concession Stand Operations

D. Resolution – Authorize Amendment No. 1 – Professional Services Agreement –Terry 
Dr, Lillian Ave and 78th Street Pavement Rehabilitation

E. Resolution – Approve Amendment No. 3 – Professional Services Agreement – East 
La Vista Sewer and Pavement Rehabilitation Project

F. Resolution – Approve Amendment No. 10 – Professional Services Agreement –
Parking Structure No. 2

G. Resolution – Authorize Consultant Selection – Master Planning & Conceptual Design 
Services

H. Resolution – Authorize Purchase – Police Radio Equipment Upgrades

I. Resolution – Authorize Purchase – Public Works Vehicles

• Comments from the Floor

• Comments from Mayor and Council

• Adjournment

The public is welcome and encouraged to attend all meetings.  If special accommodations are required, please contact the City Clerk prior to 
the meeting at 402-331-4343.  A copy of the Open Meeting Act is posted in the Council Chamber and available in the public copies of the Council 
packet.  Citizens may address the Mayor and Council under "Comments from the Floor."  Comments should be limited to three minutes.  We 
ask for your cooperation in order to provide for an organized meeting. 



PROCLAMATION 
Appreciation of Service 

 Fire Chief Bill Bowes 

WHEREAS: After approximately 21 years as a firefighter, Bill Bowes was 
appointed as the Fire Chief of the Papillion Fire Department in 
March 2006; and 

WHEREAS: In 2014, Fire Chief Bowes led the expansion of the fire department 
into La Vista, which brought full time fire services to the 
community; and 

WHEREAS: During his 17-year tenure as Fire Chief, the Papillion Fire 
Department tripled in size and grew from one fire station to four; 
and  

WHEREAS: Through his leadership, the safety of La Vista residents has 
increased in many ways including lower response times to fires and 
emergencies; and 

WHEREAS: Due to his steadfast commitment to community, Chief Bowes’ 
contributions leave a long-lasting legacy to the City of La Vista. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
La Vista Nebraska, thankfully and gratefully extend our most 
sincere appreciation and best wishes to Fire Chief Bill Bowes as he 
enters retirement. Thank you for your outstanding service to the 
City of La Vista.   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand and caused the official Seal of the City 
of La Vista to be affixed this 4th day of April, 2023. 

_________________________________ 
Douglas Kindig, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
Pamela A. Buethe, MMC 
City Clerk  
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PAYMENT RECOMMENDATION NO. 4 ON CONTRACT FOR 
CENTRAL PARK ACCESS ROAD - PARK VIEW 

Owner: City of La Vista Contractor: Mackie Construction 
8116 Park View Blvd 14565 Portal Circle, Suite 117 
La Vista, NE 68128 La Vista, NE 68138 

CONTRACT AMOUNT $1,090,474.43 
REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT $1,038,166.03 

AMOUNT OF PREVIOUS PAYMENT RECOMMENDATION(S) $ 709,476.92 

Item Description Approx. Unit Price Amount 
Quantit 

1 Mobilization 1.00 L.S. $ 78,769.30 I L.S. $ 78,769.30 
2 Install, Maintain and Remove 200.00 L.F. $ 4.12 I L.F. $ 824.00 

Orange Safety Fence 
3 Remove Wooden Picnic 1.00 L.S. $ 5,729.06 I L.S. $ 5,729.06 

Structure, Floor Slab and 
Footings 

4 Clearing and Grubbing 0.86 L.S. $ 9,208.05 I L.S. $ 7,918.92 

5 Stockpile and Redistribute 1250.00 C.Y. $ 9.39 I C.Y. $ 11,737.50 
Topsoil (760 CY Moved 
Twice), Established Quantity 

6 Common Earthwork, In Place, 2100.00 C.Y. $ 37.54 I C.Y. $ 78,834.00 
Established Quantity 

7 Remove and Dispose Existing 1.00 L.S. $ 22,380.84 I L.S. $ 22,380.84 
Bridge Headwalls 

8 Remove and Dispose of 1.00 L.S. $ 6,057.38 I L.S. $ 6,057.38 
Existing Wooden Bridge 

9 Remove and Salvage Existing 1.00 L.S. $ 5,865.00 I L.S. $ 5,865.00 
Monument, Flag Pole, Pavers 
and Blocks 

10 Remove and Dispose ACC 395.00 S.Y. $ 14.08 I S.Y. $ 5,561.60 
Pavement 

11 Remove and Dispose PCC 500.00 S.Y. $ 16.43 I S.Y. $ 8,215.00 
Pavement 

12 Remove and Dispose PCC 325.00 S.Y. $ 10.56 I S.Y. $ 3,432.00 
Sidewalk 

13 Remove and Dispose of 4 Ft 225.00 L.F. $ 7.04 I L.F. $ 1,584.00 
Tall Chain Link Fence 

14 Remove and Dispose Crushed 270.00 S.Y. $ 8.22 I S.Y. $ 2,219.40 
Rock Surfacing 

15 Remove and Replace 8" PCC 145.00 S.Y. $ 88.81 I S.Y. $ 12,877.45 
Pavement (Panel Repair) 

16 Remove and Recompact 200.00 C.Y. $ 99.71 I C.Y. $ 19,942.00 
Sewer Trench Backfill 
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17 Subgrade Recompaction, 1100.00 C.Y. $ 7.63 I C.Y. $ 8,393.00 
Established Quantity 

18 Construct 18" RCP Storm 200.00 L.F. $ 111.44 I L.F. $ 22,288.00 
Sewer w/Bedding, In Place 

19 Construct 24" RCP Storm 175.00 L.F. $ 145.46 I L.F. $ 25,455.50 
Sewer w/Bedding, In Place 

20 Construct 18" Storm Sewer 1.00 EA. $ 3,419.30 I EA. $ 3,419.30 
Tap in Box Culvert 

21 Construct 24" Storm Sewer 1.00 EA. $ 4,039.82 I EA. $ 4,039.82 
Tap in Box Culvert 

22 Construct Type Ill Curb Inlet, 4.00 EA. $ 7,218.65 I EA. $ 28,874.60 
In Place 

23 Construct 30" Nyloplast Drain 1.00 EA. $ 7,564.68 I EA. $ 7,564.68 
Basin, Heavy Duty w/30" 
Dome Grate and 18" RCP 
Connector 

24 Construct 54" I.D. Storm 11.00 V.F. $ 903.00 I V.F. $ 9,933.00 
Sewer Manhole, In Place 

25 Construct 8'W by 6'H 80.00 L.F. $ 2,157.41 I L.F. $ 172,592.80 
Reinforced Concrete Box 
Culvert, In Place 

26 Construct Reinforced Concrete 153.00 C.Y. $ 801.51 I C.Y. $ 122,631.03 
Wing Walls, Cast In Place 

27 Construct 5" PCC Sidewalk, In 70.00 S.Y. $ 80.15 I S.Y. $ 5,610.50 
Place 

28 Construct 611 PCC Trail 410.00 S.Y. $ 70.95 I S.Y. $ 29,089.50 
Pavement, In Place 

29 Construct 811 PCC Curb Ramp, 10.00 S.Y. $ 144.68 I S.Y. $ 1,446.80 
In Place 

30 Construct 8" PCC Imprinted 34.00 S.Y. $ 110.90 I S.Y. $ 3,770.60 
Surfacing, In Place 

31 Construct 8" PCC Pavement, 2040.00 S.Y. $ 69.49 I S.Y. $ 141,759.60 
w and w/o Curb, In Place 

32 Construct 9" PCC Pavement, 65.00 S.Y. $ 96.43 I S.Y. $ 6,267.95 
(Park View Blvd), In Place 

33 Construct 4 Ft Tall, Black Vinyl 145.00 L.F. $ 43.41 I L.F. $ 6,294.45 
Coated, Chain Link Fence, In 
Place 

34 Rout & Seal Existing 0.00 L.F. $ 4.12 I L.F. $ 0.00 
Pavement Joints 

35 Furnish & Install Baffle Plates 0.00 L.S. $ 5,255.04 I L.S. $ 0.00 
in Existing Storm Manhole 

36 Install 411 Wide, White 0.00 L.F. $ 4.70 I L.F. $ 0.00 
Pavement Marking Paint, In 
Place 

37 Install 12" Wide, White 0.00 L.F. $ 15.43 I L.F. $ 0.00 
Pavement Marking Paint, 
Grooved, In Place 
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38 Install 24" Wide, White 0.00 L.F. $ 21.24 I L.F. $ 0.00 
Pavement Marking Paint, 
Grooved In Place 

39 Furnish and Install ADA 76 S.F. $ 25.68 I S.F. $ 1,951.68 
Detectable Warnings, Cast 
Iron, Natural Finish 

40 Furnish and Install Traffic 0.00 EA. $ 478.88 I EA. $ 0.00 
Control Signage, In Place 

41 Install, Maintain and Remove 1.00 EA. $ 6,862.05 I EA. $ 6,862.05 
Stabilized Construction 
Entrance 

42 Install and Maintain Fabric Silt 840.00 L.F. $ 4.40 I L.F. $ 3,696.00 
Fence 

43 Remove and Dispose Fabric 0.00 L.F. $ 0.60 I L.F. $ 0.00 
Silt Fence 

44 Temporary Seeding w/Straw 0.00 AC. $ 1,759.50 I AC. $ 0.00 
Mulch 

45 K-31 Fescue Seed w/Straw 0.00 AC. $ 3,636.30 I AC. $ 0.00 
Mulch 

46 Furnish and Install Straw 0.00 L.F. $ 5.57 I L.F. $ 0.00 
Wattle, 12" Diameter 

47 Install, Maintain and Remove 0.00 EA. $ 293.25 I EA. $ 0.00 
Curb Inlet Filter 

48 Install, Maintain and Remove 0.00 EA. $ 469.20 I EA. $ 0.00 
Grate Inlet Filter 

49 Water Management, Complete 1.00 L.S. $ 14,662.50 I L.S. $ 14,662.50 
50 Furnish and Install Flex-A-Mat, 0.00 S,F, $ 13.79 I S,F, $ 0.00 

In Place 
51 Furnish & Install Access Gates 0.00 L.S. $ 13,183.35 I L.S. $ 0.00 
52 Furnish & Install Access Gate 0.00 L.S. $ 8,797.50 I L.S. $ 0.00 

Control System w/Detection 
Loops 
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CO-1.1. Milbank 100A Commercial 
Power Pedestal, In Place 

CO-1.2 Furnish & Install 1-1.2 Inch 
HOPE Conduit, In Place 

CO-1.3 #3 AWG THHN Copper 
Conductor (OPPD Primary) 

CO-1.4 Furnish & Install Fiberglass 
Pull Box, Type PB-6, Access 
Gate Controls 

CO-1.5 #12 AWG THHN Copper 
Conductor (Access Gate 
Controls) 

CO-1.6 #6 AWG THHN Copper 
Conductor (Holiday Lighting 
Circuit) 
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CO-1.7 Receptacle Post, Containing 
One (1) GFCI Duplex 
Receptacle with In-Use Cover 
and Mounted in a Gard-N-Post 

CO-1.8 Soil Stabilization at Box 
Culvert 

TOTAL 
LESS 10% RETAINED 

0 EA. $ 950.00 I EA. $ 0.00 

1 LS $ 8,058.09 I LS $ 8,058.09 

LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENT RECOMMENDATION($) 

$ 906,608.90 
$ 90,660.89 
$ 709,476.92 

TOTAL DUE TO CONTRACTOR $ 106,471.09 

We recommend that payment in the amount of $106,471.09 be made to Mackie Construction. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Bradley P. Huyck, P. E. 
THOMPSON, DREESSEN & DORNER, INC. 

cc: Mackie Construction 

TD2 File No. 171-422 
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f,benesch Value Focused. Community Minded. Quality Driven. 

Pat Dowse 
City Engineer 
City of La Vista 
9900 Portal Road 
La Vista, NE 68128 

Preliminary & Final Design 
Terry Drive, Lillian Avenue & South 78th Street 
Pavement Rehabilitation 

March 16, 2023 
Project No: 
Invoice No: 

00120802.00 
239793 

~rofessional Services from January 16. 2023 to March 12. 2023 _ _________________ _ 

Task 00000 Project Management & Meetings 
Professional Personnel 

E2a Proj Scientist II, Proj Engineer II 
Higgins, John 

Totals 
Total Labor 

Task 00003 Final Design 
Professional Personnel 

E2a Proj Scientist II, Proj Engineer II 
Parks, Thomas 

Totals 
Total Labor 

Task 00004 Public Involvement 
Professional Personnel 

E2a Proj Scientist 11, Proj Engineer II 
Higgins, John 
Parks, Thomas 

E5 Eng Tech 11, lnsp 11, Env Tech II 
Lamb, Faith 

Totals 
Total Labor 

Hours 

1.00 
1.00 

Hours 

13.00 
13.00 

Hours 

4.00 
12.50 

3.00 
19.50 

Rate 

176.00 

Amount 

176.00 
176.00 

Total this Task 

Rate 

176.00 

Amount 

2,288.00 
2,288.00 

Total this Task 

Rate Amount 

176.00 704.00 
176.00 2,200.00 

98.00 294.00 
3,198.00 

Total this Task 

Benesch • 825 M Street, Suite 100 • Lincoln, NE 68508 • 402-479-2200 

176.00 

$176.00 

2,288.00 

$2,288.00 

3,198.00 

$3,198.00 



Project 00120802.00 

Billing Limits 
Total Billings 

Limit 
Remaining 

LaVista Terry, Lillian & 78th Rehab 

Current 
5,662.00 

Prior 
41,798.88 

Invoice 

To-Date 
47,460.88 
57,754.00 
10,293.12 

239793 

Total this Invoice $5,662.00 ====::::::::::::!::::::::::====== 

a ru P~-1 
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Benesch • 825 M Street, Suite 100 • Lincoln, NE 68508 • 402-479-2200 
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Thompson, Dreessen & Dorner, Inc. INVOICE 

2 Consultlng Engineers & Land SuNeyors 
Please remit to: 

TD2 Nebraska Office engineering 
& surveying l0836 Old MIii Road; Omaha, NE 68154 

Office: 402/330-8860 Fox: 402/330-5866 

CITY OF LA VISTA 
PAT DOWSE 
9900 PORTAL ROAD 
LA VISTA, NE 68128 

Professional Services from September 7, 2022 through March 05, 2023 

See detail other side 

Description 

Task A2-A - Update Plans and Specs for Rebidding 

Task A2-B - Communication with Property Owners 

Task A2-C - Construction Staking 

Task A2-D - Construction Phase Services 

Total 

Aging Summary 

Invoice Number Invoice Date Outstanding Current 

155881 03/20/2023 1,720.00 1,720.00 

Total 1,720.00 1,720.00 

TD2 South Dakota bfflce 
5000 S. Minnesota Ave,, Unit 312; Sioux Falls, SD 57108 

Office: 605/951-0886 

Invoice number 
Date 

155881 
03/20/2023 

Project 0171-414 CITY PARKING DISTRICT 
ACCESS IMPROVEMENTS· DRAINAGE 

Contract Prior Current 
Amount Billed Remaining Billed 

5,265.00 1,360.00 2,185.00 1,720.00 

3,720.00 120.00 3,600,00 0.00 

3,445.00 0.00 3,445.00 0.00 

6,555.00 0.00 6,555.00 0.00 

18,985.00 1,480.00 15,785.00 1,720.00 

Invoice total I 1,720.001 

Over30 Over 60 Over90 Over 120 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Terms Net 30 Days. A Finance Charge of 1 112% Per Month (18% per Annum) Will Be Charged on Past Due Accounts. Also Liable for 
all Legal and Collection Fees. Invoices not paid within 90 days of the invoice date will be subject to possible lien filings. 

CITY OF LA VISTA Invoice number 155881 

Okto~~/ 
~vnD ·:, I J0(J 2> 
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Invoice date 03/20/2023 
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Rita Ramirez 
City of La Vista 
City Hall 
8116 Park View Blvd. 
La Vista, NE 68128 

Remit To: 
ROG Planning & Design 
301 Grand Avenue 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

February 28, 2023 
Project No: R3003.066.01 
Invoice No: 53590 

Project R3003.066.01 City of La Vista - Placemaking Ph1 SD-CA 
Professional Services through February 28. 2023 
Fee 

Billing Phase Fee Billed% Earned Prior Fee Current Fee 

Schematic Design 149,000.00 100.00 149,000.00 149,000.00 0.00 

Design Development 180,000.00 100.00 180,000.00 180,000.00 0.00 

Construction Documents 275,330.00 100.00 275,330.00 275,330.00 0.00 

Bidding/Negotiation 44,000.00 100.00 44,000.00 44,000.00 0.00 

Contract Administration 244,000.00 66.50 162,260.00 158,600.00 3,660.00 

Total Fee 892,330.00 810,590.00 806,930.00 3,660.00 

Total Fee 

Billing Limits Current Prior To-Date 

Expenses 0.00 1,490.09 1,490.09 
Limit 8,600.00 
Remaining 7,109.91 

Total this Invoice 

Outstanding Invoices 

Number Date Balance 
53206 1/31/2023 18,959.10 
Total 18,959.10 

3,660.00 

$3,660.00 

~-i1~ 
3-~.3-oL:3 

((;, . 7/,0917.0tJO /7,4~/C/8-0fJ/ 

RDG Planning & Design, Inc Des Moines, Omaha, St. Lou is, Denver www.rdgusa.com ••• 
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Invoice 

Pat Dowse 
Director Public Works 
City of La Vista 
Email Inv: pdowse@cityoflavista.org 
City of La Vista 
811 6 Park View Boulevard 
La Vista, NE 68128-2198 

February 10, 2023 

liil DLRGROUP 
6457 Frances Street, Suite 200 

Omaha, NE 68106 
402-393-4100 Fax 402-393-8747 

Project No 10-17105-41 
Invoice No: 0214382 

Project 10-1 7105-41 La Vista City Cntr Parking Structure2 CS 

Billing Period: January 1, 2023 to January 31 . 2023 
Fee 

Billing Phase Fee 

Construction Services 198,750.00 

Add Service fo r PT 4,500.00 
Opening 

Total Fee 203,250.00 

Consultants 

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 

Olsson, Inc 
Total Consultants 

Reimbursable Expenses 

Travel Expenses-Mileage 
Total Reimbursables 

Billing Limits 

Consultants 
Limit 
Remaining 

Expenses 
Limit 
Remaining 

Interest 

Percent 
Complete 

78.00 

100.00 

Total Fee 

Current 

39,348.62 

4.91 

1 00 % of 288.20 (balance over 60 days) 

Billings to Date 

Current Prior 
Fee 5,962 .50 153,562.50 

Consu ltant 39,348.62 51 ,630.44 

Expense 4.91 386.98 

Interest 2.88 0.00 

Totals 45,318.91 205,579.92 

Previous Fee Current Fee 
Earned 

155,025.00 

4,500.00 

159,525.00 

Prior 

51 ,630.44 

386.98 

Billing 

149,062.50 

4,500.00 

153,562. 50 

3, 308.49 

36,040.13 
39,348.62 

4.91 
4.91 

To-Date 

90,979.06 
136,350.50 
45,371.44 

391 .89 
2,000.00 
1,608.11 

Total this Invoice 

Billing 

5,962.50 

0.00 

5,962.50 

5,962.50 

39,348.62 

4.91 

-~2~ 

-$-ztSfrHr.94--

Pk,542>; 7;/{G? 

PA~D 3 /P /J, ? 
Total 

159,525.00 

90,979.06 

391 .89 

2.88 

250,898.83 

14~ ?I.Cii 19M ..-CJY1Dt11w-~ 

Payment due and interest charged per contract terms. Remit to address at the top of this invoice. 
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Invoice 

Pat Dowse 
Director Public Works 
City of La Vista 
Email Inv: pdowse@cityoflavista.org 
City of La Vista 
8116 Park View Boulevard 
La Vista , NE 68128-2198 

March 10, 2023 
Project No: 
Invoice No: 

lil DLRGROUP 
6457 Frances Street, Suite 200 

Omaha, NE 68106 
402-393-4100 Fax 402-393-8747 

10-17105-41 
0215636 

Project 10-17105-41 La Vista City Cntr Parking Structure2 CS 
Billing Period: February 1, 2023 to February 28, 2023 
Fee 

Billing Phase 

Construction Services 

Add Service for PT 
Opening 

Total Fee 

Reimbursable Expenses 

Travel Expenses-Mileage 

Fee 

198,750.00 

4,500.00 

203,250.00 

Total Reimbursables 

Billing Limits 

Consultants 
Limit 
Remaining 

Expenses 
Limit 
Remaining 

Billings to Date 

Current 
Fee 5,962.50 

Consultant 0.00 

Expense 9.83 

Interest 0.00 

Totals 5,972.33 

Percent 
Complete 

81.00 

100.00 

Total Fee 

Current 

0.00 

9.83 

Prior 
159,525.00 

90,979.06 

391 .89 

2.88 

250,898.83 

Previous Fee Current Fee 
Earned Billing Billing 

160,987.50 155,025.00 5,962.50 

4,500.00 4,500.00 0.00 

165,487.50 159,525.00 5,962.50 

5,962.50 

9.83 

9.83 9.83 

Prior To-Date 

90,979.06 90,979.06 
136,350.50 
45,371.44 

391.89 401.72 
2,000.00 
1,598.28 

Total this Invoice $5,972.33 

o/i ro FA-1 
\f lYIV ·:, /;jj /J 5 Total 

165,487.50 

90,979.06 { c;":9 i_cq 19-. ~ --onou /gJoJ 
401 .72 

2.88 

256,871.16 

Payment due and interest charged per contract terms. Remit to address at the top of this invoice. 
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APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATION FOR PAYMENT 
TO OWNER: City of La Vista 

8116 Park View Blvd. 

La Vista, NE 68128 

PROJECT: La Vista Parking Garage 2 

La Vista, Nebraska 

AJA DOCUMENT G702 PAGE ONE OF PAGES 

APPLICATION NO: 16 • Distribution to: 

□OWNER 
PERIOD TO: 3/31/2023 • □ARCHITECT 

FROM CONTRACTOR: 

Sampson Construction Co., Inc. 

5825 South 14th Street 
Lincoln, NE 68512 

CONTRACT FOR: General 

VIA ARCHITECT: Matthew Gulsvig @ DLR Group 

mgulsvig@dlrgroup.com 

jtegels@dlrgroup.com 
dpenka@dlrgroup.com 
jchase@dlrgroup.com 

OcoNTRACTOR 

D 
PROJECT NOS: 21108 □ 

CONTRACT DATE: September 22, 2021 • 

CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT 
Application is made for payment, as shown below, in connection with the Contract. 
Continuation Sheet, AlA Document G703, is attached. 

I. ORIGINAL CONTRACT SUM 
2. Net change by Change Orders 
3. CONTRACT SUM TO DATE (Line l ± 2) 
4. TOTAL COMPLETED & STORED TO 

DATE (Column G on G703) 
5. RETAINAGE: 

a. 10 % of Completed Work 
(Column D +Eon G703) 

b. % of Stored Material $ 
(Column Fon G703) 

Total Retainage (Lines Sa+ Sb or 

Total in Column I ofG703) 
6. TOTAL EARNED LESS RETAINAGE 

(Line 4 Less Line 5 Total) 
7. LESS PREVIOUS CERTIFICATES FOR 

PAYMENT (Line 6 from prior Certificate) 
8. CURRENTPAYMENTDUE 
9. BALANCE TO FINISH, INCLUDING RETAINAGE 

(Line 3 less Line 6) 

s ___ . _12-'-,5.....,t..,..4,""'o.,,...oo,,....o""'o,_ 
$ • 19,686.87 
$ ---. -12-,5-3-3,~6-86-.8-7-

$ -----'•'--9-'-,9_5_8,:....7_33_.o_o_ 

995,873.00 

$ • 995,873.00 
$ 8,962,860.00 

$ 8,616,935.00 
$ • 345,925.00 

$ • 3,570,826.87 

CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY ADDlTIONS DEDUCTIONS 
Total changes approved 
in orevious months by Owner • $63,411.44 • $43,724.57 

Total approved this Month 

TOTALS • $63,411.44 • $43,724.57 

NET CHANGES bv Chane:e Order • $19 686.87 

AJA DOCUMENT G702 · APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATION FOR PAYMENT· 1992 EDITION· AJA • 0 1992 

The undersigned Contractor certifies that to the best of the Contractor's knowledge, 
information and belief the Work covered by this Application for Payment has been 
completed in accordance with the Contract Documents, that all amounts have been paid by 
the Contractor for Work for which previous Certificates for Payment were issued and 
payments received from the Owner, and that current payment shown herein is now due. 

CONTRACTOR: Sampson Construction Co., Inc. 

By: ~ 1. · j (} Date: 3 / 29/ 23 

State of: N~ ~ ~ ounty of: Lancaster ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~--
Subscribed and to befm~e me this 29th day of March 20 3 GENERAL NOTARY -State of Nebraska 
Notary Public ·Q_ L I. - • A JULIE A. SCHEELE 
My Commission exp· s: 5-14-2024 '~ MyComm.Exp.May14,2024 

ARcAITEcT's CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT 
In accordance with the Contract Documents, based on on-site observations and the data 
comprising the application, the Architect certifies to the Owner that to the best of the 
Architect's knowledge, information and belief the Work has progressed as indicated, 

the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and the Contractor 
is entitled to payment of the AMOUNT CERTIFIED. _ . _1 

AMOUNTCERTIFIED .. . . . ..... . $ 345,925.00~ ~ ~~l \ ~{4 {t(rv:Ji;t-( 

(Altach explanation if amount certified differs from the amount applied. Initial all figures 011 this 
Applicatio11 a11d 011the Conti1111atio11 Sheet that are changed to co11form with the amo1111t certified.) 
ARCHITECT: DLR Group 

Olglblly algMd by Mellhew Gubvig, Al1' 

3/30/2023 By: Matthew Gulsvig, Al~=~;g;E~~~~i~1~~~- Date: 

This Certificate is not negotiable. The AMOUNT CERTIFIED is payable only to the 
Contractor named berem. Issuance, payment and acceptance of payment are without 
prejudice to any rights of the Owner or Contractor under this Contract. 

TI!E AMERICAN INS11TUTE OF ARCHITECTS, 1735 NEW YORK AVE., N.W., WASKINGTON. DC 20006.5292 



CONTINUATION SHEET 
AIA Document G702, APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATION FOR PAYMENT, containing 

Contractor's signed certification is attached. 

In tabulations below, amounts are stated to the nearest dollar. 

AJA DOCUMENT G703 
APPLICATION NO: 

APPLICATION DATE: 
PERIOD TO: 

Use Column I on Contracts where variable retainage for line items may apply. ARCHITECT'S PROJECT NO: 
LAVISTA PARKING GARAGE 2 

A B C D E F G 

ITEM DESCRIPTION OF WORK SCHEDULED WORK --COMPLETED MATERTALS TOTAL % 

NO. VALUE FROM PREVIOUS THIS PERIOD PRESENTLY COMPLETED (G+C) 
APPLICATION STORED AND STORED 

(D+E) (NOTIN TO DATE 
DORE) (D+E+F) 

I REINFORCING STEEL 701,000 670,139 30,861 701 ,000 • 100% 

2 POST TENSION CABLE 197,000 197,000 197,000 100% 

3 FOOTINGS & POURED WALLS 1,239,000 1,239,000 1,239,000 100% 

4 CAST IN PLACE COLUMNS 233,000 233,000 233,000 100% 

5 SLAB AND BEAM FORMWORK 1,426,000 1,426,000 1,426,000 100% 

6 CONCRETE SLABS 1,761 ,000 1,699,501 1,699,501 97% 

7 STRUCTURAL PRECAST 1,522,000 1,370,199 60,000 1,430,199 • 94% 

8 MASONRY 39,000 21 ,500 21,500 55% 

9 STEEL MATERIAL 349,000 279,973 279,973 80% 

IO STEEL & PRECAST ERECTION 199,000 33,828 40,000 73,828 • 37% 
11 ROUGH CARPENTRY 6,000 

12 SPRAY FOAM INSULATION 6,000 6,000 6,000 100% 

13 TRAFFIC COATING 8,000 

14 WATERPROOFING 94,455 20,000 20,000 • 21% 
15 WATER REPELLANTS 2,000 

16 ROOFING & FLASHING 62,000 20,000 20,000 • 32% 
17 METAl: WAt:l:PANELS --- - --941~000- 6'48;626 --90,000- 738;626_ --.- 18% 

18 JOINT SEALANTS 153,232 10,000 10,000 • 7% 

19 PREFORMED JOINT SEALS 7,545 

20 FIRESTOPPING 6,000 4,000 4,000 67% 

21 HOLLOW METAL FRAMES/DOORS/HARDWARE 44,000 36,240 36,240 82% 

22 ALUMINUM & GLAZING 305,000 60,838 60,838 20% 

23 METAL STUDS & DRYWALL 108,000 53,544 4,000 57,544 • 53% 

24 TILE & RESILIENT FLOORING 4,000 

25 PAINT 230,000 5,380 5,380 2% 

26 SEALED CONCRETE 3,768 

27 MISC. SPECIAL TIES 5,000 5,000 5,000 100% 

28 SIGNAGE 108,000 

29 PARKING ACCESS/REVENUE CONTROL SYSTEIV 102,000 5,000 50,000 55,000 • 54% 

30 ELEVATOR 265,000 93,889 93,889 35% 

AIA DOCUMENT G703 CONTINUATION SHEET FOR G702 · 1992 EDITlON · AIA · <01992 
THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS, 1735 NEW YORK AVENUE, N.W. WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006-5232 

PAGE OF PAGES 

16 
3/29/2023 
3/31/2023 

21108 

H 
BALANCE 
TO FINISH 

(C-GJ 

61,499 
91 ,801 
17,500 
69,027 

125,172 
6,000 

8,000 
74,455 
2,000 

42,000 
---202,37,i-

143,232 
7,545 
2,000 
7,760 

244,162 
50,456 
4,000 

224,620 
3,768 

108,000 
47,000 

171 ,111 

I 
RETAINAGE 

(IF VARIABLE 
RATE) 

70,100 
19,700 

123,900 
23,300 

142,600 
169,950 
143,020 

2,150 
27,997 
7,383 

0 
600 

0 
2,000 

0 
2,000 

--73~803 
1,000 

0 
400 

3,624 
6,084 
5,754 

0 
538 

0 
500 

0 
5,500 
9,389 

G703-1992 



CONTINUATION SHEET 
AIA Document G702, APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATION FOR PAYMENT, containing 
Contractor's signed certification is attached. 

In tabulations below, amounts are stated to the nearest dollar. 

AJA DOCUMENT G703 

APPLICATION NO: 
APPLICATION DATE: 

PERIOD TO: 
Use Column I on Contracts where variable retainage for line items may apply. ARCHITECT'S PROJECT NO: 

LAVISTA PARKING GARAGE 2 
A B C D E F G 

ITEM uc,n.:KIPTION OF WuKK SCHEDULtU W\JK"- CUMPLETED MAfERIALS TVIAL '¼, 

NO. VALUE l"'KUM rru:v1uU:s Tn1.:.ri,.Rluu PRESENTLY COMPLETED (G+C) 
APPLICATION STORED AND STORED 

{D+E) (NOTIN TODATE 
DORE) {D+E+F) 

31 FIRE SPRINKLER 47,000 16,300 16,300 35% 
32 PLUMBING & HV AC 352,000 226,058 29,000 255,058 • 72% 
33 ELECTRICAL 861,000 370,500 30,000 400,500 • 47% 
34 EXCAVATION & SITE DEMO 276,000 252,780 252,780 92% 
35 AUGER CAST PILING 323,000 323,000 323,000 1000/o 
36 PAVING& SIDEWALKS 100,000 
37 PAVEMENT MARKING 14,000 
38 LANDSCAPING & IRRIGATION 19,000 
39 SEGMENTAL RETAINING WALL 45,000 
40 UTILITIES 280,000 242,040 242,040 86% 
41 PERFORMANCE & PAYMENT BOND 63,000 48,037 48,037 76% 
42 BUILDERS RISK INSURANCE 7,000 7,000 7,000 l00% 
43 OWNER CHANGE ORDER #2 ('(3.725) 

44 OWNER CHANGE ORDER #3 63,411 500 500 • 1% 

GRAND TOTALS 12,533,686 9,574,372 384,361 9,958,733 79% 

AIA DOCUMENT G703 · CONTINUATION SHEET FOR G702 · 1992 EOmON · AIA · C1992 
THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS, 1735 NEW YORK AVENUE, N.W. WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006-5232 

PAGE OF PAGES 

16 
3/29/2023 

3/31/2023 
21108 

H 
BALANt:E 
TO FINISH 

{C-G) 

30,700 
96,942 

460,500 
23,220 

100,000 
14,000 
19,000 
45,000 
37,960 
14,963 

(43,725) 

62,911 

2,574,953 

I 
ru:lAINAuc 

(IF VARIABLE 
RATE) 

1,630 
25,506 
40,050 
25,278 
32,300 

0 
0 
0 
0 

24,204 
4,804 

700 
0 

so 

995,873 

G703-1992 



ITEM _______ 
CITY OF LA VISTA 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORT 
APRIL 4, 2023 AGENDA 

Subject: Type: Submitted By: 

 RESOLUTION RITA RAMIREZ 
AWARD OF CONTRACT – ORDINANCE ASSISTANT CITY ADMINISTRATOR/ 
EASTERN NEBRASKA OFFICE ON AGING RECEIVE/FILE COMMUNITY SERVICES DIRECTOR 

SYNOPSIS 

A resolution has been prepared authorizing the Mayor to execute a contract with the Eastern Nebraska Office 
On Aging to provide a nutrition program to persons sixty (60) years of age and older living within the limits 
of Sarpy County. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no cost to the city for the nutrition program. The city does pay the Senior Services Manager salary. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approval. 

BACKGROUND 

Eastern Nebraska Office on Aging supplies the meals and paper products that allow the La Vista Senior 
Center to serve and provide meals to older adults between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. five (5) days 
per week on Monday - Friday. This contract is for one year and is renewed annually. 

K:\APPS\City Hall\CNCLRPT (Blue Letters)\232file\23   REC ENOA Contract 04.04.2023.Doc 
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RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA, 
NEBRASKA, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT WITH THE EASTERN 
NEBRASKA OFFICE ON AGING FOR PROVISION OF A NUTRITION PROGRAM. 

WHEREAS, the City of La Vista’s Community Center has annually served as a hot meal site for 
senior citizens in conjunction with the Nutrition program of the Eastern Nebraska 
Office on Aging (ENOA); and  

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council believe it is desirable to continue to participate in this 
important program. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City of La Vista be, and hereby is, 
authorized to execute an agreement with the Eastern Nebraska Office on Aging 
for provision of a nutrition program 

 PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 4TH DAY OF APRIL 2023. 

CITY OF LA VISTA 

_________________________ 
Douglas Kindig, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________ 
Pamela A. Buethe, MMC 
City Clerk 



CONTRACT 

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into this first day of July 2023 by and between the 
EASTERN NEBRASKA OFFICE ON AGING, a Program Office of the Eastern Nebraska Regional 
Agency on Human Services, an agency formed by the Nebraska Political Subdivisions, Cass 
County, Dodge County, Douglas County, Sarpy County and Washington County pursuant to the 
Nebraska lnterlocal Cooperation Act, Neb. Rev. Stat. §13-801, et seq. (herein referred to as 
"ENOA") and CITY OF LA VISTA a Nebraska non-profit corporation (herein referred to as 
"Contractor") for the operation of a senior center. 

The purpose of the Contract from ENOA to the Contractor is to provide funding for services 
that meet the requirements of the Older Americans Act of 1965 as amended through P.L.114-144, 
enacted April 19, 2016, other applicable Federal statues and their implementing regulations, State 
of Nebraska statutes DHHS program regulations and the term and conditions of the Contract. 

WHEREAS, ENOA has entered into an agreement with the State of Nebraska, Department 
of Health & Human Services Division of Medicaid and Long-term Care, (herein referred to as the 
"State") to provide a nutrition program to persons 60 years of age and older residing in Sarpy 
County (herein referred to as the "Area") ; and 

WHEREAS, ENOA has been created according to Nebraska Revised Statutes Section 13-
801, et seq ., and further has been recognized by the State as the official area agency on aging for 
the Area; and 

WHEREAS, ENOA has determined in its Area Plan for FY23 - FY27 that there exists a 
significant and clear need for a nutrition program for older persons living in the Area; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor maintains a facility located at 8116 Parkview Boulevard , La Vista, 
Sarpy County, Nebraska with accommodations suitable to serve and provide meals to older adults 
between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 1 :00 p.m. Monday through Friday. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED by ENOA and Contractor as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

APPOINTMENT . 

Contractor is hereby retained and appointed to represent ENOA in connection with 
providing a nutrition program for older adults at Contractor's facility located at 8116 Parkview 
Boulevard , La Vista, Sarpy County, Nebraska. 

ARTICLE II 

SERVICES 

In carrying out the terms of this Contract, Contractor agrees to provide the following 
services: 

(a) To provide a Senior Center Manager who will be responsible for the day-to-day 
operation of the Nutrition program. 



(b) To provide persons to receive and serve meals and to clean up following the noon 
meal in accordance with Nutrition Program policies and procedures 

(c) To place food order with the ENOA Nutrition Division by 1 :00pm on day prior to 
serving day, for the number of meals needed for the serving day. 

(d) To assure that food temperatures are maintained at no less than 140 degrees F for 
hot food items and no higher than 41 degrees F for cold food items. 

(e) To clean utensils and containers food is delivered in and properly dispose of all 
leftovers. 

(f) To ascertain that all claims for meals served are correct. Contractor shall not order 
more meals than the actual number of reservations made by the center participants. · 

(g) Daily sign-in sheets or other acceptable-documentation ·identifying participants, 
guests, volunteers and staff shall be utilized. Documentation will be kept on file for 
3 years. 

(h) To assure money collected is a confidential voluntary contribution for meals and Tai 
Chi for Balance, record daily on cash contribution sheet, obtain two (2) verifying 
signatures (initials are acceptable) and deposit amount in ENOA designated 
account. 

(i) To make special provisions as necessary to serve handicapped individuals. 

U) To submit a documented current Food Service Establishment Inspection Report by 
the Nebraska Department of Health at the time Contract is signed. 

(k) To assure that the food service operation is in compliance with the Nebraska Food 
Code. 

(I) To assure that all ENOA policies and procedures for congregate meals are 
followed . 

(m) To account for all equipment purchased with funds received from ENOA when 
required . 

(n) To publicize the availability of the Nutrition Program for older adults at the facility. 
All publicity must recognize ENOA for financial support. Copies of all publicity must 
be sent to ENOA prior to distribution for approval. 

(o) To collect all required data for participants under the direction of the ENOA 
Nutrition Division. ENOA Nutrition Division will be responsible to ensure all 
individuals meet program eligibility as listed in ENOA Nutrition Policy 1. 1. 
Underage ineligible individuals must pay full cost of the meals as directed by 
ENOA Nutrition Policy 1.6. 

2 



(p) To keep senior center dining area, entry area, and restrooms clean, sanitary, and 
uncluttered. 

(q) Center staff must complete required paperwork in a timely and correct manner. 
Guest logs and cash contribution sheets must be completed daily. Monthly reports 
must be received in the Nutrition Office by the 3rd working day after the end of the 
month. 

(r) To operate the center Monday-Friday except for 1 O holidays during the year. 
ENOA holidays are: New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, Presidents Day, 
Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, 
the Friday after Thanksgiving, and Christmas Day. Contractor shall notify ENOA of 
any other holidays to be taken. Any other center closings must be pre-approved by 
ENOA whose approval shall be documented by Contractor, in writing. 

(s) To provide Nutrition Education programs a minimum of 2 ·times per year. The 
program must be provided by a qualified individual as outlined in ENOA Nutrition 
Program policy 1 .15. The program topic, presenter and their credentials must be 
recorded on the appropriate report. 

(t) The Center Manager is invited to attend the regularly scheduled Center Manager 
meetings. The Center Manager may be invited to attend any training meetings that 
ENOA may provide for skill development. 

In carrying out the terms of this Contract, ENOA agrees to provide the following : 

(a) To provide meals which supply one-third of the DRl 's and comply with the most 
recent Dietary Guidelines for Americans. 

(b) To provide paper products, cleaning supplies, coffee, tea, sugar, creamer, 
condiments, etc. 

(c) To provide training for senior center staff to improve job-related skills . 

(d) To provide nutrition education and recreational assistance to center staff upon 
request. 

(e) To provide administrative and technical assistance and monitor Contract 
compliance by: 

1) Reviewing reports and records, including required fiscal, submitted to ENOA as 
described in Contract. 

2) An annual senior center evaluation to evaluate Contractor's compliance with 
this Contract. 

3) Unannounced center evaluations and center visits by program administrative 
staff. 

3 



4) Other activities as deemed necessary by ENOA Director. 

ARTICLE Ill 

TERM 

This Contract shall be in effect for one (1) year from July 1, 2023, through and including 
June 30, 2024. 

a) Early termination may occur if: 

ARTICLE IV 

TERMINATION 

• ENOA and the Contractor, by mutual written agreement, may terminate 
the Contract at any time . 

• ENOA, in its sole discretion, may terminate the Contract for any reason 
upon 30 written notice to the Contractor. In the event of cancellation, the 
Contractor shall be entitled to payment, determined on a pro rata basis for 
products or services satisfactorily performed or provided 

b) ENOA may terminate the Contract, in whole or in part , if the Contractor fails to perform 
its obligations under the Contract in a timely and proper manner. ENOA may, by 
providing a written notice of default to the Contractor, allow the Contractor to correct a 
failure or breach of Contract within a period of thirty (30) days. 

c) ENOA may terminate the Contract, in whole or in part, in the event funding is no longer 
available . ENOA will give the Contractor written notice thirty (30) days prior to the 
effective date of any termination . The Contractor shall be entitled to receive just and 
equitable compensation for any authorized work which has been satisfactorily completed 
as of the termination date. In no event shall the Contractor be paid for a loss of 
anticipated profit. 

ARTICLE VI 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

The Executive Director of ENOA or designated representative shall be the authorized 
representative to monitor performance under this Contract. ENOA shall prescribe accounting 
systems for records and accounts and shall require progress reports of the activities and functions 
of Contractor. ENOA shall not be authorized to change any of the terms and conditions of the 

4 



Contract. Such changes, if any, shall be accomplished only by a properly executed modification of 
this Contract in accordance with the terms and conditions of Article IX hereof. 

ARTICLE VII 

CONDITIONS 

This Contract is subject to the following conditions. Please provide initials beside each 
condition to confirm acceptance: 

a) Contractor shall maintain such records and accounts, including property, personnel 
and financial records as are deemed necessary to assure a proper accounting for all 

Accept & Initial Contract expenses. All Contractor books , records, and documents regardless of 
physical form, including data maintained in computer files, relating to work performed 
or monies received under this Contract shall be subject to review or audit. Contractor 
shall maintain ail records for five (5) years from the date of final payment. All records 
shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted business practices . 

Accept & Initial 

Accept & Initial 

Accept & Initial 

Accept & In it ia l 

Accept & Initia l 

b) Contractor shall submit such fiscal and programmatic progress reports as deemed 
necessary and requested by ENOA on all activities and functions of the Contract for 
which funds are received. These may include but are not limited to a monthly fiscal 
report and if required, a Contract completion report to be submitted within fifteen (15) 
days upon termination or completion of the Contract. 

c) A representative from ENOA shall have the right to enter any premises where the 
Contractor duties under the Contract are being performed, and to inspect, monitor or 
otherwise evaluate the work being performed. All inspections and evaluations shall 
be at reasonable times and in a manner that will not unreasonably delay work. 

d) All materials and information provided by ENOA or acquired by the Contractor on 
behalf of ENOA shall be regarded as confidential information and shall be handled in 
accordance with Federal and State Law, and ethical standards. The Contractor must 
ensure the confidentiality of such materials or information. Should said 
confidentiality be breached by Contractor, Contractor shall notify ENOA immediately 
of said breach and take immediate corrective action . 

e) Contractor shall give credit to ENOA for its technical assistance and its moral and 
financial support of the program in all publicity regarding this program , whether in the 
media, written communication , or public presentations. 

f) The Contractor shall comply with all applicable local , State and Federal statutes and 
regulations regarding civil rights laws and equal opportunity employment. The 
Nebraska Fair Employment Practice Act prohibits Contractors of the Eastern 
Nebraska Office on Aging (ENOA) from discriminating against any employee or 
applicant for employment, with respect to hire , tenure, terms, conditions or privileges 
of employment because of race, color, religion , sex, disability, or national origin (Neb. 
Rev. Stat. §48-1101 to 48-1125). The Contractor guarantees compliance with the 
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Nebraska Fair Employment Practice Act, and breach of this provision shall be 
regarded as a material breach of Contract. 

g) The Contractor shall procure and pay for all permits, licenses, and approvals 
necessary for the execution of the Contract. The Contractor shall comply with all 

Accept & Initial applicable local , state, and federal laws, ordinances, rules, orders, and regulations. 

It is agreed that nothing contained herein is intended or should be construed in any 
manner as creating or establishing the relationship of partners between the parties 

Accept & Initial hereto. The Contractor represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all 
personnel required to perform the services under the Contract. The Contractor's 
employees and other persons engaged in work or services required by the 
Contractor under the Contract shall have no contractual relationship with ENOA; 
they shall not be considered employees of ENOA. 

h) All claims on behalf of any person arising out of employment or alleged employment 
(including without limit claims of discrimination against the Contractor, its officers or 

Accept & Initial its agents) shall in no way be the responsibility of ENOA. The Contractor will hold 
ENOA harmless from any and all such claims including , but not limited to ENOA's 
attorney's fees and expenses. 

i) The Contractor warrants that all persons assigned to the project shall be employees 
of the Contractor and shall be fully qualified to perform the work required . Contractor 

Accept & Initial agrees to have services performed by US Citizens or individuals lawfully authorized 
to derive income from employment in the US. Contractor covenants that it has not 
retained or employed any company or person, other than bona fide employees 
working for the Contractor, to solicit or secure the Contract and that it has not paid or 
agreed to pay any company or person other than bona fide employees working 
solely for the Contractor, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or any 
other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of the 
Contract. For breach of this statement, ENOA shall have the right to annul Contract 
without liability. 

j) The Contractor shall be responsible for the proper care and custody of any ENOA­
owned property which is furnished for the Contractor's use during the performance of 

Accept & Initial the Contract. The Contractor shall reimburse ENOA for any loss or damage of such 
property, normal wear and tear is expected. 

k) For the duration of the Contract, all communication between Contractor and ENOA 
regarding the Contract shall take place between the Contractor and individuals 

Accept & Initial specified by ENOA. Communication about the Contract between Contractor and 
individuals not designated as points of contact by ENOA is strictly forbidden . 

I) Contractor or ENOA shall consent to enter into discussion at any time to review 
terms of this Contract should an evaluation suggest that program requirements 

Accept & Initial necessitate a modification or change in center operations. 
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m) Contractor shall indemnify and hold ENOA harmless from and against: (1) any and 
all claims and causes of action arising from Contracts between the Contractor and 

Accept & In itial third parties made to effectuate the purpose of this Contract and (2) any and all 
claims, liabilities or damages arising from the preparation or presentation of any work 
covered by this Contract or any travel related thereto. 

n) The Contractor shall not commence work under this Contract until he or she has 
obtained ENOA a certificate of insurance coverage. ENOA shall be named as 

Accept & Initial additional insured on all such insurance policies . In addition, notice of cancellation of 
any required insurance policy must be submitted when issued and a new coverage 
binder shall be submitted immediately to ensure no break in coverage. 

Contractor shall furnish ENOA with proof of insurance coverage on the following : 
General Liability in the amount of $2,000,000. 
Personal. Liability in the amount of $1,000,000. 
Medical Expenses (any one person) in the amount of $5,000. 
Workers' Compensation and Unemployment Insurance 

o) Contractor certifies it maintains a drug free workplace environment to ensure worker 
safety and workplace integrity. Contractor agrees to provide a copy of its drug free 

Accept & Initial workplace policy at any time upon request by ENOA. 

p) The Contractor, by signature to the Contract, certifies that the Contractor is not 
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible , or 

Accept & Initia l voluntarily excluded by any federal department or agency from participating in 
transactions (debarred) . The Contractor shall immediately notify ENOA if, during the 
term of this Contract, Contractor becomes debarred. ENOA may immediately 
terminate this Contract by providing Contractor written notice if Contractor becomes 
debarred during the term of this Contract. 

ARTICLE VIII 

ASSIGNMENT 

Contractor may not assign its rights under this Contract without the express prior written 
consent of ENOA. · 

ARTICLE IX 

MODIFICATION 

This Contract contains the entire agreement of the parties. No representations were made 
or relied upon by either party other than those that are expressly set forth herein. No agent, 
employee or other representative of either party is empowered to alter any of the terms hereof 
unless done in writing and signed by an authorized officer of the respective parties. 
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GOVERNING LAW 

This Contract agreement between ENOA and Contractor shall be interpreted and enforced 
in accordance with Nebraska Law. The parties further agree that any disputes by either or both 
parties hereto regarding this Contract agreement shall filed in the District Court of Douglas County, 
Nebraska. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Contract this ___ day of 
______ 2023. 

ATTEST: 

ATTEST: 

CITY OF LA VISTA 

By _______________ _ 
Authorized Representative 

Date ______________ _ 

EASTERN NEBRASKA REGIONAL AGENCY 
ON HUMAN SERVICES, EASTERN 
NEBRASKA OFFICE ON AGING ("ENOA") 

By _______ ________ _ 
Governing Board 

Date __________ _____ _ 
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A-113/31/2023 11 :38:54 AM A CCOUNTS PAYA BLE CHECK REGISTER Page: 1/4 

User: mgustafson 

DB: La Vista COUNCIL REVIEW ED 

Check# Check Date Vendor Name Amount Voided 

2440(A) 03/22/2023 CITY OF PAPILLION - MFO 240,674.00 N 

2439(E) 03/23/2023 CITY CENTRE MUSIC VENUE LLC 360,000.00 N 

139170 03/23/2023 DESIGN W ORKSHOP INC 2,113.75 N 

139171 03/23/2023 DLR GROUP 25,235.95 N 

139172 03/23/2023 JE DUNN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 796,401 .00 N 

139173 03/23/2023 OMAHA STORM CHASERS BASEBALL 1,000.00 N 

139174 03/23/2023 THOMPSON DREESSEN & DORNER, INC. 3,422.92 N 

139175 03/29/2023 UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE 103.72 N 

139176 03/30/2023 UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE 98.28 N 

2441(E) 03/31/2023 ACTIVE NETWORK LLC 203.93 N 

2442(E) 03/31/2023 CENTURY LINK/LUMEN 750.92 N 

2443(E) 03/31/2023 CENTURY LINK/LUMEN 116.13 N 

2444(E) 03/31/2023 ESSENTIAL SCREENS 142.80 N 

2445(E) 03/31/2023 GREATAMERICA FINANCIAL SERVICES 1,464.15 N 

2446(E) 03/31/2023 METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT 2,735.23 N 

2447(E) 03/31/2023 MID-AMERICAN BENEFITS INC 10,633.17 N 

2448(E) 03/31/2023 NE DEPT OF REVENUE-SALES TAX 66.1 3 N 

2449(E) 03/3 1/2023 OMAHA PUBLIC POWER DISTRICT 40,256.48 N 

2450(E) 03/31/2023 PAYRO LL MAXX 431,840.23 N 

2451 (E) 03/31/2023 ROBERT HALF 5,094.72 N 

2452(E) 03/31/2023 U.S. CELLULAR 1,874.06 N 

139177 04/04/2023 1000 BU LBS 3,959.82 N 

139178 04/04/2023 ACTION BATTERIES UNLTD INC 49.95 N 

139179 04/04/2023 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. 1,595.28 N 

139181 04/04/2023 ANDERSON, PATTI 227.67 N 

139182 04/04/2023 ASPEN EQUIPMENT COMPANY 643.65 N 

139183 04/04/2023 AT&T MOBILITY LLC 98.32 N 

139184 04/04/2023 BADGER BODY & TRUCK EQUIP CO INC 58.00 N 

139185 04/04/2023 BERGANKDV LLC 23,800.00 N 

139186 04/04/2023 BIBLIONIX LLC 3,818.00 N 

139187 04/04/2023 BIG RED LOCKSMITHS 65.00 N 

139188 04/04/2023 BIZCO, INC. 13,202.41 N 

139189 04/04/2023 BOBCAT OF OMAHA 1,764.13 N 

139190 04/04/2023 BOWERS, SYDNEY 164.00 N 

139191 04/04/2023 BRODERSEN, CALE 164.00 N 

139192 04/04/2023 BSN SPORTS LLC 270.00 N 

139193 04/04/2023 BUETHE, PAM 2,107.92 N 

139194 04/04/2023 CARL, RACHEL 164.00 N 

139195 04/04/2023 CENTER POINT, INC. 430.86 N 

139196 04/04/2023 CINTAS CORPORATION NO. 2 1,466.77 N 

139197 04/04/2023 CITY OF PAPILLION 13,854.72 N 

139198 04/04/2023 COXCOMMUNKATION~INC. 3.38 N 

139199 04/04/2023 DAIGLE LAW GROUP, LLC 600.00 N 

139200 04/04/2023 DANIELSON TECH SUPPLY INC 105.20 N 

139201 04/04/2023 DATASHIELD CORPORATION 20.00 N 

139202 04/04/2023 DELL MARKETING LP. 66.59 N 

139203 04/04/2023 DEMCOINCORPORATED 405.43 N 



3/31/2023 11 :38:54 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECK REGISTER Page: 2/4 

User: mgustafson 

DB: La Vista COUNCIL REVIEWED 

Check# Check Date Vendor Name Amount Voided 

139204 04/04/2023 DHHS REG/UC-POOL PERMIT 40.00 N 

139205 04/04/2023 DIAMOND VOGEL PAINTS 269.39 N 

139206 04/04/2023 DOUGLAS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFC 225.00 N 

139207 04/04/2023 FASTENAL COMPANY 126.94 N 

139208 04/04/2023 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC #226 119.00 N 

139209 04/04/2023 FUN EXPRESS LLC 575.95 N 

139210 04/04/2023 GALE 133.45 N 

139211 04/04/2023 GRAINGER 83.96 N 

139212 04/04/2023 GREAT PLAINS UNIFORMS 1,244.00 N 

139213 04/04/2023 GUMDROP BOOKS 2,923.20 N 

139214 04/04/2023 GUNN, BRENDA 66.29 N 

139215 04/04/2023 H & H CHEVROLET LLC 3.81 N 

139216 04/04/2023 HOODMASTERS INC 515.30 N 

139217 04/04/2023 HOTSY EQUIPMENT COMPANY 88.49 N 

139218 04/04/2023 HY-VEE INC 165.00 N 

139219 04/04/2023 HY-VEE SHADOW LAKE 1,060.00 N 

139220 04/04/2023 INDUSTRIAL SALES COMPANY INC 7.91 N 

139221 04/04/2023 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES 709.95 N 

139222 04/04/2023 INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL 44.00 N 

139223 04/04/2023 J & J SMALL ENGINE SERVICE 3.98 N 

139224 04/04/2023 JOHNSON CONTROLS US HOLDINGS LLC 713.18 N 

139225 04/04/2023 JOHNSON HARDWARE COMPANY LLC 319.80 N 

139226 04/04/2023 JOHNSTONE SUPPLY CO 15.63 N 

139227 04/04/2023 JUSTIN KOFOED LLC 350.00 N 

139228 04/04/2023 KASEYA US LLC 2,755.20 N 

139229 04/04/2023 KIDWELL, INC 1,834.00 N 

139230 04/04/2023 KIESLER POLICE SUPPLY 2,270.00 N 

139231 04/04/2023 KIMBALL MIDWEST 556.97 N 

139232 04/04/2023 KINDIG, DOUGLAS 54.09 N 

139233 04/04/2023 LOWERY, WENDY 16.25 N 

139234 04/04/2023 MACQUEEN EQUIPMENT LLC 70.57 N 

139235 04/04/2023 MARCO INCORPORATED 222.87 N 

139236 04/04/2023 MEISTER, KARL 164.00 N 

139237 04/04/2023 MENARDS-RALSTON 705.19 N 

139239 04/04/2023 MICHAEL TODD AND COMPANY INC 138.32 N 

139240 04/04/2023 MID-IOWA SOLID WASTE EQUIP CO 755.00 N 

139241 04/04/2023 MIDWEST TAPE 79.98 N 

139242 04/04/2023 MIRACLE RECREATION EQUIPMENT 2,358.45 N 

139243 04/04/2023 MNJ TECHNOLOGIES DIRECT INC 1,655.00 N 

139244 04/04/2023 MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS INC 300.00 N 

139245 04/04/2023 NEBRASKALAND TIRE, INC. 203.49 N 

139246 04/04/2023 NORM'S DOOR SERVICE 1,291.77 N 

139247 04/04/2023 ODEYS INCORPORATED 4,241.81 N 

139248 04/04/2023 OFFICE DEPOT INC 287.46 N 

139249 04/04/2023 OMAHA SLINGS INCORPORATED 371.91 N 

139250 04/04/2023 OMAHA TACTICAL LLC 5,495.00 N 

139251 04/04/2023 OMNI ENGINEERING 1,828.75 N 
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User: mgustafson 
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139252 04/04/2023 ON YOUR MARKS INC 857.86 N 

139253 04/04/2023 ONE CALL CONCEPTS INC 88.40 N 

139254 04/04/2023 PAPILLION SANITATION 1,728.13 N 

139255 04/04/2023 PETTY CASH 150.00 N 

139256 04/04/2023 QUALITY AUTO REPAIR & TOWING, INC. 123.00 N 

139257 04/04/2023 ROG PLANNING & DESIGN 1,742.50 N 

139258 04/04/2023 RTG BUILDING SERVICES INC 6,765.00 N 

139259 04/04/2023 SIGN IT 170.00 N 

139260 04/04/2023 SOLBERG, CHRISTOPHER 256.32 N 

139261 04/04/2023 SOUTHERN UNIFORM AND TACTICAL, INC. 1,966.69 N 

139262 04/04/2023 SPENCER, KATIE 164.00 N 

139263 04/04/2023 SPIC & SPAN LINEN SPLY (SPIN LINEN) 92.50 N 

139264 04/04/2023 STARBUCKS CORPORATION 8.26 N 

139265 04/04/2023 STREICHER'S, INC. 1,323.83 N 

139266 04/04/2023 THE COLONIAL PRESS, INC 14,721.55 N 

139267 04/04/2023 THE FILTER SHOP, INC. 150.84 N 

139268 04/04/2023 THE SCHEMMER ASSOCIATES INC 612.50 N 

139269 04/04/2023 THOMPSON DREESSEN & DORNER, INC. 4,000.00 N 

139270 04/04/2023 TRADE WELL PALLET INC 360.00 N 

139271 04/04/2023 TY'S OUTDOOR POWER & SERVICE 928.73 N 

139272 04/04/2023 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 13.34 N 

139273 04/04/2023 VAL VERDE ANIMAL HO SPIT AL INC 54.00 N 

139274 04/04/2023 VALERIE NINAS 916.75 N 

139275 04/04/2023 VERIZON CONNECT NWF, INC. 501 .89 N 

139276 04/04/2023 VERIZON WIRELESS 18.02 N 

139277 04/04/2023 VIERREGGER ELECTRIC COMPANY 4,021.23 N 

139278 04/04/2023 VINCENTINI PLUMBING INC 8,160.00 N 

139279 04/04/2023 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC 510.39 N 

139280 04/04/2023 WOODHOUSE FORD-BLAIR 116.56 N 

123 CHECKS PRINTED TOTAL CLAIM AMOUNT: $2,081,315.27 0 
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ITEM _______ 

CITY OF LA VISTA 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORT 

APRIL 4, 2023 AGENDA 

Subject: Type: Submitted By: 

AUDITED ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE 
FINANCIAL REPORT FOR  RESOLUTION
FISCAL YEAR ENDED ORDINANCE KEVIN POKORNY 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 RECEIVE/FILE DIRECTOR OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

SYNOPSIS 

A resolution has been prepared to accept the following reports: 
- The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (Annual Report) for the fiscal year ended September 30,

2022, including the independent auditor’s report and the auditor’s Report on Compliance with
Government Accounting Standards

- The Financial Report for the Economic Development Fund – LB840, including the independent
auditor’s report.

- The Independent audit report on Expenditures of Federal Awards

FISCAL IMPACT 

N/A. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approval. 

BACKGROUND 

The Annual Report, while facilitating transparency and full disclosure, goes beyond the minimum requirements 
of generally accepted accounting principles to not only assess the financial health of the City but to ensure that 
users of the financial statements have the information they need to do so themselves. The transmittal letter, 
management discussion and analysis, required supplementary information and statistical section enhance the 
presentation of the financial statements and note disclosures. 

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certification of Achievement for Excellence 
in Financial Reporting (COA) to the City of La Vista for its Annual Report for the fiscal year ended September 
30, 2021. This is the third year the City has achieved this prestigious award. A Certificate of Achievement is 
valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current Annual Report will meet the COA Program’s 
requirements and will once again submit it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility. 

The certified public accountants, Bergan KDV, LLP have submitted to the City their Independent Auditor’s 
Report (included in the Annual Report) and the Report on Compliance with Government Auditing Standards. 

B



The auditor’s reports state that the City’s financial statements were tested and present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the City and disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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 RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA, NEBRASKA 
ACCEPTING THE AUDITED ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE 
TWELVE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022, THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND AND THE INDEPENDENT AUDIT ON EXPENDITURES OF 
FEDERAL FUNDS AS PREPARED BY THE AUDITING FIRM OF BERGAN KDV, LLP, OMAHA, 
NEBRASKA. 
  
WHEREAS, the City of La Vista has contracted with the firm of Bergan KDV, LLP, Omaha, 

Nebraska, to complete an audit of the City’s municipal operations for the twelve 
months ended September 30, 2022; and 

 
WHEREAS, Bergan KDV, LLP has completed said audit and provided copies of their findings. 
 
WHEREAS, Bergan KDV, LLP has also completed the financial report for the Economic 

Development Fund and the independent audit report on Expenditures of Federal 
Awards 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of La Vista, Nebraska, 

that the audited annual comprehensive financial report for the twelve months ended 
September 30, 2022, the financial report for the economic development fund and 
the independent audit on expenditures of federal funds is hereby accepted. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 4TH DAY OF APRIL 2023. 
 
 CITY OF LA VISTA 
 
 
       
       
 Douglas Kindig, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Pamela A. Buethe, MMC 
City Clerk 
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March 30, 2023

Honorable Mayor, City Council,                                                                                                                                  
and Residents of La Vista, Nebraska

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the City of La Vista, Nebraska (the “City,” “La Vista,” or “City of La 
Vista”) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022, is hereby submitted. State law requires cities to issue, within 
six months of the fiscal year end, a set of audited financial statements. This report fulfills this requirement for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2022.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including 
all disclosures, rests with the management. In developing and evaluating the City’s accounting system, 
consideration is given to the adequacy of internal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed 
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding the safeguarding of assets against loss, theft, or 
misuse, and to ensure the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) and maintaining accountability 
of assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of control should not exceed the 
benefits likely to be derived and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by 
management.

As a recipient of federal, state, and local financial assistance, the City is also responsible for ensuring that an 
adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure and document compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations related to these programs.

To the best of management’s knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and 
reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and activities of the City. All disclosures 
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the government’s financial activities as specified by all 
currently effective statements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board have been included.

The City’s financial statements have been audited by Bergan KDV LLC, a firm of licensed certified public 
accountants. The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements 
of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022, are free of material misstatement. The independent 
audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, 
that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the City’s financial statements for the 
fiscal year ending September 30, 2022, are fairly presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles (“GAAP”). The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of this report.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and 
analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of a Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(“MD&A”). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with 
it. The City’s MD&A can be found in the Financial Section immediately following the Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY PROFILE 
Just south of the faint boundaries of Omaha, everyday priorities are clearer. The newest city in the greater Omaha 
region, La Vista is a special place experiencing remarkable growth and flourishing with opportunity. From modest 
beginnings in 1960 as a subdivision of 335 homes, La Vista has grown to become a dynamic and progressive 
community of nearly 17,000 and one of the fastest growing cities in Nebraska. 

La Vista is a thoughtful, ambitious, family-friendly community, with tight-knit relationships and timeless traditions, 
while also offering the opportunities of a large city. Its inviting neighborhoods feature well-kept homes abutting 
tree-lined streets. The City offers an exceptional quality of life in a great suburban environment, and the people 
who live and work in La Vista are truly proud of their community.

Driven by a reputation for progressive thinking, La Vista always keeps an eye on what’s next. And this vision 
amounts to more than a plan on paper – it leads to action in the real world. La Vista’s commercial and industrial 
districts, with solid infrastructure and a convenient location, are undergoing impressive development and 
redevelopment.

The City of La Vista operates under the Mayor-Council form of government. The Mayor is elected at large to a 
four-year term, and eight City Council members are elected from four, dual-member wards, to staggered four-year 
terms. The Mayor, with confirmation from the City Council, appoints a professional City Administrator and certain 
other officials as identified in the La Vista Municipal Code. The City Administrator manages the day-to-day 
operations of the City, and the organization is streamlined under four senior directors, who have responsibility for 
the following function areas: Public Safety, Public Works, Community Services, and Administrative Services.

The City Council is required to adopt a budget no later than September 20 of the prior fiscal year. A biennial 
budget is adopted each even numbered year for the following two years and in the odd numbered years is 
reviewed for a possible amendment. 

The FY23 – FY24 Biennial Budget marks the City’s third biennial budget which serves as the foundation for the 
City’s financial planning and control. The budget is prepared by fund and department. The City’s legal level of 
budget control is at the department level. The City may reallocate expenditures between departments as long as 
the total expenditures within the fund do not exceed the adopted appropriation. 

LOCAL ECONOMY
La Vista’s Southport area has grown into a regional destination with businesses such as Cabela’s, Costco, Alamo 
Drafthouse, Nebraska Multi-Sport Complex (opening spring 2023) and the La Vista Conference Center along with 
over 750 hotel rooms. 

La Vista’s corporate community also includes Verizon Media (Oath Holdings), Streck Laboratories, Oriental 
Trading Co., Rotella’s, and Securities America, among many others.

Elementary and secondary education is provided through Papillion La Vista Community Schools, the fourth 
largest school district in the State, and the Omaha Catholic Archdiocese, which operates schools in adjoining 
Ralston and Papillion. Pre-kindergarten education is available through the private Primrose Academy and two 
Montessori Schools.

La Vista residents enjoy exceptional higher education opportunities as well. The University of Nebraska at Omaha 
(UNO), Creighton University, and Bellevue University are easily accessible locally. Metropolitan Community 
College’s Sarpy Center is located in La Vista, and the University of Nebraska at Lincoln is only 45 minutes away. 

La Vista’s diverse and high-quality housing stock provides a wide range of residential options. With 14 parks, a 
premier 62-acre sports complex, swimming pool, community center, youth and senior recreation programs, and an 
outstanding public library, leisure time opportunities abound.

The overall quality of life in the City of La Vista was rated as “excellent” or “good” by 90% of respondents to the 
2019 National Community Survey. Ninety-four percent of respondents reported that they plan to remain in La Vista 
for the next five years.
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LONG-RANGE FINANCIAL PLANNING
On June 15, 2021, the City Council approved a General Fund Cash Reserve Policy to ensure that the General 
Fund Reserve balance is accumulated and maintained to protect the stability of tax rates, fiscal solvency, and 
creditworthiness of the City. The policy establishes a target reserve range of 20% to 25% of the year’s General 
Fund operating expenditure budget. Based on the FY 2022 budget and the unassigned cash balance in the 
General Fund on September 30, 2022, the operating cash reserve is 68%. The excess reserve primarily relates to 
the sales and use tax reserve associated with State’s economic development incentive programs, a CARES Act 
grant for public safety salaries and benefits, and American Rescue Plan Act grant. 

The Long-Range Financial Plan (LRFP) with 10-year projections has been incorporated in to the budget process 
and looks at long term impacts of current commitments and long-range strategic planning goals through FY32.  
The current LRFP shows a drawdown of the General Fund Reserve balance over the next several years for 
additional personnel services and operational expenditures associated with City Centre development, the Astro 
event venue, development of the adjacent Central Park, and the Nebraska Multi-Sports Complex.

The City maintains a five-year Capital Improvement Program as a proactive approach to sustain and improve the 
community’s infrastructure. The plan establishes priorities and funding for capital investments, which the City of La 
Vista should make to assure its continued economic viability and to protect public health and safety. The plan is 
updated annually in conjunction with the budget process. The first and second years of the plan are adopted as 
the capital budget.

MAJOR INITIATIVES
Corridor 84 is a major redevelopment initiative currently underway along a major north-south corridor in the heart 
of the City. A private developer is constructing a mixed-use town center “City Centre” consisting of residential, 
commercial/retail, office, and an entertainment component that includes the Astro, a state-of-the-art indoor/
outdoor performance venue. In conjunction with this project, the City is constructing public infrastructure that 
supports the development including streets, sewers, parking facilities, and public plaza spaces. The City is also in 
the process of transforming what was an adjacent golf course into a regional recreation area that connects to the 
City’s existing Central Park. The transformation includes a large lake, trails, and other amenities. Additional 
planned corridor improvements include a bridge and pedestrian underpass to connect the east and west sides of 
the community and streetscape improvements that will integrate pedestrian pathways, lighting, landscaping, and 
signage improvements to clearly identify the La Vista community. 

Construction of the Nebraska Multi-Sport Complex (NMSC) is scheduled for completion during the spring of 2023 
with twelve multi-purpose lighted and turf fields as a first stage of the NMSC development in the 120th and Giles 
Road area.

The City’s infrastructure projects are included in the five-year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and long-range 
operational needs, such as staffing and maintenance, are ongoing discussions and budget considerations.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certification of Achievement for Excellence in 
Financial Reporting to the City of La Vista for its annual comprehensive financial report for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2021. This is the second year the City has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded 
a Certificate of Achievement, the government had to publish an easily readable and efficiently organized annual 
report that satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current annual report will 
meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and will once again submit it to the GFOA to 
determine its eligibility for a certificate.
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Preparation of this report on a timely basis could not be accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services 
of the Finance Department. I would like to express my appreciation to members of all the departments who 
assisted and contributed to its preparation. I would also like to thank the Mayor and members of the City Council 
for their interest and support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible and 
progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Brenda S. Gunn 
City Administrator
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Honorable Mayor and Members 
of the City Cot1Ucil 

City of L1 Vista 
La Vista, Nebraska 

berganKov 
Independent Auditor's Report 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ihe. governmental activities, the business­
type activities, and each major fund of the City of La Vista, Nebraska, as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2022, and the. related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the City 
of La Vista's basic financial staten1ents as listed in the Table of Contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-t}'J)C activities, and each major 
fund of the City ofL1 Vista, Nebraska, as of September 30, 2022, and the respective changes in 
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
acco1U1ting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 
We conducted our audit in accordance v.~th auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment AudWng 
Standards, issued by the Con1ptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our re.port. We are required to be independent of the City of La Vista and to meet our other 
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requiren1ents relating to our audit. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to pro\,ide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Tue City of La Vista's management is responsible for the preparation and fuir presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance v.~th accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this inc hides the design, in1plementatiou, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fuir presentation of financial staten1ents that are free fron1 material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of La Vista's ability to 
continue as a going concern for one year beyond the financial statement date, including any currently 
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

BERGANKDV, I.LC I 8ERGANKDV.COM I DO MORE. 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the finaudal Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinions. Rea~onable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstaten1enr resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controt 
Misstaten1ents are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user ba<red on the financ.ial 
staten1ents. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticiSlll throughout the audit. 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the au1ounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing au 
opinion on the effectiveness of City of La Vista's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion 
is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgn1ent, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about City of La Vista's ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the pla11Ued scope and tinting of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Requfrecl Supplementa1,· Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis, which follows this report letter, and Required Supplementary information as 
listed in the Table of Contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of managen1ent and, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Acco1mting Standards Board (GASB), who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in au appropriate 
operational, econolllic, or historical context. We have applied certain linlited procedures to the Required 
Supplementary Infomiation in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of nianagement about the methods of preparing the 
infom1ation and comparing the information for con~ency with managen1ent's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We. do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information becau~e 
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

BERG•\ NKDV, lLC I BERGAN KOV.COM I DO MORE . 
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Supplemeurnrr Iuformariou 
Our audit was conducted for the pU1pose of form.ing opinious on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City of La Vista, Nebraska's basic financial statements. The other 
Supplen1eutary Iufom1ation as listed in the Table ofComents is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial staten1ents. 

Such information is the re.sp011Sibility of mauagen1ent and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accotmting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The iufomtation 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and 
certa.in additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such iufomiation directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
f111ancial statements thentselves, and other additional procedures in accordance ,,ith auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Other Supplementary 
Infomiation is fairly stated, in all niaterial respects, in relation to the. basic fuiaucial statements as a 
whole. 

Other Iufonnatiou 
Manageu1ent is responsible for the other iufomiatiou iuch1ded in the Annual Con1preheusive Financial 
Report. The other iufomiatiou comprises the introductory and statistical sectious but does not include 
the basic financial statements and our auditors report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial 
statements do not cover the other iufomiatiou, and we do not express an opinion or any form of 
assurance thereon. 

In collllectiou with our audit of the basic financial statements, our respousibility is to read the other 
iufom1ation and cousider whether a lll3terial incon~istency exists between the other iufom1atiou and the 
basic financial statements, or the other iufomtatiou otherwise appears to be uiaterially misstated. If, 
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected uiaterial misstaten1eut of the other 
iufom1atiou exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 

Other Reporting Required by Go,·eru111e11t .411diti11g Stmulards 
In accordance v.~th Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 28, 
2023, on our consideration of the City of La Vista's internal control over flll3llcial reporting and on our 
tests of its con1pliance v.~th certa.in provisious of laws, regulati011S, contracts and grant agreen1euts and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
the effectiveness of internal control ove.r financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of 
La Vista's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

St. G1oud, Minnesota 
March 28, 2023 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022
This section of the City of La Vista, Nebraska (The “City” or “City of La Vista”) Annual Comprehensive financial 
report offers readers of the City’s financial statements a narrative overview and analysis of the City’s financial 
activities as a whole for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022. Please consider this discussion in conjunction 
with the additional information provided in the Letter of Transmittal and the activities reflected in the City’s financial 
statements.

Financial Highlights
• The assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at 

September 30, 2022, by $77.8 million. Of this amount, $24.9 million is unrestricted and may be used to 
meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

• The City’s total net position increased by $7.6 million, or 10.9% from the prior year. Of this amount, 
$6.6 million, or 87%, is related to governmental activities and $1.0 million, or 13%, is related to business-
type activities.

• As of September 30, 2022, the unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $16.2 million or 79% 
of total operating General Fund expenditures. As of September 30, 2021 the corresponding fund balance 
amount was 9.1 million or 54% of total operating General Fund expenditures.

• The City’s total bonded debt increased by $33.9 million, or 67.8% during the current fiscal year.

• As of September 30, 2022, the City’s general obligation bond rating from Moody’s Investor Service is Aa3.

• The City’s cash balance as of September 30, 2022, is $63,121,770.

• The City’s certified valuation for fiscal year 2022 was $1,998,058,005 compared to $1,755,107,309 for 
fiscal year 2021. This equates to a 13.8% increase in overall valuation. The County Assessor’s certified 
growth for fiscal year 2022 was $198.7 million which reflects growth in new construction.

Overview of the Financial Statements
The City’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles established by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”).

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. The 
City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund 
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.

The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements which present different views of the City.

• The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and short- 
term information about the City’s overall financial status.

• The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the City 
government, reporting the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements.

• The governmental fund statements indicate how general governmental services such as public safety 
were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.

• Proprietary fund statements offer short and long-term financial information about the activities the 
government operates like businesses, such as the sewer system.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and 
provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information and 
other supplementary information which include fund budgetary comparisons. These statements further explain 
and support the information in the financial schedules.

Government-Wide Statements
The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods similar 
to those used by private-sector companies. The Statement of Net Position includes all the government’s assets 
and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Activities 
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regardless of when cash is received or paid. The two government-wide statements begin on page 30 and report 
the City’s net position and how it has changed.

The Statement of Net Position presents the difference between the City’s assets and deferred outflows of 
resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources.

• Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial health 
is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

• To assess the overall health of the City one needs to consider additional non-financial factors such as 
changes in the City’s property tax base and the condition of the City’s capital assets.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event of the change 
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. This is the accrual basis of accounting. Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal months 
(e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

The government-wide financial statements of the City are divided into two categories:

• Governmental activities - Most of the City’s basic services are included here. This includes police, streets, 
fire, library, planning, building inspection, parks, recreation departments, and general administration. 
Property and sales taxes, charges for services, and state and federal grants finance most of these 
activities.

• Business-type activities - The City charges fees to customers to help it cover the costs of certain services 
it provides. The City’s sewer system is currently the only business type activity.

Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s funds - not the City as a whole. 
Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for 
particular purposes.

• Some funds are required by state law and bond covenants.

• The City Council establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes. 

The City has two types of funds:

Governmental Funds - Most of the City’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus on 
(1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash and (2) the balances left at year-end 
that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term 
view which helps determine whether there are greater or fewer financial resources which can be spent in the near 
future to finance the City’s programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term 
focus of the government-wide statements, a reconciliation to the Statement of Activities is provided which explains 
the relationship (or differences) between them. By comparing the governmental activities in the government-wide 
financial statements the reader may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term 
financing decisions.

Fund information is presented separately in the governmental fund Balance Sheet and in the governmental fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Statement.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 34 through 40 of this report.

The City adopts a biennial appropriated budget for all its funds. Budgetary comparison schedules have been 
provided for the General Fund, Keno Fund, and Police Academy Funds to demonstrate compliance with this 
budget. These schedules can be found on pages 68 through 71 of this report. For other legally adopted fund 
budgets, these schedules can be found on pages 74 through 77 of this report.

City of La Vista, Nebraska Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
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Proprietary funds - Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported in proprietary 
funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statements, provide both long and short-term financial 
information. In fact, the City’s enterprise fund (one type of proprietary fund) is the same as its business-type 
activities, but provides more detail and additional information, such as a Statement of Cash Flows.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 41 through 43 of this report.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 45 
through 65 of this report.

Required Supplementary Information
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required 
supplementary information concerning the City’s 2022 budget information for various City funds. Required 
supplementary information can be found on pages 68 through 71 of this report.

Other Supplementary Information
This section contains legally adopted budget information for funds not previously included in the required 
supplementary information. These schedules are found on pages 74 through 77 of this report.

Financial Analysis of the City as a Whole
Net Position
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the 
case of the City, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $77.8 
million at September 30, 2022.

The largest portion of the City’s net position (50.8%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, 
infrastructure, buildings, machinery, and equipment) less any related outstanding debt to acquire those assets still 
outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not 
available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it 
should be noted, the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital 
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. Unrestricted net position may be used to meet the 
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.
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Condensed Statements of Net Position
September 30, 2022 and 2021

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Current and other 
assets $ 74,374,040 $ 38,667,408 $ 7,026,723 $ 5,156,883 $ 81,400,763 $ 43,824,291 
Capital assets  85,169,972  78,099,716  4,675,144  4,689,291  89,845,116  82,789,007 
Total assets  159,544,012  116,767,124  11,701,867  9,846,174  171,245,879  126,613,298 

Deferred outflows of 
resources  813,478  876,912  —  —  813,478  876,912 

Long-term liabilities  79,811,117  47,445,026  104,789  67,240  79,915,906  47,512,266 
Other liabilities  13,033,782  9,316,745  1,324,639  511,116  14,358,421  9,827,861 
Total liabilities  92,844,899  56,761,771  1,429,428  578,356  94,274,327  57,340,127 

Deferred inflows of 
resources  —  —  —  —  —  — 

Net position:
Net investment in 

capital assets  34,848,404  37,559,118  4,675,144  4,689,291  39,523,548  42,248,409 
Restricted  13,391,822  12,968,570  —  —  13,391,822  12,968,570 
Unrestricted  19,272,365  10,354,577  5,597,295  4,578,527  24,869,660  14,933,104 

Total Net Position $ 67,512,591 $ 60,882,265 $ 10,272,439 $ 9,267,818 $ 77,785,030 $ 70,150,083 

An additional portion of the City’s net position (17.2%) represents resources subject to external restrictions on 
their use. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position (32.0%) may be used to meet the government’s 
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City reports positive balances in all three categories of net position, both 
for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.

In addition to the General Fund departments listed on page 21, these funds are included in governmental 
activities expenditures:

Expenditure Category Fund
General Government Debt Service Fund

Keno Fund (audit expenditures)

Public Safety Police Academy Fund

Community Betterment Keno Fund (remaining expenditures)

Community Development Redevelopment Fund
Economic Development Fund

City of La Vista, Nebraska Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
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Condensed Statements of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022 and 2021

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
9/30/2022 9/30/2021 9/30/2022 9/30/2021

Revenues
Program revenues

Charges for services $ 2,450,788 $ 2,481,278 $ 5,157,748 $ 4,637,741 
Operating grants & contributions  5,151,858  2,087,869  —  — 
Capital grants & contributions  —  120,676  —  — 

General revenues
Property taxes  11,477,480  10,082,913  —  — 
Sales and use taxes  9,449,353  9,096,486  —  — 
Occupation taxes  2,862,435  2,395,210  —  — 
Motor vehicle taxes  513,195  517,238  —  — 
In lieu of taxes  221,485  214,639  —  — 
Interest income  135,203  75,412  17,506  9,018 
Miscellaneous  704,174  780,683  —  — 

Total Revenues  32,965,971  27,852,404  5,175,254  4,646,759 

Expenses
General government  6,464,416  4,933,287  —  — 
Public safety  8,810,890  8,496,120  —  — 
Public works  4,601,354  5,021,900  —  — 
Culture and recreation  3,576,740  3,221,142  —  — 
Community betterment  553,825  659,766  —  — 
Community development  853,483  925,830  —  — 
Interest on long-term debt  1,474,787  925,554  —  — 
Sewer  —  —  4,170,783  3,859,354 

Total Expenses  26,335,495  24,183,599  4,170,783  3,859,354 

Increase in Net Position Before Transfers  6,630,476  3,668,805  1,004,471  787,405 

Transfers  (150)  (665)  150  665 
Total Transfers  (150)  (665)  150  665 

Increase in Net Position  6,630,326  3,668,140  1,004,621  788,070 

Net position - beginning  60,882,265  57,214,125  9,267,818  8,479,748 

Net position - ending $ 67,512,591 $ 60,882,265 $ 10,272,439 $ 9,267,818 
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Condensed Statements of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022 and 2021 (Continued)

Total
9/30/2022 9/30/2021

Revenues
Program revenues

Charges for services $ 7,608,536 $ 7,119,019 
Operating grants & contributions  5,151,858  2,087,869 
Capital grants & contributions  —  120,676 

General revenues
Property taxes  11,477,480  10,082,913 
Sales and use taxes  9,449,353  9,096,486 
Occupation taxes  2,862,435  2,395,210 
Motor vehicle taxes  513,195  517,238 
In lieu of taxes  221,485  214,639 
Interest income  152,709  84,430 
Miscellaneous  704,174  780,683 

Total Revenues  38,141,225  32,499,163 

Expenses
General government  6,464,416  4,933,287 
Public safety  8,810,890  8,496,120 
Public works  4,601,354  5,021,900 
Culture and recreation  3,576,740  3,221,142 
Community betterment  553,825  659,766 
Community development  853,483  925,830 
Interest on long-term debt  1,474,787  925,554 
Sewer  4,170,783  3,859,354 

Total Expenses  30,506,278  28,042,953 

Increase in Net Position Before Transfers  7,634,947  4,456,210 

Transfers  —  — 
Total Transfers  —  — 

Increase in Net Position  7,634,947  4,456,210 

Net position - beginning  70,150,083  65,693,873 

Net position - ending $ 77,785,030 $ 70,150,083 
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Governmental Activities

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

  Charges for Services 
7.4%

  Operating Grants & 
Contributions 15.6%

  Property Taxes 34.8%

  Sales and Use Taxes 
28.7%

  Occupation Taxes 8.7%

  Motor Vehicle Taxes 
1.6%

  In Lieu of Taxes 0.7%

  Interest Income 0.4%

  Miscellaneous 2.1%

Expenses by Category - Governmental Activities

General Government 24.5%

Public Safety 33.5%

Public Works 17.5%

Culture and Recreation 13.6%

Community Betterment 2.1%

Community Development 3.2%
Interest on Long-term Debt 5.6%

FINANCIAL SECTION

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022 17



Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $6.6 million. Key elements of the $2,962,186 year 
over year increase in net position activity are as follows:  

• Operating grants and contributions increased $3,063,989 (146.8%) in fiscal year 2022 due to the 
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act federal grant related to reimbursement for public 
safety expenses received in fiscal year 2021.  

• The Omaha Public Power District payment in lieu of taxes decreased $127,132 due to an update to the 
distribution formula.

• Capital grants and contributions decreased $(120,676) ((100.0)%) in fiscal year 2022, due to the Omaha 
Public Power District charging station grant in Parking District #1.

• Property tax revenues increased  $1,394,567 (13.8%) in fiscal year 2022 due to a 13.8% increase  in the 
property valuations and collection of back year taxes.

• Net sales tax revenues increased by $352,867 (3.9%) in fiscal year 2022.

▪ Gross sales and use tax revenues increased $1,846,696 (17.2%) in fiscal year 2022.

• State sales and use tax refunds increased $1,493,829 (92.3%) in fiscal year 2022. The refunds act as 
a decrease in revenue.  The Nebraska Advantage Act allows eligible businesses refunds of their state 
sales and use tax payments.

• Occupation taxes increased by $467,225 (19.5%) due a gradual recovery of the hospitality industry from 
the pandemic through increase hotel occupation tax revenue.

• General government expenses increased $1,531,129 (31.0%) related to bond refinancing expenditures 
and increased tax increment financing (TIF) payments to the developer of City Centre.

• Public safety expenses increased $314,770 (3.7%) primarily related to the annual increase in the Papillion 
Rural Fire District contract, a full year of salary and benefits for positions that were vacant part of the prior 
fiscal year and increased overtime and expenses for a missing child investigation in fiscal year 2022.

• Public Works expenses decreased $420,546 (8.4%) related to depreciation expense.

• Culture and recreation expenses increased $355,598 (11.0%) due to re-opening of the pool in fiscal year 
2022 which was closed in fiscal year 2021 and a full year of part-time employees in fiscal year 2022 
where Recreation and Library furloughed part-time employees from March to August in fiscal year 2021.

• Community betterment expenses decreased $(105,941) ((16.1)%) due to decrease in state lottery tax on 
increased community betterment revenues.

• Community development expenses decreased $(72,347) ((7.8)%) due to bond refinancing expenses in 
fiscal year 2022.

• Interest on long term debt expenses increased $549,233 (59.3%) due to refunding bonds issued.

Business-Type Activities
Business type activities increased the City’s net position by $1.0 million, or 13% of the total growth in the net 
position of the City.

The City’s enterprise operations are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revenues and expenses are adjusted as 
necessary to maintain an adequate amount of working capital. The City has decided to account for these activities 
through the use of enterprise accounting to better identify the cost of the services and for better management 
control.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related legal 
requirements.

Governmental Funds
The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances 
of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular, 
unassigned fund balance may serve as a measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the 
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end of the fiscal year. As the City completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of 
$67.4 million. Of that fund balance, $16.2 million constitutes unassigned fund balance.

The General Fund is the main operating fund of the City. At the end of fiscal year 2022, the unassigned fund 
balance of the general fund was $16.2 million. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to 
compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. The unassigned fund 
balance is 96% of the total General Fund balance. The unassigned fund balance represents 79% of the total 2022 
General Fund expenditures. This exceeds the fund balance reserve policy to maintain a target reserve range from 
20% to 25%. This percentage of fund to expenditure ratio is important for the City to mitigate current and future 
risk, such as revenue shortfalls or unanticipated expenditures in capital or maintenance needs of City 
infrastructure and facilities. In addition, through the state’s Nebraska Advantage Act incentive program, the City 
may need to refund earned sales taxes over several years into the future. To mitigate the revenue loss, the City 
maintains a reserve to offset these refunds. This state sales and use tax reserve balance is $3.8 million. Excluding 
this amount from the general fund reserve balance the reserve balance is 61% which represents approximately 
seven months of operating expense. The increase in fund balance of $5.1 million is primarily related to a revenue 
increase of additional property tax, sales tax and occupation tax collections. 

The Debt Service Fund provides for the servicing of bonded debt issued for governmental activities regarding the 
general obligation bonds and notes from direct placements. At the end of the current fiscal year, the restricted 
fund balance was $3.6 million which represents 66% of the scheduled principal and interest payments of the 
currently issued general obligation bonds and notes from direct placements due in the next twelve months. The 
decrease in fund balance of $84,938 is primarily related to the bond refinancing activity.

The Keno Fund is restricted for community betterment as defined by Nebraska State Statutes. At the end of the 
fiscal year 2022, the restricted fund balance was $4.7 million which is a 139,350 increase from the prior year. The 
increase is primarily due to the changes in community activities due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the increased 
revenue trend that began in 2020 due to other closed outlets. Current year revenue was used for community 
events such as drive-thru Easter Egg Hunt, Santa’s Sleigh Ride in July, Halloween Safe-Night drive-thru and 
Santa’s Winter Wonderland walk and photo event. Funds are also directed to strategic initiatives such as the 
City’s brand development and capital improvement projects such as mini-park improvements including a dog park. 
These funds will continue to be used in the future for community betterment purposes as allowed by the state.

The Capital Improvements Fund accounts for the City’s construction projects. The fund balance of $11.4 million is 
restricted for various capital projects. The increase in fund balance of $7.8 million is due to the unexpended 
balances from issuance of debt transferred in from the Debt Service Fund.

The activity in the Economic Development Program Fund is $3.0 million due to debt issuance.  Two grant 
applications were approved in 2021 for the Astro performance venue and the Nebraska Multi-Sport Complex. The 
fund balance is restricted for future grant activity.

The 84th Street Redevelopment Fund was created to track proceeds of the additional one-half percent sales and 
use tax and related expenditures for public infrastructure projects or public purposes associated with 
redevelopment of the 84th Street corridor. The Redevelopment Fund is not exclusive and other funds of the City 
may be involved with respect to the 84th Street Redevelopment Area. At the end of the current fiscal year, the 
restricted fund balance was $22.3 million which is an increase of $17.6 million from one year ago. The increase is 
a result of issuance of refunding debt. The tax revenue bond debt service is paid through the 84th Street 
Redevelopment Fund.

The Sarpy-Douglas Law Enforcement Academy (SDLEA) is the primary activity of the Police Academy Fund. The 
fund balance of $131,072 is restricted for SDLEA activities. The increase in fund balance of $52,526 is due to an 
agency now paying tuition and fees rather than supplying the in-kind services of an instructor.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights
Significant variances between the general fund’s actual revenues and expenditures (on the budgetary basis) and 
the final amended budget are summarized as follows:

• Net sales tax revenue was over budget by $785,814.

• Occupation tax including Hotel and Restaurant tax revenue was over budget by $329,118.

• Intergovernmental revenue was over budget by $115,195.

• Miscellaneous revenue was under budget by $187,021.

• Charges for Services revenue was under budget by $153,714.

Increased revenue for online sales tax and a faster recovery in the hospitality industry from the COVID-19 
pandemic positively impacted actual revenue.  Intergovernmental revenue in the form of highway allocation funds 
increased due to estimated highway user revenue collected. Miscellaneous revenue was under budget mainly due 
to retirement forfeitures for civilian and police went uncollected and remain the retirement fund. Finally, charges 
for services includes miscellaneous charges in fees throughout the year. In FY22, there was a significant 
decrease in requests for records and other services which have a fee.

• General government activity was $1,698,191 below budget due to reduced use of contract services,the 
HRA (Health Reimbursement Arrangement) for employee share health plan deductibles and an extra pay 
period budgeted but was booked into FY21.

• Public works activity was $744,435 below budget due to vacant positions and an extra pay period 
budgeted but was booked into FY21.

• Public safety activity was $165,554 below budget due to vacant positions and an extra pay period 
budgeted but was booked into FY21.

• Culture and recreation was $500,207 below budget due to vacancies in Parks, Recreation and Sports 
Complex departments and reduced commodities and contracts in the Recreation department and an extra 
pay period budgeted but was booked into FY21.

• The Library Department was $196,390 below budget due to vacant part-time salaries, material, and 
contract expenditures and an extra pay period budgeted but was booked into FY21.

General Fund Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022

Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual

Revenues
Taxes $ 17,243,402 $ 18,780,583 $ 19,044,812 
Charges for services  388,671  417,671  263,957 
Other  2,776,488  4,408,131  4,449,038 

Total  20,408,561  23,606,385  23,757,807 

Expenditures, lapsed encumbrances, 
and transfers  21,388,371  23,400,749  19,659,355 
Changes in fund balance $ (979,810) $ 205,636 $ 4,098,452 
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General Fund Revenues - Actual

Property taxes 39.2%

Sales and use taxes 23.6%

Occupation taxes 10.8%

Motor vehicle taxes 1.9%

In lieu of taxes 0.8%
Licenses and permits 2.2%

Intergovernmental 19.9%

Charges for services 1.3% Miscellaneous 0.3%

General Fund Expenditures - Actual

General government 23.9%

Public works 10.1%

Public safety 37.7%

Culture and recreation 14.2%

Community development 3.1%

State sales tax refunds 7.3%

Capital outlay 3.4% Debt service 0.3%

The following departments are included in the General Fund Expense Categories Chart 
above.

General Government Public Works Culture and Recreation
Mayor & Council Administration Parks
Boards & Commissions Streets Sports Complex
City Administration Recreation
Administrative Services Pool
Human Resources Library
Finance
Information Technology Public Safety Community Development
Public Transportation Police Community Development
Special Services Bus Fire
Building Maintenance Animal Control
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Proprietary Fund
Expense and Program Revenues - Business Type Activities

Sewer

Income Expenses

$0

$2,500,000

$5,000,000

The City’s Sewer Fund provides the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements, 
but in more detail.

The total proprietary fund unrestricted net position at the end of the year was $5.9 million. Factors concerning the 
finances of this fund are addressed in the discussion of the City’s business-type activities.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets
The City’s capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of September 30, 2022, equals 
$89.8 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes vehicles, furniture, 
land, buildings, and system improvements, including construction-in-progress, machinery and equipment, park 
facilities, utility systems, roads, highways, and bridges. The net increase in the City’s capital assets for the current 
year was $7.1 million. This increase over the prior year results from the depreciation of assets being less than 
than new asset purchases and an increase in construction-in-progress. This is a 9.1% increase for governmental 
activities and a decrease of 0.3% for business type activities.

Capital Assets (net of depreciation)
September 30, 2022 and 2021

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Land $ 15,609,324 $ 15,609,324 $ 9,524 $ 9,524 $ 15,618,848 $ 15,618,848 
Buildings  8,135,204  9,046,800  —  —  8,135,204  9,046,800 
Improvements/
Infrastructure  35,324,759  32,391,277  —  —  35,324,759  32,391,277 
Equipment/Furniture/
Vehicles  2,832,529  2,789,378  432,879  519,043  3,265,408  3,308,421 
Sewer line system  —  —  3,772,693  3,928,823  3,772,693  3,928,823 
Construction in 
progress  23,268,156  18,262,937  460,048  231,901  23,728,204  18,494,838 

Total $ 85,169,972 $ 78,099,716 $ 4,675,144 $ 4,689,291 $ 89,845,116 $ 82,789,007 
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Major Capital Asset events during 2022 include the following

• Public Infrastructure Improvements:

• Street maintenance including an overlay of UBAS in Giles Corner amounted to $620 thousand in 
expenditures.

• Public infrastructure improvements including parks, library and information technology amounted to 
$355 thousand in expenditures.

Additional Information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 of the notes to the financial statements 
on pages 54 and 55 of this report.

Long Term Debt
At the end of fiscal year 2022, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $83.9 million, all backed by the full 
faith and credit of the government. The City made all scheduled payments.

Outstanding Bonded Debt
September 30, 2022 and 2021

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

General obligation 
bonds $ 41,900,000 $ 29,270,000 $ — $ — $ 41,900,000 $ 29,270,000 
Tax revenue bonds  37,775,000  17,695,000  —  —  37,775,000  17,695,000 
Notes from direct 
placements  1,820,000  2,155,000  —  —  1,820,000  2,155,000 
Premium/discount on 
bonds issued  2,355,005  836,583  —  —  2,355,005  836,583 

Total $ 83,850,005 $ 49,956,583 $ — $ — $ 83,850,005 $ 49,956,583 

The City’s bonded debt increased by 67.8% in fiscal year 2022. The net increase of $33.9 million is a result of 
issuing highway allocations bonds for street infrastructure and Economic Development Program bonds for grantee 
payments.

The City maintains a Aa3 bond rating as issued by Moody’s Investors Service.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 7 on pages 57 through 60 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates
While establishing fiscal year 2023’s budget, the focus is on the long-term future of the City, not simply a one-year 
view. As a result of budgetary planning done in prior years, the City was able to prepare the fiscal 2023 budget 
maintain a 1 cent decrease to the property tax levy from FY20.

The unprecedented outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) had a direct financial impact on the City in 
2020 and 2021. Working with the State of Nebraska, the City was able to secure $1 million in CARES Act relief in 
2020 which was directed toward eligible public safety expenses. In 2021, the City received direct funding from the 
American Rescue Plan Act of 2021. The City received approximately $3.1 million over the FY21 and FY22 which 
replaced City revenue losses and promote economic recovery.
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Revenues:
• Gross sales and use tax receipts are estimated to decrease 1.9%  in 2023. The fiscal year 2023 gross 

sales and use tax budget backed off slightly from the pandemic related online sales growth experienced 
in fiscal year 2022. Sales and use tax incentive refunds are budgeted at $2.0 million in 2023, a 47.6% 
increase from $1.4 in fiscal year 2022. Net sales tax receipts in 2023 are projected at $9.1 million, which 
is a 8.6% decrease from 2022 receipts of $10.0 million on a budget basis. This is due to an increased 
budget for sales tax incentive refunds in 2022 . Sales & use tax is 25% of revenues for the General Fund 
on a budgetary basis and 40% of revenues on a governmental activity basis.

• The City’s assessed property tax valuation for the year ending September 30, 2022, is $1,998,058,005 
which is 13.8% higher compared to the year ended September 30, 2021, due primarily to an increase in 
property values within city limits. Property tax is a significant revenue source and accounts for 
approximately 46% of General Fund revenues on a budgetary basis and 44% of revenues on a 
governmental activity basis.

• The City anticipated continued commercial build out of the 84th Street corridor, Southport commercial 
district  to increase future year’s sales tax and property tax revenue. 

• In-fill annexation is planned in the out-years beyond the FY23 - FY24 biennial budget.
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Expenditures:

FY22 Carryover CIP Projects
Due to construction timing or other delays, several capital improvement projects were not completed in FY22 as 
originally budgeted. All or part of the funding for these projects were then carried over and approved as part of the 
FY23 budget. The following table lists all FY22 CIP projects that had carryover into the FY23 budget.

FY22 Carryover Projects

Project 
Number Project Name Funding Source

Amount Carried 
Over 
to FY23

Public Facilities & Other
CTHL15002 Municipal Campus Planning Cash - Lottery Fund 150,000

CMDB18002 City Centre Parking #2 Bond - OSP/DSF 4,195,035

ADMN22001 Wayfinding Implementation Cash - Lottery Fund 50,000

Subtotal 4,395,035

Parks
PARK19001 Applewood Creek Trail Bond - Debt Service Fund 459,805

PARK18001 The Link Bond - Redevelopment Fund 9,389,142

PARK22001 Reflection Plaza Bond - Debt Service Fund 50,000

PARK22002 Dog Park Cash - Debt Service Fund 50,000

PARK17001 Mini Park Plan Improvements Cash - Lottery Fund 50,000

Subtotal 9,998,947

Sewer
SEWR13001 East La Vista Sewer/Pavement Rehab Cash - Sewer Fund 2,700,000

SEWR13001 East La Vista Sewer/Pavement Rehab Bond - Debt Service Fund 3,000,000

SEWR21001 8110 Park View Sanitary Sewer Cash - Sewer Fund 20,000

Subtotal 5,720,000

Streets
STRT23011* UBAS Street Rehab: Harrison to Josephine, 72nd to 78th Bond - Debt Service Fund 400,000

STRT21002 Central Park Access Road - Park View Bond - Redevelopment Fund 1,232,000

STRT17003 Giles Road Wide M376 (230) Cash - Debt Service Fund 50,000

STRT21005 Signalized Intersection Improvements Cash - Debt Service Fund 56,000

STRT22004 Cimarron Woods Aux Culvert - Design Only Cash - Debt Service Fund 45,500

STRT22006 72nd St Storm Sewer Pipe Reroute Cash - Debt Service Fund 50,000

STRT22007 Brentwood Signal Cash - Debt Service Fund 40,000

STRT23005** Corridor 84 Streetscape - Phase 1C Bond - Redevelopment Fund 165,000

Subtotal 2,038,500

Total Carryover Capital Improvement Projects 22,152,482

NOTES:
OSP is the Off-Street Parking Fund, and DSF is the Debt Service Fund.
*$400k moved from STRT20001 Annual Street Resurfacing in FY22 to STRT23011 UBAS Street Rehab in FY23.
**$165k moved from STRT17005 84th Street Underpass in FY22 to STRT23005 Corridor 84 Streetscape - Phase 1C in FY23.
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All Funds CIP Projects
The following table is a comprehensive list of all capital improvement projects included in the FY23 - FY24 
Biennial Budget across all funds.

All Funds - Capital Improvement Projects

Project 
Number Project Name Budget Fund Funding Source

FY23
Adopted
Budget

FY24
Adopted 
Budget

Public Facilities & Other
LIBR22001 Library Parking Lot Rehab Capital Improvement Bond - DSF — 600,000

LIBR23001 Space Needs Study - Library Capital Improvement Cash - DSF 39,000 —

CMDV23001 Zoning/Subdivision Regulations Update Capital Improvement Cash - General Fund — 200,000

ADMN22001 Wayfinding Implementation Capital Improvement Cash - Lottery Fund 100,000 50,000

CTHL15002 Municipal Campus Planning Capital Improvement Cash - Lottery Fund 150,000 —

CMDV18002 City Centre Parking #2 Off-Street Parking Bond - OSP-DSF 9,354,000 —

Subtotal 9,643,000 850,000

Parks
CMDV23002 Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan Capital Improvement Cash - DSF 100,000 —

PARK19001 Applewood Creek Trail M376 Capital Improvement Bond - DSF 459,805 —

PARK22001 Reflection Plaza Capital Improvement Bond - DSF 50,000 —

PARK22002 Dog Park Capital Improvement Cash - DSF 50,000 —

PARK23002 Thompson Creek 72nd to Edgewood Trail Capital Improvement Cash - DSF 54,000 20,000

PARK17001 Mini Park Plan Improvements Capital Improvement Cash - Lottery Fund 100,000 50,000

PARK17006 Central Park Phase 3 Improvements Redevelopment Bond - RDF 500,000 —

PARK18001 The Link Redevelopment Bond - RDF 13,889,142 —

PARK20003 Swimming Pool Demolition Redevelopment Bond - RDF — 300,000

PARK23001 City Centre Plaza Space Improvements Redevelopment Bond - RDF — 1,500,000

PARK23003 Central Park East Improvements Redevelopment Bond - RDF 500,000 —

Subtotal 15,702,947 1,870,000

Sewer
SEWR13001 East La Vista Sewer/Pavement Rehab Sewer Cash - Sewer Fund 2,700,000 —

SEWR21001 8110 Park View Sanitary Sewer Sewer Cash - Sewer Fund 20,000 —

SEWR13001 East La Vista Sewer/Pavement Rehab Capital Improvement Bond - DSF 3,000,000 —

Subtotal 5,720,000 —

Streets
STRT16002 120th & Giles Drainage Improvements Capital Improvement Bond - DSF 300,000 —

STRT17003 Giles Rd Wide M376 (230) Capital Improvement Bond - DSF 50,000 —

STRT19001 Storm Sewer Inlet Top Repair Capital Improvement Bond - DSF 150,000 —

STRT21005 Signalized Intersection Improvements Capital Improvement Cash - DSF 56,000 —

STRT22004
Cimarron Woods Aux Culvert - Design 
Only Capital Improvement Cash - DSF 45,500 —

STRT22006 72nd St Storm Sewer Pipe Reroute Capital Improvement Cash - DSF 50,000 —

City of La Vista, Nebraska Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
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All Funds - Capital Improvement Projects - Continued

Project 
Number Project Name Budget Fund

Funding 
Source

FY23
Adopted
Budget

FY24
Adopted 
Budget

Streets - Continued
STRT22007 Brentwood Signal Capital Improvement Cash - DSF 40,000 —

STRT23002 Bridge Deck Maintenance Capital Improvement Bond - DSF — 900,000

STRT23006 73rd Avenue Culvert Rehabilitation Capital Improvement Bond - DSF 250,000 —

STRT23009 Giles Road Rehabilitation Capital Improvement Bond - DSF 750,000 —

STRT23010 Pavement Assessment Capital Improvement Cash - DSF 40,000 —

STRT23011
UBAS  Street Rehab: Harrison to Josephine, 
72nd to 78th Capital Improvement Bond - DSF 900,000 —

STRT23012
Asphalt Mill & Overlay: Terry Dr., 78th St., Lillian 
Ave. Capital Improvement Bond - DSF 1,100,000 —

STRT23013 Traffic Signal Improvements Capital Improvement Cash - DSF 40,000 —

STRT24003 Hell Creek Rehab - Olive Street Capital Improvement Bond - DSF — 250,000

STRT24004 UBAS Street Rehab Capital Improvement Bond - DSF — 500,000
STRT24005 Asphalt Mill & Overlay Capital Improvement Bond - DSF — 1,000,000

STRT24006
Existing Central Park Access Road 
Reconstruction Capital Improvement Bond - DSF — 1,050,000

STRT19008 Corridor 84 Streetscape 1A & 1B Redevelopment Bond - RDF 1,500,000 500,000

STRT21002 Central Park Access Road - Park View Redevelopment Bond - RDF 1,232,000 —

STRT23005 Corridor 84 Streetscape - Phase 1C Redevelopment Bond - RDF 165,000 —

Subtotal 6,668,500 4,200,000
Total Capital Improvement Projects 37,734,447 6,920,000

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with an interest. 
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information 
should be addressed to the City Clerk’s Office, 8116 Park View Blvd., La Vista, NE 68128.
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Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2022

Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 60,222,181 $ 2,899,589 $ 63,121,770 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents  206,426  —  206,426 
Cash at County Treasurer  78,075  —  78,075 
Certificates of deposit  7,074,508  3,460,613  10,535,121 
Receivables  6,631,279  663,392  7,294,671 
Prepaid items  161,571  3,129  164,700 
Capital assets

Nondepreciable  38,877,480  469,572  39,347,052 
Depreciable, net  46,292,492  4,205,572  50,498,064 

Total assets  159,544,012  11,701,867  171,245,879 

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred charge on refunding  813,478  —  813,478 

Liabilities
Accounts payable  2,974,842  993,596  3,968,438 
Accrued expenses  1,115,216  325,417  1,440,633 
State sales and use tax refunds payable  3,112,784  —  3,112,784 
Compensated absences

Payable within one year  115,940  5,626  121,566 
Payable in more than one year  1,676,112  104,789  1,780,901 

Bonds payable
Due within one year  5,715,000  —  5,715,000 
Due in more than one year  78,135,005  —  78,135,005 

Total liabilities  92,844,899  1,429,428  94,274,327 

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets  34,848,404  4,675,144  39,523,548 
Restricted for community betterment  9,686,940  —  9,686,940 
Restricted for debt service  3,573,810  —  3,573,810 
Restricted for public safety  131,072  —  131,072 
Unrestricted  19,272,365  5,597,295  24,869,660 

Total net position $ 67,512,591 $ 10,272,439 $ 77,785,030 

See Notes to the Financial Statements
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Program Revenues

Expenses
Charges for 

Service

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions

Capital 
Grants and 

Contributions
Primary Government

Governmental Activities
General government $ 6,464,416 $ 589,377 $ 178,076 $ — 
Public safety  8,810,890  228,963  3,117,488  — 
Public works  4,601,354  —  1,856,294  — 
Culture and recreation  3,576,740  318,927  —  — 
Community betterment  553,825  1,271,903  —  — 
Community development  853,483  41,618  —  — 
Interest on long-term debt  1,474,787  —  —  — 

Total governmental activities  26,335,495  2,450,788  5,151,858  — 

Business-type activities 
Sewer  4,170,783  5,157,748  —  — 

Total business-type activities  4,170,783  5,157,748  —  — 

Total Primary Government $ 30,506,278 $ 7,608,536 $ 5,151,858 $ — 

Net Revenues (Expenses) 
and Changes in Net Position

Governmental 
Activities

Business- 
type Activities Total

Primary Government
Governmental Activities

General government $ (5,696,963) $ — $ (5,696,963) 
Public safety  (5,464,439)  —  (5,464,439) 
Public works  (2,745,060)  —  (2,745,060) 
Culture and recreation  (3,257,813)  —  (3,257,813) 
Community betterment  718,078  —  718,078 
Community development  (811,865)  —  (811,865) 
Interest on long-term debt  (1,474,787)  —  (1,474,787) 

Total governmental activities  (18,732,849)  —  (18,732,849) 

Business-type activities 
Sewer  —  986,965  986,965 

Total business-type activities  —  986,965  986,965 

Total Primary Government $ (18,732,849) $ 986,965 $ (17,745,884) 

Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022
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Net Revenues (Expenses) 
and Changes in Net Position

Governmental 
Activities

Business- 
type Activities Total

General Revenues
Property taxes  11,477,480  —  11,477,480 
Sales and use taxes  9,449,353  —  9,449,353 
Occupation taxes  2,862,435  —  2,862,435 
Motor vehicle taxes  513,195  —  513,195 
In lieu of taxes  221,485  —  221,485 
Interest income  135,203  17,506  152,709 
Miscellaneous  704,174  —  704,174 

Transfers  (150)  150  — 

Total general revenues and transfers  25,363,175  17,656  25,380,831 

Change in Net Position  6,630,326  1,004,621  7,634,947 

Net Position, Beginning of Year  60,882,265  9,267,818  70,150,083 

Net Position, End of Year $ 67,512,591 $ 10,272,439 $ 77,785,030 

See Notes to the Financial Statements

Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022
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Balance Sheet –
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2022

General Fund
Debt Service 

Fund Keno Fund

Capital 
Improvements 

Fund
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,483,885 $ 3,790,723 $ 125,235 $ 13,371,785 
Restricted cash and cash 

equivalents  1,500  —  73,834  — 
Cash at County Treasurer  74,540  3,535  —  — 
Certificates of deposit  2,562,597  —  4,511,911  — 
Prepaid items  158,321  —  —  — 
Receivables  1,973,690  563,269  43,033  — 

Total assets $ 19,254,533 $ 4,357,527 $ 4,754,013 $ 13,371,785 

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 495,100 $ — $ 7,501 $ 1,479,199 
Accrued expenses  233,989  —  76,177  478,689 
Sales tax refunds payable  1,556,392  778,196  —  — 

Total liabilities  2,285,481  778,196  83,678  1,957,888 

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenues  54,126  5,521  —  — 

Fund Balances
Nonspendable  158,321  —  —  — 
Restricted for:

Debt service  —  3,573,810  —  — 
Community betterment  —  —  4,670,335  — 
Economic development  —  —  —  — 
84th street redevelopment  —  —  —  — 
Public safety  —  —  —  — 

Committed for:
Capital outlay  529,057  —  —  11,413,897 

Unassigned  16,227,548  —  —  — 
Total fund balances  16,914,926  3,573,810  4,670,335  11,413,897 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources and fund balances $ 19,254,533 $ 4,357,527 $ 4,754,013 $ 13,371,785 

See Notes to the Financial Statements
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Balance Sheet –
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2022

Economic 
Development 

Fund

84th Street 
Redevelopment 

Fund
Police 

Academy Fund

Total 
Governmental 

Funds
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,975,283 $ 23,475,270 $ — $ 60,222,181 
Restricted cash and cash 

equivalents  —  —  131,092  206,426 
Cash at County Treasurer  —  —  —  78,075 
Certificates of deposit  —  —  —  7,074,508 
Prepaid items  —  —  3,250  161,571 
Receivables  3,502,423  548,864  —  6,631,279 

Total assets $ 8,477,706 $ 24,024,134 $ 134,342 $ 74,374,040 

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ — $ 992,441 $ 601 $ 2,974,842 
Accrued expenses  —  —  2,669  791,524 
Sales tax refunds payable  —  778,196  —  3,112,784 

Total liabilities  —  1,770,637  3,270  6,879,150 

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenues  —  —  —  59,647 

Fund Balances
Nonspendable  —  —  3,250  161,571 
Restricted for:

Debt service  —  —  —  3,573,810 
Community betterment  —  —  —  4,670,335 
Economic development  8,477,706  —  —  8,477,706 
84th street redevelopment  —  22,253,497  —  22,253,497 
Public safety  —  —  127,822  127,822 

Committed for:
Capital outlay  —  —  —  11,942,954 

Unassigned  —  —  —  16,227,548 
Total fund balances  8,477,706  22,253,497  131,072  67,435,243 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources and fund balances $ 8,477,706 $ 24,024,134 $ 134,342 $ 74,374,040 

See Notes to the Financial Statements
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Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet
of Governmental Funds to the

Statement of Net Position - Governmental Activities
September 30, 2022

Total Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 67,435,243 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different 
because:

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation used in governmental activities, are not 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.  85,169,972 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable of $81,495,000, are not due and payable 
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. Other related 
amounts include interest payable of $323,692, bond premiums of $2,355,005.  (84,173,697) 

Deferred outflows of resources related to refunded debt are not current financial 
resources, and therefore, are not reported in the funds.  813,478 

Compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, 
are not reported in the funds.  (1,792,052) 

Deferred inflows represents funds not available in the current period and, therefore, are 
not recognized as revenue in the governmental funds.  59,647 

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 67,512,591 

See Notes to the Financial Statements
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Revenues
Property taxes $ 10,434,311 $ 990,672 $ — $ — 
Sales and use taxes  6,280,036  3,140,021  —  — 
Occupation taxes  2,862,255  —  —  — 
Motor vehicle taxes  510,937  2,258  —  — 
In lieu of taxes  200,977  20,508  —  — 
Licenses and permits  587,640  —  —  — 
Intergovernmental  5,286,640  —  —  — 
Charges for services  342,590  —  —  — 
Keno  —  —  1,271,903  — 
Other Sales  —  —  —  — 
Interest income  44,628  5,819  17,508  11,780 
Miscellaneous  70,376  504,516  4,350  — 

Total revenues  26,620,390  4,663,794  1,293,761  11,780 
Expenditures

Current
General government  5,061,613  218,126  7,100  — 
Public works  2,139,955  —  —  — 
Public safety  8,014,955  —  —  — 
Culture and recreation  3,019,894  —  —  — 
Community betterment  —  —  553,825  — 
Community development  657,173  —  —  — 

State sales tax refunds  1,556,392  778,196  —  — 
Capital outlay  716,821  —  —  5,982,202 
Debt service

Principal retirement  70,927  3,460,000  —  — 
Interest  792  919,919  —  — 
Bond issuance costs  —  163,122  —  — 

Total expenditures  21,238,522  5,539,363  560,925  5,982,202 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures  5,381,868  (875,569)  732,836  (5,970,422) 
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers, net  (265,634)  (12,866,760)  (593,486)  13,725,730 
Issuance of debt from bonds  —  12,675,000  —  — 
Premium from bonds  —  982,391  —  — 

Total other financing sources (uses)  (265,634)  790,631  (593,486)  13,725,730 
Net Change in Fund Balances  5,116,234  (84,938)  139,350  7,755,308 
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year  11,798,692  3,658,748  4,530,985  3,658,589 
Fund Balances, End of Year $ 16,914,926 $ 3,573,810 $ 4,670,335 $ 11,413,897 
See Notes to the Financial Statements

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances –
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022

General Fund
Debt Service 

Fund Keno Fund

Capital 
Improvements 

Fund
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances –
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022

Economic 
Development 

Fund

84th Street 
Redevelop-
ment Fund

Police 
Academy 

Fund

Total 
Governmental 

Funds
Revenues

Property taxes $ — $ — $ — $ 11,424,983 
Sales and use taxes  —  3,140,020  —  12,560,077 
Occupation taxes  —  180  —  2,862,435 
Motor vehicle taxes  —  —  —  513,195 
In lieu of taxes  —  —  —  221,485 
Licenses and permits  —  —  —  587,640 
Intergovernmental  —  —  228,964  5,515,604 
Charges for services  —  —  —  342,590 
Keno  —  —  —  1,271,903 
Other Sales  21,114  —  —  21,114 
Interest income  7,644  26,545  165  114,089 
Miscellaneous  —  —  —  579,242 

Total revenues  28,758  3,166,745  229,129  36,014,357 
Expenditures

Current
General government  —  —  —  5,286,839 
Public works  —  —  —  2,139,955 
Public safety  —  —  176,603  8,191,558 
Culture and recreation  —  —  —  3,019,894 
Community betterment  —  —  —  553,825 
Community development  —  181,204  —  838,377 

State sales tax refunds  —  778,196  —  3,112,784 
Capital outlay  —  4,461,086  —  11,160,109 
Debt service

Principal retirement  —  705,000  —  4,235,927 
Interest  64,115  589,878  —  1,574,704 
Bond issuance costs  76,430  295,021  —  534,573 

Total expenditures  140,545  7,010,385  176,603  40,648,545 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures  (111,787)  (3,843,640)  52,526  (4,634,188) 
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers, net  —  —  —  (150) 
Issuance of debt from bonds  3,080,000  20,785,000  —  36,540,000 
Premium from bonds  —  700,684  —  1,683,075 

Total other financing sources (uses)  3,080,000  21,485,684  —  38,222,925 
Net Change in Fund Balances  2,968,213  17,642,044  52,526  33,588,737 
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year  5,509,493  4,611,453  78,546  33,846,506 
Fund Balances, End of Year $ 8,477,706 $ 22,253,497 $ 131,072 $ 67,435,243 

See Notes to the Financial Statements
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Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the

Statement of Activities - Governmental Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 33,588,737 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of 
Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. 
However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those 
assets is allocated over their useful lives as depreciation 
expense. This is the amount by which depreciation 
exceeded capital outlay in the current period.

Capital outlays $ 10,768,208 
Less: depreciation expense  (3,697,959)  7,070,249 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial 
resources to governmental funds; however, the transaction 
increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net 
Position.  (36,540,000) 

Governmental funds report the effect of the premiums, 
discounts and similar items when the debt is first issued, 
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the 
Statement of Activities.  (1,518,422) 

Repayment of bond and note principal is an expenditure in 
the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-
term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.  4,235,927 

In the Statement of Activities, interest is accrued on 
outstanding bonds and notes, whereas in governmental 
funds, an interest expenditure is reported when due.  (62,675) 

Compensated absences do not require the use of current 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds.  (52,585) 

Deferred inflows represent funds not available in the current 
period and, therefore, are not recognized as revenue in the 
governmental funds.  (27,471) 

Amortization net of additions of deferred amounts on 
refunding that do not represent activity in the current period.  (63,434) 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities  6,630,326 

See Notes to the Financial Statements
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Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Fund

September 30, 2022
Sewer Fund

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,899,589 
Prepaids  3,129 
Certificates of deposit  3,460,613 
Accounts receivable  663,392 

Total current assets  7,026,723 

Non-Current Assets
Land  9,524 
Equipment and furniture  1,851,571 
Sewer line systems  7,872,662 
Buildings and improvements  9,365 
Construction in progress  460,048 
Accumulated depreciation  (5,528,026) 

Capital assets - net of depreciation  4,675,144 

Total assets $ 11,701,867 

Liabilities and Net Position

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 993,596 
Accrued expenses  325,417 
Compensated absences - current portion  5,626 

Total current liabilities  1,324,639 

Non-Current Liabilities
Compensated absences  104,789 

Total non-current liabilities  104,789 

Total liabilities $ 1,429,428 

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets  4,675,144 
Unrestricted  5,891,459 

Total net position  10,272,439 

Total liabilities and net position $ 11,701,867 

See Notes to the Financial Statements
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position –
Proprietary Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022

Sewer Fund
Operating Revenues

User fees $ 4,915,541 
Permits and hookups  226,667 
Other revenue  15,540 

Total operating revenues  5,157,748 

Operating Expenses
General and administrative  16,739 
Maintenance  3,911,750 
Depreciation  242,294 

Total operating expenses  4,170,783 

Operating Income  986,965 

Nonoperating Revenues
Interest income  17,506 

Total nonoperating revenues  17,506 

Income (Loss) before Transfers  1,004,471 

Transfers  150 

Change in Net Position  1,004,621 

Net Position, Beginning of Year  9,267,818 

Net Position, End of Year $ 10,272,439 

See Notes to the Financial Statements
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Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022

Sewer Fund
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from customers $ 5,100,920 
Payments to suppliers  (2,479,120) 
Payments to employees  (598,580) 

Net cash provided by operating activities  2,023,220 

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities
Transfers  150 

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities  150 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets  (228,147) 

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities  (228,147) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest income  17,506 

Net cash provided by  investing activities  17,506 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents  1,812,729 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year  1,086,860 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 2,899,589 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities

Operating income  986,965 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

provided by operating activities
Depreciation  242,294 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Increase in receivables  (56,828) 
Increase in prepaid items  (283) 
Increase in payables and accrued expenses  851,072 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 2,023,220 

See Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Introduction
The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting principles and practices of the City 
of La Vista, Nebraska (the “City”) are discussed in the subsequent section of this Note. The remainder of the 
Notes are organized to provide explanations, including required disclosures, of the City’s financial activities for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2022.

The City of La Vista, Nebraska operates under a Council-Mayor form of government and provides the following 
services: public safety (Police and Fire), public works (highway and streets), sanitary sewer, culture and 
recreation, community development (planning and zoning), and general administrative services.

Financial Reporting Entity
These financial statements present the financial statements of the City as the primary government. In determining 
its reporting entity, the City has considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable, 
including other organizations which are fiscally dependent on the City, or the significance of their relationship with 
the City are such that exclusion would make the financial statements misleading or incomplete. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) has set forth criteria to be considered in determining 
financial accountability, which was used in making this evaluation.

The City has determined the La Vista Municipal Facilities Corporation is a blended component unit as the 
governing body consists of members appointed by the City government and the City is obligated to help support 
the component unit. A blended component unit, although a legally separate entity, is a direct part of the 
government’s operations. The City is financially responsible for this blended component unit and provides 
operational responsibility and control. No separate financial statements are issued for this blended 
component unit.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange 
transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in 
exchange, include property and sales taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue 
from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenues from grants, 
entitlements and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recorded when susceptible to accrual (when they become both measurable and available). “Measurable” means 
the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period and that it is legally available for such 
purposes. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the 
end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for 
debt service expenditures and other long-term obligations, which are reported as expenditures in the year due.

Major revenues that are determined to be susceptible to accrual include real estate taxes, sales taxes, earned 
interest, and charges for services. Major revenues not susceptible to accrual because they are either not available 
early enough to pay liabilities from the current period or are not measurable until received include licenses, 
permits, and fines. Revenues not considered available are recorded as unearned revenues.

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and expenses related to the 
primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues for proprietary funds are charges to 
customers for sales or services. Principal operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and 
include administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues and expenses are classified 
as non-operating in the financial statements.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed.
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City’s utility functions and various other 
functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct cost and program revenues for the 
various functions covered.

Basis of Presentation
The government-wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. 
These statements report financial information for the City as a whole excluding fiduciary activities. Individual funds 
are not displayed but the statements distinguish governmental activities, generally supported by taxes and City 
general revenues, from business-type activities, generally financed in whole or in part with fees charged to 
external customers.

The Statement of Activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues directly 
connected with the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities and may include portions of a 
fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses and program revenues associated with a distinct 
functional activity. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipients of the goods or services offered by 
the programs and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of 
a particular program. Revenues not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues. The 
comparison of program revenues and expenses identifies the extent to which each program or business segment 
is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.

Net position should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on net position use are either externally 
imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Fund financial 
statements report detailed information about the City. The focus of governmental and enterprise fund financial 
statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Major individual funds are reported in separate 
columns in the fund financial statements. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City, 
meets specific criteria set forth by GASB or is identified as a major fund by the City’s management.

Fund Types and Major Funds
Governmental funds are those through which most general governmental functions of the City are financed. 
Governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this 
measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. 
Operating statements of these funds present increases and decreases in fund balances.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial resources except 
those required to be accounted for in another fund. Revenues are derived primarily from property, sales, and other 
local taxes, state and federal distributions, licenses, permits, charges for services and interest income.

Debt Service Fund is used to account for financial resources that are restricted for, and the payment of, general 
long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Keno Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the revenues and expenses related to the Keno 
operations of the City. These funds are used for community betterment.

Capital Improvements Fund is a capital projects fund used to account for financial resources that are committed to 
expenditures for capital projects.

Economic Development Fund is a debt service fund used to account for revenues and expenditures to support the 
payment of long-term debt principal, interest and related costs. The bond proceeds are used to issue grants to 
support the commercial developments, rehabilitate residential neighborhoods and expand industrial development 
in order to ensure economic stability and vitality of the City.

84th Street Redevelopment Fund is a capital projects fund used to account for revenues and expenditures to 
support the redevelopment of the 84th Street corridor between Harrison Street and Giles Street to improve the 
economic viability of a town center and central park. A voter approved sales tax levy provides the revenue for 
this fund.
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
The Police Academy Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for revenues and expenditures to support 
the operation of a law enforcement training academy as defined in an interlocal agreement between Sarpy 
County, Douglas County, City of Papillion and City of Bellevue.

A legally adopted budget is approved for each of the above funds.

Proprietary funds are used to account for the City’s ongoing organizations and activities that are similar to those 
often found in the private sector. Proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources 
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of 
these funds are included in the balance sheet. Proprietary fund operating statements present increases and 
decreases in total net position.

The City reports the following major proprietary fund:

Sewer Fund accounts for the activities of the government’s sewer utility.

Cash and Investments
For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments which 
are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and so near their maturity (generally original maturity of 
three months or less) that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of interest rate changes.

The City maintains a cash deposit pool that is available for use by all funds. The pool consists strictly of bank 
deposits. The equity of proprietary funds in this pool is cash and cash equivalents for purposes of the Statement 
of Cash Flows. In addition, cash and bank deposits are separately held by several of the City’s funds.

Investment income includes dividend and interest income and the net change for the year in the fair value of 
investments carried at fair value. Investment income is assigned to the funds with which the related investment 
asset is associated.

Special Assessments
Special assessments are recorded as revenue in the year the assessments become current. Annual installments 
not yet due are reflected as special assessments receivables and deferred inflows of resources.

Unbilled Sewer Revenue
Billings for sewer revenues are rendered on a monthly basis. Unbilled sewer revenues, representing estimated 
consumer usage for the period between the last billing date and the end of the year, have been recorded in the 
amount of $200,253, and are included in accounts receivable.

Property Taxes
The tax levy for the City is certified by the Sarpy County Board each year. Real estate taxes are due and attached 
as an enforceable lien on December 31 following the levy date. The first half of real estate taxes becomes 
delinquent on April 1 and the second half becomes delinquent August 1 following the levy date. Delinquent taxes 
bear interest at a 14% annual rate. Property taxes are collected by the County Treasurer and are periodically 
remitted to the City.

The tax rate to finance governmental services other than the payment of principal and interest on long-term debt 
for the year ended September 30, 2022, was 0.5000 per $100 of assessed valuation and the debt service 
requirement was 0.0400 per $100 of assessed valuation. The assessed valuation for the 2021-2022 tax year was 
$1,998,058,005.

Prepaid Items
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid 
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepaid items are recorded as an expenditure at 
the time of consumption.

City of La Vista, Nebraska Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48 For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022



Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Capital Assets and Depreciation
The City’s property, facilities, equipment and infrastructure with useful lives of more than one year are stated at 
historical cost and comprehensively reported in the government-wide financial statements; proprietary capital 
assets are also reported in their respective fund. The City maintains infrastructure asset records consistent with all 
other capital assets. The City generally capitalizes assets with a cost of $2,500 or more as purchase and 
construction outlays occur. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Donated 
assets are stated at acquisition value on the date donated. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do 
not add to the asset value or materially extend useful lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. When capital assets are disposed, the cost and 
applicable accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is 
recorded in operations.

Estimated useful lives, in years, for depreciable assets are as follows:

Buildings 10 - 45 years
Improvements 5 - 30 years
Infrastructure and utility systems 20 - 60 years
Equipment, furniture, and fixtures 5 - 20 years

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position or balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net assets that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow 
of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category, 
the deferred charge on refunding reported in the government-wide statement of net position. A deferred charge on 
refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount 
is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position or balance sheet will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of 
resources, represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as 
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has one item, which arises only under a modified accrual 
basis of accounting, that qualifies for reporting in this category and is reported in the governmental funds balance 
sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from property taxes, special assessments, and grants 
that are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available.

Revenues are deferred if not received within 60 days of recognition.

Long-Term Obligations
In government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are 
reported as liabilities. Bond discounts or premiums are amortized over the terms of the respective bonds using a 
method that approximates the effective interest method.

The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt and premiums as other financing 
sources of the current period. Issuance costs are reported as expenditures.

Compensated Absences
Vacation leave and other compensated absences with similar characteristics are accrued as the benefits are 
earned if the leave is attributable to past services and it is probable that the City will compensate the employees 
for such benefits. Sick leave and other compensated absences with similar characteristics are accrued as the 
benefits are earned only to the extent that it is probable that the City will compensate the employees for such 
benefits. Such accruals are based on current salary rates plus an additional amount for compensation-related 
payments such as Social Security and Medicare taxes and pension amounts using rates in effect at that date. 
Vacation and sick leave is accrued in accordance with the City’s policy, when incurred in the government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements. In the governmental funds, only compensated absences expected to be 
liquidated with expendable available financial resources are recorded as a fund liability.
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
State Sales and Use Tax Refund Payable
Qualified companies in the State of Nebraska are allowed certain benefits under various legislative acts and 
incentive programs, including refunds of State sales and use taxes paid. These refunds can include the local 
option tax as well as state taxes. Under State Statute, the State Tax Commissioner must notify an affected city, 
village, county, or municipal county of any pending refund claims of more than twenty-five thousand dollars by 
June 15 of a given year. The notification must be made by July 1 of the same year and the refund will be made on 
or after November 15. On a monthly basis, the State notifies the City of approved refund claims exceeding 
$25,000. The State pays the refund to the recipient and, twelve months later, deducts that amount from the City’s 
sales and use tax proceeds. If the amount of a refund exceeds 25% of the City’s sales and use tax receipts for a 
prior fiscal year, the deduction will be made in twelve equal installments beginning thirteen months after the 
payment is made by the State to the recipient. The City accrues these tax refunds due upon receipt of notification 
from the State Tax Commissioner.

Net Position
Net position is required to be classified into three components – net investment in capital assets, restricted and 
unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows:

Net investment in capital assets – This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of those 
assets are also included in this component of net position. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at 
year-end, the portion of debt attributable to unspent proceeds is not included in the calculation of net investment 
in capital assets.

Restricted – This component of net position consists of restrictions placed on net position use through external 
constraints imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), contributors, or law or regulations of other 
governments, or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted – This component consists of net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net 
investment in capital assets.”

Fund Balance Classification
The fund balances for the City’s governmental funds are displayed in five components:

Nonspendable - Nonspendable fund balances are not in a spendable form or are required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - Restricted fund balances may be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by external resource 
providers, constitutionally or through enabling legislation. Restrictions may be changed or lifted only with the 
consent of resource providers.

The source of the restricted fund balance for the Debt Service Fund is unexpended tax revenue to be used for 
debt service. The Keno Fund restricted fund balance is intended for community betterment expenditures. The 
restricted fund balance in the Capital Improvements Fund is designated for 84th Street redevelopment parking 
garage capital construction expenditures and the Link project. The fund balance in the Economic Development 
Fund is restricted for economic development purposes. The source of the restricted fund balance in the 84th 
Street Redevelopment Fund is unexpended sales tax revenue. The designated use of these funds is debt service 
payments and capital construction expenditures. The restricted fund balance of the Police Academy Fund is 
designated for program expenditures of the Sarpy-Douglas law Enforcement Academy (SDLEA).

Committed - Committed fund balances may be used only for the specific purposes determined by resolution of the 
City Council. Commitments may be changed or lifted only by issuance of a resolution by the City Council.

In the fiscal year 2022 budget, according to Neb. Rev. Statute 13-518 (5), the City Council designated a portion of 
the General Fund to be used for acquisition or replacement of tangible personal property with a useful life of five 
years or more which is to be undertaken in the future but is to be paid for in part or in total in advance using 
periodic payment assignment as a qualified sinking fund. The September 30, 2022 balance is $529,057.

City of La Vista, Nebraska Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

50 For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022



Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Assigned - Assigned fund balances are intended to be used by the City for specific purposes as determined by 
management. In governmental funds other than the general fund, assigned fund balance represents the amount 
that is not restricted or committed. This indicates that resources in other governmental funds are, at a minimum, 
intended to be used for the purpose of that fund. On September 30, 2022, the City did not have any assigned 
funds.

Unassigned - Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund and includes all amounts 
not contained in the other classifications. The General fund is the only fund to report a positive unassigned fund 
balance amount. In other governmental funds it is not appropriate to report a positive unassigned fund balance 
amount. However, in governmental funds other than the general fund, if expenditures incurred for specific 
purposes exceed the amounts that are restricted, committed, or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary 
to report a negative unassigned fund balance in that fund.

Fund balances are classified as restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned. When expenditures are incurred 
that use funds from more than one classification, the city will generally determine the order which the funds are 
used on a case-by-case basis, taking into account any applicable requirements of grant agreements, contracts, 
business circumstances, or other constraints. If no other constraints exist, the order of spending of resources will 
be restricted, committed, assigned and, lastly, unassigned.

At the end of each fiscal year, the City will maintain spendable - unassigned portions of the fund balance for a 
cash reserve in a range from 20%  to 25% of the General Fund operating expenditures. In addition to cash 
reserve needs this accommodates emergency contingency concerns.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Note 2: Deposits and Investments
Cash at the County Treasurer
The City’s Cash with Sarpy County Treasurer is covered by collateral held by the County.

Deposits
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a government’s deposits may not be returned to 
it. The City’s deposit policy for custodial credit risk requires compliance with the provisions of state law.

State law requires collateralization of all deposits with federal depository insurance; bonds and other obligations of 
the U.S. Treasury, U.S. agencies or instrumentalities of the State of Nebraska; bonds of any city, county, school 
district or special road district of the State of Nebraska; bonds of any state; or a surety bond having an aggregate 
value at least equal to the amount of the deposits. The statutes allow pledged securities to be reduced by the 
amount of the deposit insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

At September 30, 2022, all the City’s deposits in excess of FDIC are covered by collateral held in a Federal 
Reserve pledge account or by an agent of the City.

Investments
Generally, the City’s investing activities are managed under the custody of the City Finance Director. The City has 
an adopted investment policy. The City may legally invest in state-sponsored pooled investment funds and in 
direct obligations of and other obligations guaranteed as to principal by the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies and 
instrumentalities. The City did not hold any investments at year end.

Interest Rate Risk – Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates (market rates) will affect the fair 
value of an investment.
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Note 2: Deposits and Investments (Continued)
Custodial Credit Risk – Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City 
will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in possession of an 
outside party.Credit Risk – Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill 
its obligations.

Concentration of Credit Risk – The City places no limit on the amount that may be invested in any one issuer.

Summary of Carrying Values
The carrying values of deposits and investments are included in the government-wide Statement of Net Position 
as follows:

Carrying Values
Cash at County Treasurer $ 78,075 
Deposits  73,863,317 

Total $ 73,941,392 

Included in the following Statement of Net Position captions as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 63,121,770 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents  206,426 
Cash at Country Treasurer  78,075 
Certificates of deposit  10,535,121 
Total $ 73,941,392 

Note 3: Disclosures About Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurements must maximize the use of 
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. There is a hierarchy of three levels of inputs that 
may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1: Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; 
quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be 
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities

Level 3: Unobservable inputs supported by little or no market activity and are significant to the fair value of 
the assets or liabilities

Note 4: Receivables
Receivables at September 30, 2022, consist of the following:

Fund Taxes
Accounts

Receivable
Grants

Receivable
Total

Receivables
General $ 1,256,157 $ 708,044 $ 9,489 $ 1,973,690 
Debt Service  563,269  —  —  563,269 
Keno  —  43,033  —  43,033 
Economic Development  —  3,502,423  —  3,502,423 
Redevelopment Fund  548,864  —  —  548,864 
Sewer  —  663,392  —  663,392 

$ 2,368,290 $ 4,916,892 $ 9,489 $ 7,294,671 

The City anticipates collecting all outstanding receivables.
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Economic Development Fund 
In connection with the financing of City Centre Music Venue the City has an agreement with the developer to loan 
up to $5,500,000. As of September 30, 2022, the City has transferred a total of $3,487,581. $3,000,000 of the 
amount loaned will be forgiven and discharged upon completion and commencement of operations. $2,500,000 
will be paid back to the City, with interest on or before August 31, 2029. The repayable portion will accrue interest 
at a rate equal to the Prime Rate published in the Wall Street Journal plus 2.25% (7.75% as of September 30, 
2022). This rate resets at the beginning of each month. For the year ended September 30, 2022, the City has 
recorded interest income in the amount of $21,114 and $14,842 of this is accrued for and included in the 
receivable balance at year end.
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Note 5: Capital Assets and Depreciation
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022, was as follows:

Beginning 
Balance Increases Decreases

Ending 
Balance

Governmental Activities
Land $ 15,609,324 $ — $ — $ 15,609,324 
Construction in progress  18,262,937  9,979,853  (4,974,634)  23,268,156 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated  33,872,261  9,979,853  (4,974,634)  38,877,480 

Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings  24,394,109  94,927  —  24,489,036 
Improvements/infrastructure  69,671,014  4,955,665  —  74,626,679 
Equipment/furniture/vehicles  12,113,680  712,404  (144,960)  12,681,124 

Total capital assets, being depreciated  106,178,803  5,762,996  (144,960)  111,796,839 

Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings  (15,347,309)  (1,006,523)  —  (16,353,832) 
Improvements/infrastructure  (37,279,737)  (2,022,183)  —  (39,301,920) 
Equipment/furniture/vehicles  (9,324,302)  (669,253)  144,960  (9,848,595) 

Total accumulated depreciation  (61,951,348)  (3,697,959)  144,960  (65,504,347) 

Capital assets being depreciated, net  44,227,455  2,065,037  —  46,292,492 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 78,099,716 $ 12,044,890 $ (4,974,634) $ 85,169,972 

Depreciation was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Governmental Activities
General services $ 422,734 
Public safety  612,633 
Culture and recreation  412,966 
Public works  2,249,626 
Total governmental activities depreciation expense $ 3,697,959 
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Note 5: Capital Assets and Depreciation (Continued)

Beginning
Balance Increases Decreases

Ending 
Balance

Business-type Activities
Land $ 9,524 $ — $ — $ 9,524 
Construction in progress  231,901  228,147  —  460,048 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated  241,425  228,147  —  469,572 

Capital assets, being depreciated
Building and improvements  9,365  —  —  9,365 
Sewer line system  7,872,662  —  —  7,872,662 
Equipment and furniture  1,851,571  —  —  1,851,571 

Total capital assets, being depreciated  9,733,598  —  —  9,733,598 

Accumulated depreciation
Building and improvements  (9,365)  —  —  (9,365) 
Sewer line system  (3,943,839)  (156,130)  —  (4,099,969) 
Equipment and furniture  (1,332,528)  (86,164)  —  (1,418,692) 

Total accumulated depreciation  (5,285,732)  (242,294)  —  (5,528,026) 

Capital assets being depreciated, net  4,447,866  (242,294)  —  4,205,572 

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 4,689,291 $ (14,147) $ — $ 4,675,144 

Depreciation was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Business-type Activities
Sewer $ 242,294 
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Note 6: Short-term Liabilities
The City incurs short term liabilities during the fiscal year as a result of its normal operations. The following is a 
summary of short-term liability activity of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022.

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions

Ending 
Balance

Governmental Activities
Short-term liabilities

Accounts payable $ 1,276,757 $ 41,671,285 $ 39,973,200 $ 2,974,842 
Accrued expenses  579,642  1,502,911  967,337  1,115,216 
Unearned revenues  1,519,440  —  1,519,440  — 
State sales and use tax refunds payable  1,618,955  3,112,784  1,618,955  3,112,784 

Total governmental short-term liabilities $ 4,994,794 $ 46,286,980 $ 44,078,932 $ 7,202,842 

Business-type Activities
Short-term liabilities

Accounts payable $ 331,328 $ 4,363,362 $ 3,701,094 $ 993,596 
Accrued expenses  176,177  173,585  24,345  325,417 

Total business-type short-term liabilities $ 507,505 $ 4,536,947 $ 3,725,439 $ 1,319,013 
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Note 7: Long-term Liabilities
General obligation bonds, issued by the City for various municipal improvements, are repaid through the Debt 
Service Fund (sales and use tax, property tax), the General Fund (highway allocation revenue), and the 
Redevelopment Fund (sales and use tax). The City has pledged its full faith and credit as collateral for the general 
obligation bonds. The City has no debt outstanding subject to legal debt limitations. The City’s borrowing capacity 
is restrained by maintaining the City’s debt at a responsible level.

The following is a summary of long-term debt activity of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022:

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions

Ending 
Balance

Due Within 
One Year

Governmental Activities
Bonds payable

General obligation bonds $ 29,270,000 $ 15,755,000 $ 3,125,000 $ 41,900,000 $ 4,020,000 
Tax revenue bonds  17,695,000  20,785,000  705,000  37,775,000  1,350,000 
Notes from direct placements  2,155,000  —  335,000  1,820,000  345,000 
Premium/discount on bonds 

issued  836,583  1,683,075  164,653  2,355,005  — 
Total bonds payable  49,956,583  38,223,075  4,329,653  83,850,005  5,715,000 

Other long-term liabilities
Installment notes payable - 

direct borrowings  70,927  —  70,927  —  — 
Compensated absences  1,739,467  1,118,792  1,066,207  1,792,052  115,940 

Total other long-term liabilities  1,810,394  1,118,792  1,137,134  1,792,052  115,940 

Total governmental
long-term liabilities $ 51,766,977 $ 39,341,867 $ 5,466,787 $ 85,642,057 $ 5,830,940 

Business-type Activities
Other long-term liabilities

Compensated absences $ 70,851 $ 88,196 $ 48,632 $ 110,415 $ 5,626 

The compensated absences reported as governmental activities will be paid from the General Fund.
The compensated absences of the business-type activities will be paid from the Sewer Fund.
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Note 7: Long-term Liabilities (Continued)
Long-term bonded debt and notes payable are comprised of the following:

Original 
Borrowing

Interest 
Rates

Final 
Maturity

Date 
Callable

Outstanding 
Balance

Governmental Activities
General obligation bonds:

December 31, 2014 public 
safety tax anticipation 
refunding bonds $ 835,000 1.850-2.350% 11/15/2022 12/31/2019 $ 110,000 

December 31, 2014 highway 
allocation refunding bonds  790,000 1.850-3.250% 11/15/2028 12/31/2019 *  175,000 

December 31, 2014 facilities 
corp refunding bonds  2,935,000 1.750-3.650% 3/15/2035 12/31/2019  640,000 

September 5, 2018 GO 
offstreet parking series 
2018 Garage 1  4,955,000 1.700-4.000% 9/1/2038 9/5/2023  4,185,000 

December 15, 2019, GO 
refunding bonds  4,690,000 1.482-3.300% 12/15/2032 12/30/2024  2,975,000 

April 15, 2021, GO refunding 
bond series 2021  4,030,000  2.000 % 12/15/2026 4/15/2026  3,160,000 

June 1, 2021 Highway 
allocation refunding bond 
series 2021  9,645,000 2.000-3.000% 12/15/2041 6/1/2026  9,290,000 

July 1, 2021 Economic 
Development bond series 
2021  5,610,000 0.350-1.850% 10/15/2029 7/1/2026  5,610,000 

January 5, 2022 GO offstreet 
parking bonds series 2022  12,675,000 3.000-4.000% 9/15/2041 1/5/2027  12,675,000 

November 22, 2022 
Economic development 
bonds  3,080,000 0.637-1.800% 10/15/2029 10/15/2026  3,080,000 

Total general obligation bonds $ 41,900,000 

Special tax revenue bonds:
December 21, 2017, Tax 

supported improvement 
bonds  18,840,000 1.250-5.000% 7/15/2042 7/15/2022 $ 4,195,000 

March 25, 2021, Tax 
supported refunding bonds  13,085,000 0.345-2.775% 7/15/2038 3/25/2026  12,795,000 

July 7, 2022, Tax supported 
improvement bonds series 
2022  20,785,000 4.000-5.000% 9/15/2042 6/15/2027  20,785,000 

Total special tax revenue bonds $ 37,775,000 
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Note 7: Long-term Liabilities (Continued)

Direct Placements
September 21, 2018, 

refunding certificates of 
participation  3,150,000 1.500-3.000% 12/15/2026 12/15/2023 $ 1,820,000 

Total Bonds $ 81,495,000 

* Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption in various amounts prior to maturity beginning November 15, 
2015.

Governmental Activities
Maturities of the long-term debt, subject to mandatory redemption are as follows:

Year Ending
September 30,

General Obligation Bonds Tax Revenue Bonds
Principal Interest Principal Interest

2023 $ 4,020,000 $ 1,000,492 $ 1,350,000 $ 1,329,913 
2024  3,435,000  917,082  1,390,000  1,295,109 
2025  3,485,000  839,773  1,425,000  1,256,962 
2026  2,870,000  768,008  1,470,000  1,214,670 
2027  2,930,000  702,353  1,520,000  1,168,880 
2028 - 2032  11,205,000  2,593,972  8,425,000  5,019,923 
2033 - 2037  7,770,000  1,452,536  10,020,000  3,421,272 
2038 - 2042  6,185,000  390,450  12,175,000  1,408,591 

Total $ 41,900,000 $ 8,664,666 $ 37,775,000 $ 16,115,320 

Year Ending
September 30,

Notes from Direct Placements
Principal Interest

2023 $ 345,000 $ 48,045 
2024  355,000  38,925 
2025  360,000  28,200 
2026  375,000  17,175 
2027  385,000  5,775 

Total $ 1,820,000 $ 138,120 
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Note 7: Long-term Liabilities (Continued)
The City’s outstanding notes from direct borrowings and direct placements related to government activities of 
$1,820,000 contain a provision that in an event of default, outstanding amounts become immediately due if the 
City is unable to make payment.

On November 11, 2021, the City issued $3,080,000 of Tax Economic Development Bonds, Series 2021B, for the 
use on appropriate capital projects related to economic improvements approved by the City.  The bonds have an 
interest rates of 0.637% to 1.8% and have a final maturity of October 15, 2029. 

On January 5, 2022 the City issued  $12,675,000 of General Obligation Off-Street Parking Bonds, Series 2022 for 
use on appropriate capital projects related to construction on parking facility #2 which was approved by the City. 
The Bonds have an interest rate of 3% to 4% and annual maturity dates of September 15, 2023 through 
September 15, 2041. 

On July 7, 2022, the City issued Tax supported Improvement Bond, series 2022 in the amount of $20,785,000 for 
use on appropriate capital projects related to redevelopment improvements approved by the City. The bonds have 
an interest rate of 4% to 5% and annual maturity dates of September 15, 2023 through September 15, 2042. 

Note 8: Interfund Balances and Activity
During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may result in 
amounts owed between funds.

Transfers are used to (a) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund 
that statute or budget requires to expend them, (b) move revenues from restricted funds to funds where the 
expenditures were incurred related to the restrictions and to (c) use unrestricted revenues collected in the general 
fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

Transfer To/From Other Funds at September 30, 2022, consists of the following cash transfers:

Transfer From

Transfer To
General 

Fund

Debt 
Service 

Fund

Capital 
Improvement 

Fund
Keno 
Fund Total

General Fund $ 75,000 $ — $ 60,361 $ 457,210 $ 592,571 
Sewer Fund  —  —  —  150  150 
Debt Service Fund  679,775  —  —  —  679,775 
Capital Improvement Fund  103,430  13,546,535  —  136,126  13,786,091 

Total $ 858,205 $ 13,546,535 $ 60,361 $ 593,486 $ — 

Note 9: Retirement Plans
The employees of the City are covered by several defined contribution retirement plans as detailed below. All 
plans are administered by outside trustees and, therefore, are not included in the City’s basic financial statements. 
Any plan provisions or amendments are reviewed and approved by the Mayor and City Council. The City plans 
are administered by Mission Square (formerly known as: the International Cities and Counties Manager 
Association - Retirement Corporation) (ICMA-RC).Mission Square is a not-for-profit organization chartered to 
provide a portable retirement plan for government employers nationwide. The City’s total pension expense was 
$561,500.

City Administrator’s Retirement Plan
The City has a defined contribution pension plan covering the City Administrator, the only participant in this plan. 
The plan requires that the City and the employee contribute an amount equal to 10.80% and 6.27%, respectively, 
of the employee’s base salary per pay period. The City’s pension expense and plan member’s contributions to the 
plan for the year ended September 30, 2022, were $18,103 and $10,510, respectively.
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Civilian Employee Retirement Plan
The City has a defined contribution pension plan covering all civilian employees who are eligible with 105 
participants as of September 30, 2022. The plan requires that both the employee and the City contribute an 
amount equal to 6% of the employee’s base salary per pay period. The plan allows for forfeitures to be used to 
pay administration costs of the plan and then used to reduce the City’s contributions. Employees are fully vested 
in their contributions and begin vesting in employer contributions after four years and are fully vested after seven 
years. The City’s pension expense and plan members’ contributions to the plan for the year ended September 30, 
2022, were $294,691 each.

Police Retirement Plan
The City has a defined contribution pension plan for its full-time employees in the Police Department with 50 
participants as of September 30, 2022. The plan was converted effective January 1, 1984, from a defined benefit 
plan to a defined contribution plan. The plan requires that both the employee and the City contribute an amount 
equal to 7% of the employee’s base salary per pay period. The plan allows for forfeitures to be used to pay 
administration costs of the plan and then used to reduce the City’s contributions. Employees are fully vested in 
their contributions and begin vesting in employer contributions after four years and are fully vested after seven 
years. The City’s pension expense and plan members’ contributions to the plan for the year ended September 30, 
2022, were $248,706 each.

Deferred Compensation Plan
The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code 
Section 457. The plan, available to all regular permanent full and part-time City employees, permits them to defer 
a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until 
termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and 
all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made available to the employee or 
other beneficiary) held in trust for the exclusive benefits of the participants and their beneficiaries. The plan assets 
are held in trust by a third party, Mission Square, for the employees and are not reflected in these financial 
statements.

Note 10: Risk Management
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage to, or destruction of assets, errors or 
omissions, injuries to employees, or natural disasters. These risks are transferred to independent insurance 
carriers and no self-insurance program is maintained by the City. City management believes adequate coverage 
exists for potential exposures as of September 30, 2022. The City did not pay any settlement amounts which 
exceeded its insurance coverage for any of the three preceding years.
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Note 11: Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments
During the year, the City has accepted various bids for street improvements, parking garage #2, the Link, and 
other projects in the normal course of business that have not been completed and/or fully paid for at year-end. As 
of September 30 the City’s construction project commitments total $22,152,482.

Claims and Litigation
The City is involved in various litigation matters in the normal course of business. The outcome of such litigation is 
not expected to have a material effect on the City’s financial position or results of operations.

Government Grants
The City participates in several federally assisted grant programs, which are subject to financial and compliance 
audits or reviews. The amount of expenditures, if any, which may be disallowed by the granting agencies, is not 
determinable at this time; however, City officials do not believe that such amounts, if any, will be significant.

Intergovernmental Revenues
Amounts received or receivable from federal, state and local agencies are subject to agency audit and 
adjustment. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable 
fund. The amount, if any, of funds which may be disallowed by the agencies cannot be determined at this time 
although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

State Sales and Use Tax Refunds
Qualified companies in the State of Nebraska are allowed certain benefits under various legislative acts and 
incentive programs, including refunds of sales and use taxes paid. These refunds can include the local option tax 
as well as state taxes. Under State Statute, the State Tax Commissioner must notify an affected city, village, 
county, or municipal county of any pending refund claims of more than twenty-five thousand dollars by June 15 of 
a given year. The notification must be made by July 1 of the same year and the refund will be made on or after 
November 15. On a monthly basis, the State notifies the City of approved refund claims exceeding $25,000. The 
State pays the refund to the recipient and, twelve months later, deducts that amount from the City’s sales and use 
tax proceeds. If the amount of a refund exceeds 25% of the City’s sales and use tax receipts for a prior fiscal year, 
the deduction will be made in twelve equal installments beginning thirteen months after the payment is made by 
the State to the recipient. The City accrues these tax refunds due upon receipt of notification from the State Tax 
Commissioner.

The amount of tax refunds due, if any, under these acts and programs is not determinable by the City until 
notification is made by the state.

As of September 30, 2022, the City had been notified of $3,112,784 of state sales and use tax refunds due, which 
are to be repaid starting in December 2022 through September 2023. This amount is recognized as a liability on 
the financial statements.

Between December 2022 and January 2023, the City was notified by the state of approximately $1,135,289 of 
additional state sales tax refunds due beginning in November 2023.
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Note 12: Interlocal Agreements

Fire Department
In October 2013, the City entered into an interlocal agreement with the City of Papillion (“Papillion”) and the 
Papillion Rural Fire District (“RFD”) to allow Papillion to expand its fire department operations to provide fire and 
emergency medical services (“EMS”) for all of the participants to the agreement and areas within each 
participants’ boundaries beginning April 1, 2014. In consideration for these services, the City and RFD each 
contribute proportionate funding and use of their respective fire and EMS equipment, fire apparatuses, EMS 
medic units and other fire or EMS vehicles and fire department real property. The agreement will terminate on 
September 30, 2033, with optional ten-year terms thereafter.

Under the terms of the agreement, the participants have created a mutual finance organization as authorized 
under the Nebraska Municipal Finance Assistance Act, known as the Papillion Fire Protection Mutual Finance 
Organization (“MFO”). The MFO is responsible for transacting business for financing the operation and equipment 
needs of the fire department or MFO; having charge and custody of and managing all funds of the MFO; and 
seeking funding from the Nebraska Mutual Finance Assistance Fund or other potential funding organizations. The 
participants in the MFO are required to levy a general fund property tax at an equal rate for the purpose of jointly 
funding the single fire department operations. The rate must have unanimous approval from all participants and 
exclude levies for bonded indebtedness and lease-purchase contracts in existence on July 1, 1998. The Papillion 
Finance Director serves as the fiscal agent of the MFO.

As of September 30, 2022, the MFO has not issued debt nor acquired title to any assets. Any debt or assets of the 
MFO would be split amongst the participants.

During the year ended September 30, 2022, the City paid $2,586,476 to Papillion in consideration of services 
rendered. The City received $504,516 from the MFO, as determined by the terms of the interlocal agreement.
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Note 12: Interlocal Agreements (Continued)

Police Academy
On April 4, 2017, the City entered into the Law Enforcement Training Academy interlocal agreement with Sarpy 
County, Douglas County, the City of Papillion and the City of Bellevue to create the Sarpy-Douglas Law 
Enforcement Academy (SDLEA). The City provides office space and administrative and accounting support for the 
SDLEA. Each participating agency contributes $20,000 per year to the Policy Academy Fund and provides 
training locations for the classes.

The Agreement is administered by an Advisory Board consisting of the chief law enforcement officer of each 
participating agency, or his or her designee. The Advisory Board members are responsible for the overall policies 
and administration of this Agreement. The governing board is known as the Sarpy-Douglas Law Enforcement 
Academy Advisory Board. The Board makes any and all decisions based on the concurrence of a majority of the 
Board members after providing an opportunity for all Board members to be involved in any and all such decisions. 
The Sarpy-Douglas Law Enforcement Academy Advisory Board shall meet at least four times each year, with such 
additional meetings held as often as its members deem advisable. The Advisory Board shall annually in the month 
of September, from among themselves, elect a chairperson on a rotating basis. The Board shall establish and 
implement rules and procedures not inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement for implementation hereof.

The Agreement shall be effective for a term of five (5) years beginning on October 1, 2017 and ending September 
30, 2022. The Agreement may only be terminated upon the mutual agreement of all participating agencies. At the 
end of the initial five year term, the agreement shall automatically renew for two (2) additional one year terms 
unless any Party to the Agreement gives written notice by April 1 prior to the effective date of the termination to 
the other participating agencies as to its desire to withdraw or terminate or amend the Agreement.

During the year ended September 30, 2022, the City received $102,205 from the participating agencies and the 
City contributed $20,000 as an expense from the General Fund to the Police Academy Fund, as determined by 
the terms of the interlocal agreement.

Note 13: Tax Abatements
The state approves tax abatements under the Tax Increment Financing Program (TIF), the Nebraska Advantage 
Act and the Employment and Investment Growth Act.

TIF provides property tax abatements to encourage improvements to blighted property. The program is 
established under the auspices of a state statue (Article 21, Section 18-2101 – 2144) empowering cities and 
counties to establish such programs. The abatements equal 100 percent of the additional property tax resulting 
from the increase in assessed value as a result of the improvements, as administered as a rebate of the 
incremental taxes generated from improvements to property, and last for 15 years (or fewer, if the loan is paid off). 
Eligibility for approval requires the property to have no loss of pre-existing tax revenues, and the developer 
demonstrates the project is not feasible without TIF. Abatements are obtained through application by the property 
owner and are reviewed and approved by the Council prior to commencing the improvements. This refund 
reduces the next property tax paid to the City. As of September 30, 2022, the City has entered into agreements 
with developers under TIF.

The Employment and Investment Growth Act under State Legislative Bill (LB) 775 and the Nebraska Advantage 
Act under LB 312 grants tax credits and sales tax refunds for companies that hire at least 30 new employees and 
invest at least $3 million. These acts allow a refund of sales tax paid on equipment or other taxable property 
purchased in connection with the project. This refund to companies reduces the net monthly sales receipts 
remitted to the City.

Taxes abated under these programs for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022 were $2,394,632. This consists 
of $718,152 pertaining to the Tax Increment Financing Program and $3,112,784 pertaining to the Employment and 
Investment Growth Act and Nebraska Advantage Act.

Note 14:  Subsequent Events
The City of La Vista has applied for a Clean Water State Revolving Fund loan from the Nebraska Department of 
Environment and Energy in the amount of $3 million at a 0.50 interest rate. The application is in a public comment 
period ending March 20th.  The preliminary annual debt payment is $72,000 for a 20 year term.
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NOTE 15: New Standards Issues But Not Yet Implemented
GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements establishes that a
Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangement (SBITA) results in a right-to-use subscription
asset and a corresponding liability. Under this statement, a governmental entity generally should
recognize a right-to-use subscription asset – an intangible asset – and a corresponding subscription
liability. This statement will be effective for the year ending September 30, 2023.
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Required Supplementary 
Information
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances – Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) – 

General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance 
With Final 

Budget
Revenues

Taxes $ 17,243,402 $ 18,780,583 $ 19,044,812 $ 264,229 
Licenses and permits  505,708  505,708  598,700  92,992 
Intergovernmental revenues  1,809,262  1,871,045  1,986,240  115,195 
Charges for services  388,671  417,671  263,957  (153,714) 
Grant income  120,260  1,748,848  1,759,638  10,790 
Interest income  94,405  35,677  44,628  8,951 
Miscellaneous  246,853  246,853  59,832  (187,021) 

Total revenues  20,408,561  23,606,385  23,757,807  151,422 

Expenditures
General government  6,151,736  6,588,186  4,889,995  1,698,191 
Public works  2,685,538  2,801,950  2,057,515  744,435 
Public safety  8,370,704  8,253,016  8,087,462  165,554 
Culture and recreation  2,540,920  2,566,659  2,066,452  500,207 
Public library  1,049,182  1,069,905  873,515  196,390 
Community development  732,011  743,511  617,052  126,459 
Capital outlay  293,800  691,000  620,006  70,994 
Debt service principal  73,957  73,957  71,719  2,238 

Total expenditures  21,897,848  22,788,184  19,283,716  3,504,468 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)  
Expenditures  (1,489,287)  818,201  4,474,091  3,655,890 

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Operating transfers net  509,477  (612,565)  (375,639)  (236,926) 

Total other financing sources (uses)  509,477  (612,565)  (375,639)  (236,926) 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ (979,810) $ 205,636 $ 4,098,452 $ 3,418,964 

Basic differences (accruals) occur because the 
cash basis of accounting used for budgeting 
differs from the modified accrual basis of 
accounting prescribed for governmental funds  1,017,782 

Net Change on a GAAP Basis $ 5,116,234 

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances – Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) – 

Keno Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance 
With Final 

Budget 
Revenues

Keno $ 1,092,000 $ 1,347,826 $ 1,228,870 $ (118,956) 
Miscellaneous  —  —  4,350  4,350 
Interest income  37,587  13,537  17,508  3,971 

Total revenues  1,129,587  1,361,363  1,250,728  (110,635) 

Expenditures
General government  23,100  23,200  7,100  16,100 
Community betterment  634,051  733,677  528,023  205,654 

Total expenditures  657,151  756,877  535,123  221,754 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures  472,436  604,486  715,605  111,119 

Other Financing (Uses)
Operating transfers out  (387,838)  (662,360)  (593,486)  68,874 

Total other financing (uses)  (387,838)  (662,360)  (593,486)  68,874 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 84,598 $ (57,874) $ 122,119 $ 179,993 

Basic differences (accruals) occur because the 
cash basis of accounting used for budgeting 
differs from the modified accrual basis of 
accounting prescribed for governmental funds  17,231 

Net Change on a GAAP Basis $ 139,350 

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances – Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) – 

Police Academy Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance 
With Final 

Budget
Revenues

Intergovernmental $ 148,000 $ 172,000 $ 228,963 $ 56,963 
Interest income  696  58  165  107 

Total revenues  148,696  172,058  229,128  57,070 

Expenditures
Public Safety  124,797  192,250  179,144  13,106 

Total expenditures  124,797  192,250  179,144  13,106 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures  23,899  (20,192)  49,984  70,176 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 23,899 $ (20,192) $ 49,984 $ 70,176 

Basic differences (accruals) occur because the 
cash basis of accounting used for budgeting 
differs from the modified accrual basis of 
accounting prescribed for governmental funds  2,542 

Net Change on a GAAP Basis $ 52,526 

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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Note 1: Budgetary Accounting
The City prepares its budgets on a cash basis of accounting.  Accordingly, revenues are recognized when cash is 
received by the City and expenditures are recognized when cash is disbursed.  This is a comprehensive basis of 
accounting in contrast to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Under the 
method of accounting, all unexpended appropriations lapse at the end of the budget year. 

Amounts presented on the cash basis of accounting differ from those presented in accordance with modified 
accrual basis due to the treatment of afforded accruals.  A reconciliation for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2022, which discloses the nature and amount of the adjustments necessary to convert the actual modified accrual 
basis data to the budgetary basis, is presented on each schedule. 

Note 2: Budget Procedures
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the schedule of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - budget and actual (budget basis):

• The City’s department heads, and mid-level managers prepare and submit budget requests for the 
following two fiscal years to the City Administrator who then reviews the request with the department 
and division heads.

• After this review process has been completed, the City Administrator presents these budget requests 
to the Mayor and City Council along with recommendations as to what changes, if any, should be 
made. These budget requests and recommendations are reviewed by the City Council at meetings 
open to the public.

• A public hearing and the first reading of the budget is then conducted at a City Council meeting to 
obtain comments from citizens. Two additional readings are conducted at subsequent City Council 
meetings.

• Prior to September 20, the City Council legally enacts the budget through the passage of a resolution 
adopting the biennial budget.

• Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for all 
Governmental Funds and Proprietary Funds.

• Appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year.
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Other Supplementary 
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances – Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) –

Debt Service Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance 
With Final 

Budget 
Revenues

Property taxes $ 887,554 $ 1,009,029 $ 991,299 $ (17,730) 
Sales taxes  2,018,141  2,283,352  2,514,631  231,279 
Motor vehicle taxes  3,636  —  2,246  2,246 
In lieu of taxes  36,161  19,707  20,508  801 
Interest income  20,994  4,948  5,819  871 
Other income  504,517  504,517  501,436  (3,081) 

Total revenues  3,471,003  3,821,553  4,035,939  214,386 

Expenditures
General government  155,171  244,546  223,528  21,018 
Debt service principal retirement  3,430,000  3,450,000  3,460,000  (10,000) 
Debt service interest  855,004  807,395  919,919  (112,524) 

Total expenditures  4,440,175  4,501,941  4,603,447  (101,506) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/(Under)  
Expenditures  (969,172)  (680,388)  (567,508)  112,880 

Other Financing Sources(Uses)
Operating transfers net  894,684  (66,225)  (12,866,760)  (12,800,535) 
Bond proceeds  10,610,000  12,500,000  13,657,391  1,157,391 

Total other financing sources(uses)  11,504,684  12,433,775  790,631  (11,643,144) 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 10,535,512 $ 11,753,387  223,123 $ (11,530,264) 
Basic differences (accruals) occur because 

the cash basis of accounting used for 
budgeting differs from the modified accrual 
basis of accounting prescribed for 
governmental funds  (308,061) 

Net Change on a GAAP Basis $ (84,938) 
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances – Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) –

Capital Improvement Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance 
With Final 

Budget 
Revenues

Grant Income  —  —  — 
Interest income  382  664  11,780  11,116 

Total revenues  382  664  11,780  11,116 

Expenditures
Capital Outlay  3,531,000  13,806,000  4,614,626  9,191,374 

Total expenditures  3,531,000  13,806,000  4,614,626  9,191,374 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures  (3,530,618)  (13,805,336)  (4,602,846)  9,202,490 

Other Financing Sources 

Operating transfers net  925,000  1,341,000  13,786,091  12,445,091 

Total other financing sources  925,000  1,341,000  13,786,091  12,445,091 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ (2,605,618) $ (12,464,336)  9,183,245 $ 21,647,581 

Basic differences (accruals) occur because the 
cash basis of accounting used for budgeting 
differs from the modified accrual basis of 
accounting prescribed for governmental funds  (1,427,937) 

Net Change on a GAAP Basis $ 7,755,308 
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances – Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) –

Economic Development Program Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance 
With Final 

Budget 
Revenues

Other Income $ — $ 143,570 $ 6,272 $ (137,298) 
Interest income $ 10,070 $ 108 $ 7,644 $ 7,536 

Total revenues  10,070  143,678  13,916  (129,762) 

Expenditures
General government  2,000,500  8,232,382  3,564,011  4,668,371 
Debt service principal retirement  195,000  —  —  — 
Debt service interest  44,053  47,926  64,115  (16,189) 

Total expenditures  2,239,553  8,280,308  3,628,126  4,652,182 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures  (2,229,483)  (8,136,630)  (3,614,210)  4,522,420 

Other Financing Sources
Operating transfers net  239,553  —  —  — 
Bond proceeds  —  3,000,000  3,080,000  80,000 

Total other financing sources  239,553  3,000,000  3,080,000  80,000 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ (1,989,930) $ (5,136,630)  (534,210) $ 4,602,420 

Basic differences (accruals) occur because the 
cash basis of accounting used for budgeting 
differs from the modified accrual basis of 
accounting prescribed for governmental funds  3,502,423 

Net Change on a GAAP Basis $ 2,968,213 
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances – Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) –

84th Street Redevelopment Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance 
With Final 

Budget 
Positive 

(Negative)
Revenues

Sales taxes $ 2,018,141 $ 2,283,352 $ 2,676,259 $ 392,907 
Occupation Tax  184,118  100  166  66 
Interest income  59,111  28,647  26,545  (2,102) 

Total revenues  2,261,370  2,312,099  2,702,970  390,871 

Expenditures
Community development  175,000  175,000  154,112  20,888 
General government  1,250  36,250  295,021  (258,771) 
Capital outlay  5,536,000  10,689,000  3,676,937  7,012,063 
Debt service principal retirement  800,000  705,000  705,000  — 
Debt service interest  872,550  644,616  589,878  54,738 

Total expenditures  7,384,800  12,249,866  5,420,948  6,828,918 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures  (5,123,430)  (9,937,767)  (2,717,978)  7,219,789 

Other Financing Sources (uses)
Operating transfers net  (432,073)  —  —  — 
Bond proceeds  —  15,567,000  21,485,684  (5,918,684) 

Total other financing sources (uses)  (432,073)  15,567,000  21,485,684  (5,918,684) 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ (5,555,503) $ 5,629,233  18,767,706 $ 1,301,105 

Basic differences (accruals) occur because 
the cash basis of accounting used for 
budgeting differs from the modified accrual 
basis of accounting prescribed for 
governmental funds  (1,125,662) 

Net Change on a GAAP Basis $ 17,642,044 
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Statistical Section
This section of the City of La Vista’s annual comprehensive financial report contains trend information to indicate 
how the City’s financial performance and position have changed over time. It also provides a context for the 
information presented in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information.

Contents Tables

Financial Trends 1 - 4

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s financial performance 
and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 5 - 11

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant local revenue sources: 
Property Tax and Sales Tax

Debt Capacity 12 - 15

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s current levels of 
outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future

Demographic and Economic Information 16 - 17 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment 
within which the City’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information 18 - 20

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in 
the City’s financial report relates to the services the city provides and the activities it performs.

Source: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the annual financial reports 
for the relevant year.
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Table 1a
Net Position by Component
Last Ten Years Fiscal Years

(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Governmental activities:
Net investment in capital assets $ 19,712,625 $ 21,279,103 $ 22,643,751 $ 26,375,291 $ 28,465,755 
Restricted  2,082,173  1,216,946  3,504,013  9,145,027  7,154,675 
Unrestricted  10,015,035  10,613,657  10,365,699  6,748,900  9,201,744 

Total governmental activities net 
position $ 31,809,833 $ 33,109,706 $ 36,513,463 $ 42,269,218 $ 44,822,174 

Business-type activities:
Net investment in capital assets $ 5,898,032 $ 5,788,436 $ 5,613,220 $ 5,308,491 $ 5,158,341 
Restricted  —  —  —  —  — 
Unrestricted  1,065,640  1,027,671  1,200,275  1,002,419  1,268,020 

Total business-type activities net 
position $ 6,963,672 $ 6,816,107 $ 6,813,495 $ 6,310,910 $ 6,426,361 

Primary Government
Net investment in capital assets $ 25,610,657 $ 27,067,539 $ 28,256,971 $ 31,683,782 $ 33,624,096 
Restricted  2,082,173  1,216,946  3,504,013  9,145,027  7,154,675 
Unrestricted  11,080,675  11,641,328  11,565,974  7,751,319  10,469,764 

Total primary government net 
position $ 38,773,505 $ 39,925,813 $ 43,326,958 $ 48,580,128 $ 51,248,535 
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Table 1b
Net Position by Component (Continued)

Last Ten Years Fiscal Years
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Governmental activities:
Net investment in capital assets $ 32,292,598 $ 35,719,808 $ 37,618,808 $ 37,559,118 $ 35,593,445 
Restricted  9,039,861  7,197,216  11,930,359  12,968,570  11,753,839 
Unrestricted  7,954,650  10,358,433  7,664,958  10,354,577  20,165,307 

Total governmental activities net 
position $ 49,287,109 $ 53,275,457 $ 57,214,125 $ 60,882,265 $ 67,512,591 

Business-type activities:
Net investment in capital assets $ 5,035,436 $ 5,005,395 $ 4,868,617 $ 4,689,291 $ 4,675,144 
Restricted  —  —  —  —  — 
Unrestricted  2,170,247  2,872,294  3,611,131  4,578,527  5,597,295 

Total business-type activities net 
position $ 7,205,683 $ 7,877,689 $ 8,479,748 $ 9,267,818 $ 10,272,439 

Primary Government

Net investment in capital assets $ 37,328,034 $ 40,725,203 $ 42,487,425 $ 42,248,409 $ 40,268,589 
Restricted  9,039,861  7,197,216  11,930,348  12,968,570  11,753,839 
Unrestricted  10,124,897  13,230,727  11,276,099  14,933,104  25,762,602 

Total primary government net 
position $ 56,492,792 $ 61,153,146 $ 65,693,872 $ 70,150,083 $ 77,785,030 
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Table 2a
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEAR
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Expenses:
Governmental Activities

General government $ 2,464,606 $ 2,830,676 $ 3,042,745 $ 3,180,352 $ 3,302,609 
Public safety  4,928,992  5,671,727  6,369,785  6,473,034  6,839,929 
Public works  3,470,958  3,686,477  3,710,503  3,851,418  4,116,582 
Culture and recreation  2,507,328  2,643,595  2,641,524  2,800,325  3,372,819 
Community betterment  542,381  476,137  471,751  534,331  555,357 
Community development  3,041,707  570,548  579,238  851,063  842,525 
Interest on long-term debt  2,442,261  2,360,424  2,275,121  2,048,414  2,055,098 

Total Governmental Activities 
Expenses  19,398,233  18,239,584  19,090,667  19,738,937  21,084,919 

Business-type activities
Sewer  2,620,300  3,034,561  3,021,293  3,299,763  3,540,832 
Golf  387,343  392,987  367,118  668,985  12,715 

Total Business-Type Activities 
Expenses $ 3,007,643 $ 3,427,548 $ 3,388,411 $ 3,968,748 $ 3,553,547 
Total Primary Government 
Expenses $ 22,405,876 $ 21,667,132 $ 22,479,078 $ 23,707,685 $ 24,638,466 

Program Revenue
Governmental Activities

Charges for Services
General government $ 464,950 $ 511,857 $ 663,837 $ 535,652 $ 547,546 
Public safety  —  —  —  —  — 
Public works  —  —  —  —  — 
Culture and recreation  475,908  455,299  283,575  285,461  371,747 
Community betterment  1,256,231  1,314,587  1,389,381  1,282,710  1,228,240 
Community development  —  —  —  —  — 

Operating Grants and 
Contributions  1,698,688  1,746,573  2,052,525  1,771,476  1,900,180 

Capital Grants and Contributions  748,876  343,354  718,596  693,334  — 
Total Governmental Activities 
Program Revenues  4,644,653  4,371,670  5,107,914  4,568,633  4,047,713 
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Table 2b
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (Continued)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEAR
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Expenses:
Governmental Activities

General government $ 4,033,942 $ 4,038,516 $ 4,698,589 $ 4,933,287 $ 6,464,416 
Public safety $ 7,132,385 $ 7,605,607 $ 8,119,378 $ 8,496,120 $ 8,810,890 
Public works $ 3,839,031 $ 5,016,988 $ 5,219,650 $ 5,021,900 $ 4,601,354 
Culture and recreation $ 2,975,688 $ 2,699,851 $ 2,976,833 $ 3,221,142 $ 3,576,740 
Community betterment $ 499,720 $ 563,462 $ 518,484 $ 659,766 $ 553,825 
Community development $ 1,235,141 $ 707,573 $ 826,912 $ 925,830 $ 853,483 
Interest on long-term debt $ 2,011,109 $ 1,333,392 $ 1,227,687 $ 925,554 $ 1,474,787 

Total Governmental Activities 
Expenses $ 21,727,016 $ 21,965,389 $ 23,587,533 $ 24,183,599 $ 26,335,495 

Business-type activities
Sewer $ 3,305,178 $ 3,571,122 $ 3,655,217 $ 3,859,354 $ 4,170,783 
Golf $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — 

Total Business-Type Activities 
Expenses $ 3,305,178 $ 3,571,122 $ 3,655,217 $ 3,859,354 $ 4,170,783 
Total Primary Government 
Expenses $ 25,032,194 $ 25,536,511 $ 27,242,750 $ 28,042,953 $ 30,506,278 

Program Revenue
Governmental Activities

Charges for Services
General government $ 735,348 $ 530,210 $ 539,097 $ 560,939 $ 589,377 
Public safety $ — $ — $ — $ 166,858 $ 228,963 
Public works $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — 
Culture and recreation $ 326,054 $ 563,996 $ 280,138 $ 317,928 $ 318,927 
Community betterment $ 1,133,699 $ 1,111,910 $ 1,432,402 $ 1,435,553 $ 1,271,903 
Community development $ — $ — $ 8,745 $ — $ 41,618 

Operating Grants and 
Contributions $ 1,941,816 $ 2,068,093 $ 3,102,332 $ 2,087,869 $ 5,151,858 

Capital Grants and Contributions $ — $ 1,014,391 $ 16,789 $ 120,676 $ — 
Total Governmental Activities 
Program Revenues $ 4,136,917 $ 5,288,600 $ 5,379,503 $ 4,689,823 $ 7,602,646 
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Table 2a
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (Continued)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEAR
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Business-Type Activities
Charges for services

Sewer  2,623,684  2,651,549  2,979,124  3,299,328  3,829,690 
Golf  236,325  229,615  248,149  246,215  3,470 

Operating Grants and 
Contributions  24,082  24,233  22,918  22,918  19,731 

Total Business-Type Activities 
Program Revenues $ 2,884,091 $ 2,905,397 $ 3,250,191 $ 3,568,461 $ 3,852,891 
Total Primary Government Program 
Revenue $ 7,528,744 $ 7,277,067 $ 8,358,105 $ 8,137,094 $ 7,900,604 

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental Activities  (14,753,580)  (13,867,914)  (13,982,753)  (15,170,304)  (17,037,206) 
Business-Type Activities  (123,552)  (522,151)  (138,220)  (400,287)  299,344 
Total $ (14,877,132) $ (14,390,065) $ (14,120,973) $ (15,570,591)  (16,737,862) 
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Table 2b
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (Continued)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEAR
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Business-Type Activities
Charges for services

Sewer  3,959,894  4,203,683  4,235,768  4,637,741  5,157,748 
Golf  —  —  —  —  — 

Operating Grants and 
Contributions  —  —  —  —  — 

Total Business-Type Activities 
Program Revenues  3,959,894  4,203,683  4,235,768  4,637,741  5,157,748 
Total Primary Government Program 
Revenue  8,096,811  9,492,283  9,615,271  9,327,564  12,760,394 

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental Activities  (17,590,099)  (16,676,789)  (18,208,030)  (19,493,776)  (18,732,849) 
Business-Type Activities  654,716  632,561  580,551  778,387  986,965 
Total  (16,935,383)  (16,044,228)  (17,627,479)  (18,715,389)  (17,745,884) 
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Table 2c
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (Continued)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEAR
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

General Revenues and Other 
Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities

Taxes
Property taxes  5,746,838  6,754,924  6,878,134  7,281,504  7,685,321 
Sales and use taxes  6,269,262  5,424,484  5,397,637  8,907,855  7,091,594 
Occupation taxes  1,705,931  1,813,090  1,821,521  1,764,230  1,743,994 
Motor vehicle taxes  354,182  385,836  402,999  444,213  477,817 
In lieu of taxes  236,021  280,249  310,218  323,279  349,057 
Interest income  1,301,858  1,230,685  1,481,807  1,274,167  1,274,532 
Miscellaneous  75,290  263,945  1,225,768  918,311  782,123 
Transfers  (250,000)  (374,050)  (131,575)  12,500  185,724 
Capital contributions from 

governmental activities to 
business-type activities  —  —  —  —  — 

Transfer of Capital assets from 
business-type activities to 
governmental activities  —  —  —  —  — 

Net Position Received from 
Annexation  4,888,458  —  —  —  — 
Total Governmental Activities  20,327,840  15,779,163  17,386,509  20,926,059  19,590,162 
Business Type Activities

Interest Income  3,397  4,923  4,033  1,693  1,831 
Miscellaneous  —  —  —  (91,491)  — 
Transfers  250,000  374,050  131,575  (12,500)  (185,724) 
Capital contributions from 

governmental activities to 
business-type activities  —  —  —  —  — 

Transfer of Capital assets from 
business-type activities to 
governmental activities  —  —  —  —  — 

Net Position Received from 
Annexation  756,870  —  —  —  — 
Total Business Type Activities  1,010,267  378,973  135,608  (102,298)  (183,893) 
Total primary governmental 
activities general revenues and 
other charges $ 21,338,107 $ 16,158,136 $ 17,522,117 $ 20,823,761 $ 19,406,269 
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General Revenues and Other 
Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities

Taxes
Property taxes  8,378,504  8,534,805  9,201,124  10,082,913  11,477,480 
Sales and use taxes  9,407,443  8,672,993  9,166,394  9,096,486  9,449,353 
Occupation taxes  1,831,621  1,711,471  2,160,134  2,395,210  2,862,435 
Motor vehicle taxes  483,324  510,523  493,707  517,238  513,195 
In lieu of taxes  339,463  343,156  341,771  214,639  221,485 
Interest income  1,002,789  242,470  172,046  75,412  135,203 
Miscellaneous  727,168  665,769  611,522  780,683  704,174 
Transfers  (23,528)  (16,050)  —  (665)  (150) 
Capital contributions from 

governmental activities to 
business-type activities  (125,197)  —  —  —  — 

Transfer of Capital assets from 
business-type activities to 
governmental activities  33,447  —  —  —  — 

Net Position Received from 
Annexation  —  —  —  —  — 
Total Governmental Activities  22,055,034  20,665,137  22,146,698  23,161,916  25,363,175 

Business Type Activities
Interest Income  9,328  23,395  21,508  9,018  17,506 
Miscellaneous  —  —  —  —  — 
Transfers  23,528  16,050  —  665  150 
Capital contributions from 

governmental activities to 
business-type activities  125,197  —  —  —  — 

Transfer of Capital assets from 
business-type activities to 
governmental activities  (33,447)  —  —  —  — 

Net Position Received from 
Annexation  —  —  —  —  — 
Total Business Type Activities  124,606  39,445  21,508  9,683  17,656 
Total primary governmental 
activities general revenues and 
other charges $ 22,179,640 $ 20,704,582 $ 22,168,206 $ 23,171,599 $ 25,380,831 

Table 2d
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (Continued)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
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Table 2c
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (Continued)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEAR
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Change in Net Position
Governmental Activities  5,574,260  1,911,249  3,403,756  5,755,755  2,552,956 
Business-Type Activities  886,715  (143,178)  (2,612)  (502,585)  115,451 

Change in Net Position $ 6,460,975 $ 1,768,071 $ 3,401,144 $ 5,253,170 $ 2,668,407 

Change in Accounting Principle:
Governmental Activities  —  (611,376)  —  —  — 
Business-Type Activities  —  (4,387)  —  —  — 
Change in Accounting Principle:  —  (615,763)  —  —  — 

Total Primary Government $ 6,460,975 $ 1,152,308 $ 3,401,144 $ 5,253,170 $ 2,668,407 

Note: The City adopted GASB Statement No. 65 for the fiscal year ended 9/30/2015. No prior period 
information was restated.
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Table 2d
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (Continued)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEAR
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Change in Net Position

Governmental Activities  4,464,935  3,988,348  3,938,668  3,668,140  6,630,326 
Business-Type Activities  779,322  672,006  602,059  788,070  1,004,621 

Change in Net Position $ 5,244,257 $ 4,660,354 $ 4,540,727 $ 4,456,210 $ 7,634,947 

Change in Accounting Principle:
Governmental Activities  —  —  —  —  — 
Business-Type Activities  —  —  —  —  — 
Change in Accounting Principle:  —  —  —  —  — 

Total Primary Government  5,244,257  4,660,354  4,540,727  4,456,210  7,634,947 
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Table 3a
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

General Fund
Nonspendable $ — $ 84,840 $ 263,575 $ 43,298 $ 134,883 
Restricted  —  —  —  —  — 
Committed for:

Capital outlay  —  —  —  —  — 
Unassigned  8,269,430  8,109,475  8,898,359  9,087,712  7,921,378 

Total General Fund $ 8,269,430 $ 8,194,315 $ 9,161,934 $ 9,131,010 $ 8,056,261 

All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — 
Restricted for:

Debt Service  5,620,155  3,612,797  4,746,495  6,024,480  6,217,965 
Community Betterment  2,082,173  1,216,946  1,645,971  1,966,247  2,734,800 
Economic Development  16,775,152  16,554,788  16,343,469  16,129,763  16,120,117 
84th Street Redevelopment  —  —  1,848,042  14,650,624  9,413,946 
Public Safety  —  —  —  —  — 

Committed for:
Capital Improvements  536,600  702,103  236,369  264,477  — 

Unassigned  —  —  —  —  (881,978) 
Total All Other Governmental Funds $ 25,014,080 $ 22,086,634 $ 24,820,346 $ 39,035,591 $ 33,604,850 
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Table 3b
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds (Continued)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

General Fund
Nonspendable $ 56,437 $ 62,711 $ 86,386 $ 133,596 $ 158,321 
Restricted  131,146  —  62,616  189,345  — 
Committed for:

Capital outlay  —  100,716  351,471  402,371  529,057 
Unassigned  6,827,379  7,776,196  9,120,068  11,073,380  16,227,548 

Total General Fund $ 7,014,962 $ 7,939,623 $ 9,620,541 $ 11,798,692 $ 16,914,926 

All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable $ — $ 2,366 $ 2,681 $ 2,774 $ 3,490,831 
Restricted for:

Debt Service  6,031,758  4,203,542  3,752,028  3,658,748  3,573,810 
Community Betterment  3,245,598  3,570,210  3,977,414  4,530,985  4,670,335 
Economic Development  3,607,668  7,043  7,069  5,509,493  4,990,125 
84th Street Redevelopment  10,497,181  6,452,576  4,102,718  4,611,453  22,253,497 
Public Safety  16,880  21,099  25,822  75,772  127,822 

Committed for:
Capital Improvements  —  —  149,620  3,658,589  11,413,897 

Unassigned  —  —  —  —  — 
Total All Other Governmental Funds $ 23,399,085 $ 14,256,836 $ 12,017,352 $ 22,047,814 $ 50,520,317 
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Table 4a
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Revenues
Taxes

Property $ 5,744,730  6,721,628  6,912,323  7,299,937  7,674,921 
Sales and Use  6,269,262  5,523,544  7,722,672  9,087,248  9,140,084 
Occupation  1,705,931  1,813,090  1,821,521  1,769,846  1,743,994 
Motor Vehicle  354,182  385,836  402,999  444,213  477,817 
In lieu of taxes  236,021  280,249  310,218  323,279  349,057 

Licenses and permits  464,950  511,857  663,837  535,652  547,546 
Intergovernmental  2,452,991  1,940,840  2,767,397  2,510,041  1,852,125 
Charges for services  475,908  455,299  283,575  285,461  352,183 
Keno  1,256,231  1,314,587  1,389,381  1,282,710  1,228,240 
Interest Income  1,301,858  1,230,685  1,513,486  1,259,744  1,247,903 
Special Assessments  140,471  18,514  731,673  129,801  21,843 
Other Sales  —  —  —  —  — 
Miscellaneous  62,266  247,292  1,206,518  897,722  765,995 
Total Revenues  20,464,801  20,443,421  25,725,600  25,825,654  25,401,708 

Expenditures
Current

General government  2,114,795  2,164,343  2,738,370  3,004,718  2,978,453 
Public works  2,122,632  2,055,777  2,109,913  2,058,528  2,068,969 
Public safety  4,255,511  5,003,284  5,726,842  5,850,116  6,157,356 
Culture and recreation  2,237,321  2,328,643  2,305,979  2,455,107  2,564,596 
Community betterment  542,381  476,137  471,751  534,331  555,357 
Community development  615,014  570,548  579,238  851,063  842,525 

State sales and use tax refunds  —  2,426,693  232,320  773,245  1,593,069 
Capital outlay  1,352,623  1,732,940  2,650,442  3,450,398  9,323,669 
Debt service

Principal retirement  3,785,000  3,907,697  3,572,623  4,191,956  4,018,904 
Interest  2,434,294  2,405,870  2,279,745  2,019,445  2,027,947 
Bond issuance costs  —  —  —  —  — 

Total Expenditures  19,459,571  23,071,932  22,667,223  25,188,907  32,130,845 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures  1,005,230  (2,628,511)  3,058,377  636,747  (6,729,137) 
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Table 4b
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Revenues
Taxes

Property $ 8,333,225 $ 8,501,667 $ 9,211,847 $ 10,127,600 $ 11,424,983 
Sales and Use  9,821,847  10,024,129  10,166,837  10,715,441  12,560,077 
Occupation  1,831,621  1,711,471  2,160,134  2,395,210  2,862,435 
Motor Vehicle  483,324  507,578  491,790  517,238  513,195 
In lieu of taxes  339,463  343,156  341,771  214,639  221,485 

Licenses and permits  734,973  530,410  547,792  553,859  587,640 
Intergovernmental  1,941,816  2,080,722  4,057,740  2,507,193  5,515,604 
Charges for services  429,630  530,676  279,826  311,450  342,590 
Keno  1,133,699  1,111,910  1,432,402  1,435,553  1,271,903 
Interest Income  950,149  250,998  171,521  75,156  114,089 
Special Assessments  45,440  455,621  1,136  4,654  — 
Other Sales  —  —  —  —  21,114 
Miscellaneous  595,623  661,738  601,784  656,682  579,242 
Total Revenues $ 26,640,810 $ 26,710,076 $ 29,464,580 $ 29,514,675 $ 36,014,357 

Expenditures
Current

General government $ 3,664,625 $ 3,828,286 $ 4,148,656 $ 4,115,346 $ 5,286,839 
Public works  2,031,477  2,345,088  1,988,442  2,456,234  2,139,955 
Public safety  6,537,737  7,059,968  7,427,583  7,879,585  8,191,558 
Culture and recreation  2,690,026  2,670,865  2,566,183  2,815,926  3,019,894 
Community betterment  499,720  727,184  717,281  659,766  553,825 
Community development  1,235,141  571,650  628,115  925,830  838,377 

State sales and use tax refunds  2,064,859  402,889  1,000,443  1,618,955  3,112,784 
Capital outlay  10,074,863  11,806,758  5,091,725  5,267,838  11,160,109 
Debt service

Principal retirement  31,302,409  4,228,603  3,943,794  3,922,884  4,235,927 
Interest  2,462,867  1,286,030  1,228,995  1,022,787  1,574,704 
Bond issuance costs  —  —  —  1,098,123  534,573 

Total Expenditures $ 62,563,724 $ 34,927,321 $ 28,741,217 $ 31,783,274 $ 40,648,545 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures  (35,922,914)  (8,217,245)  723,363  (2,268,599)  (4,634,188) 
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Table 4b
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Excess (Deficiency) of 
Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures  1,005,230  (2,628,511)  3,058,377  636,747  (6,729,137) 
Other Financing Sources 
(Uses)
Refunding bonds issued  —  —  11,035,000  8,240,000  — 
Payment to bond refunding 
escrow agent  —  —  (10,145,000)  (8,110,000)  — 
Bond or note issuance  —  —  —  13,285,000  — 
Bond premium  —  —  132,398  107,574  — 
Insurance proceeds  —  —  —  —  — 
Transfers, net  (250,000)  (374,050)  (109,444)  25,000  223,647 
Net position received from 
annexation  1,830,440  —  —  —  — 
Total Other financing sources 
(uses)  1,580,440  (374,050)  912,954  13,547,574  223,647 
Net Change in Fund Balances  2,585,670  (3,002,561)  3,971,331  14,184,321  (6,505,490) 

Debt service as a percentage of 
non-capital expenditures* 34 % 30 % 29 % 28 % 27 %
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Table 4b
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures  (35,922,914)  (8,217,245)  723,363  (2,268,599)  (4,634,188) 
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Refunding bonds issued $ 3,150,000 $ — $ 4,690,000 $ 32,370,000 $ 36,540,000 
Payment to bond refunding 
escrow agent  (3,095,000)  —  (4,915,000)  (18,400,000)  — 
Bond or note issuance  24,345,811  —  —  —  — 
Bond premium  150,876  —  294,218  507,866  1,683,075 
Insurance proceeds  131,146  —  —  —  — 
Transfers, net  (6,983)  (343)  —  (665)  (150) 
Net position received from 
annexation  —  —  —  —  — 
Total Other financing sources 
(uses)  24,675,850  (343)  69,218  14,477,201  38,222,925 
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (11,247,064) $ (8,217,588) $ 792,581 $ 12,208,602 $ 33,588,737 

Debt service as a percentage of 
non-capital expenditures* 64 % 24 % 21 % 19 %  18 %

* In the fiscal year ended 9/30/2018, the City retired an $11,215,000 bond anticipation note and repaid a 
$15,810,692 note. Excluding these amounts from principal retirement, the debt service as a percent of non-
capital expenditures ratio would be 26% rather than 64%.
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Table 5
TOTAL CITY TAXABLE SALES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year Ended 
September 30

Total City Taxable 
Sales

Total Direct Tax 
Rate

2013 $ 444,362,439 1.50%
2014  283,918,489 2.00%
2015  398,170,898 2.00%
2016  467,201,026 2.00%
2017  479,638,144 2.00%
2018  521,747,831 2.00%
2019  519,030,075 2.00%
2020  531,849,505 2.00%
2021  570,257,625 2.00%
2022  651,956,856 2.00%

Note: The 2014 voter approved tax rate increase began 
October 1, 2014 for the redevelopment of the 84th Street 
corridor.
In 2013, the City experienced unusually high consumer 
use taxable sales related to business projects initiated 
under the Nebraska Advantage Act. This consumer use tax 
collected was refunded in subsequent years per the terms 
of the Nebraska Advantage Act.

Source: Nebraska Department of Revenue
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Table 6
TOTAL CITY SALES TAX RATES

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Direct1 Overlapping2
Fiscal 
Year City of La Vista State of Nebraska Total Tax Rate
2013 0.0150 0.0550 0.0700
2014 0.0150 0.0550 0.0700
2015 0.0200 0.0550 0.0750
2016 0.0200 0.0550 0.0750
2017 0.0200 0.0550 0.0750
2018 0.0200 0.0550 0.0750
2019 0.0200 0.0550 0.0750
2020 0.0200 0.0550 0.0750
2021 0.0200 0.0550 0.0750
2022 0.0200 0.0550 0.0750

Note: 1 2014 voter approved tax rate increase began October for the redevelopment of the 
84th Street corridor.

2 Overlapping rates are those of other governments that apply to consumers within the 
City of La Vista.

Source: Nebraska Department of Revenue
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Table 7
NET TAXABLE SALES BY BUSINESS CLASSIFICATION

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2021 2012

Business Classification
Net Taxable 

Sales Rank

Percentage 
of Total City 

Taxable 
Assessed

Value
Taxable 

Assessed Value Rank

Percentage 
of Total City 

Taxable 
Assessed 

Value
Retail Trade $ 1,320,885,786 1  64 % $ 615,921,106 1  61.38% 
Accommodations & Food 
Services  382,740,815 2  18 %  218,457,184 2  21.77% 
Wholesale Trade  223,656,438 3  11 %  98,332,644 3  9.80% 
Other  145,998,669  7 %  70,690,373  7.05% 

 2,073,281,708 1  1,003,401,307  100.00% 

City of La Vista Total $ 570,257,625 $ 314,443,224 
City of La Vista 
Percentage of Total  27.51%  31.34% 

Note: Amounts shown are Sarpy County net taxable sales, which include refunds and do not include motor 
vehicle net sales.
The sales numbers are on a calendar year basis.
Amounts are not available at the City level.
2022 sales data is not yet available from the Nebraska Department of Revenue.

Source: Nebraska Department of Revenue
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Table 8
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year Ended 
September 30 Real Property Personal Property

Total Assessed 
Value

Total Direct Tax 
Rate

2013  1,026,386,501  33,988,114  1,060,374,615 0.5500
2014  1,192,636,619  51,330,141  1,243,966,760 0.5500
2015  1,218,326,286  50,759,000  1,269,085,286 0.5500
2016  1,277,942,663  53,195,886  1,331,138,549 0.5500
2017  1,350,942,709  59,738,367  1,410,681,076 0.5500
2018  1,428,659,445  68,162,463  1,496,821,908 0.5500
2019  1,472,463,575  69,678,083  1,542,141,658 0.5500
2020  1,580,605,750  70,812,076  1,651,417,826 0.5500
2021  1,677,983,246  77,124,063  1,755,107,309 0.5500
2022  1,769,068,039  228,989,966  1,998,058,005 0.5400

Note: Property is assessed at actual value, therefore, the assessed values are equal to actual value.
Source: Sarpy County Assessor’s Office
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Table 9a
PROPERTY TAX RATES-DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Tax Year 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

City of La Vista
General Fund  0.4900  0.4900  0.4900  0.4100  0.4100 
Debt Service  0.0600  0.0600  0.0600  0.1400  0.1400 
Total City of La Vista  0.5500  0.5500  0.5500  0.5500  0.5500 

Overlapping rates2

Sarpy County  0.29990  0.29990  0.29990  0.29690  0.29690 
Papillion-La Vista Schools  0.09667  0.12042  0.11886  0.11412  0.10855 
Papillion School Special Building  —  —  —  0.01000  0.01000 
School District 27 Bond 1  0.01359  —  —  —  — 
School District 27 Bond 2  0.02586  —  —  —  — 
School District 27 Bond 3  0.11189  0.11131  0.1125  0.11046  0.10410 
School District 27 Bond 4  0.05785  0.05943  0.0596  0.05812  0.05694 
School District 27 Bond 5  —  0.01529  0.06223  0.05985  0.07525 
School District 27 Bond 6  —  —  —  —  — 
Elementary Learning Community  0.95000  0.95000  0.9500  0.95000  0.95000 
Learning Community - 
Elementary Learning  0.01000  0.01000  0.01000  0.01625  0.01525 
Papio Natural Resource  0.03061  0.02422  0.02453  0.03045  0.03061 
Papio NRD Bond  0.00215  0.00853  0.00823  0.00759  0.00743 
Metro Community College  0.08500  0.09500  0.09500  0.09500  0.09500 
Agricultural Society  0.00136  0.00210  0.00224  0.00240  0.00257 
Educational Service Unit 3  0.01606  0.01500  0.01500  0.01500  0.01500 
Total Overlapping Rates  1.70094  1.71120  1.75801  1.76614  1.76760 

Total Tax Rate  2.25094  2.26120  2.30801  2.31614  2.31760 
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Table 9b
PROPERTY TAX RATES-DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS (Continued)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Tax Year 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

City of La Vista
General Fund  0.4100  0.4900  0.4900  0.5000  0.5000 
Debt Service  0.1400  0.0600  0.0600  0.0500  0.0400 
Total City of La Vista  0.5500  0.5500  0.5500  0.5500  0.5400 

Overlapping rates2

Sarpy County  0.29690  0.29690  0.29690  0.29690  0.28496 
Papillion-La Vista Schools  1.07599  1.07070  1.04696  1.03341  1.00703 
Papillion School Special Building  —  —  0.02500  0.02509  0.02679 
School District 27 Bond 1  —  —  —  —  — 
School District 27 Bond 2  —  —  —  —  — 
School District 27 Bond 3  0.10145  0.09819  0.06616  0.05318  0.00791 
School District 27 Bond 4  0.05646  0.05440  0.05131  0.05082  0.04263 
School District 27 Bond 5  0.07191  0.06669  0.06347  0.06188  0.04960 
School District 27 Bond 6  —  0.01503  0.03773  0.06625  0.13070 
Elementary Learning Community  —  —  —  —  — 
Learning Community - Elementary 
Learning  0.01625  0.01625  0.01605  0.01625  0.01613 
Papio Natural Resource  0.03079  0.03085  0.03102  0.03060  0.02741 
Papio NRD Bond  0.00701  0.00674  0.00637  0.00589  0.00734 
Metro Community College  0.09500  0.09500  0.09500  0.09500  0.09500 
Agricultural Society  0.00259  0.00274  0.00276  0.00277  0.00276 
Educational Service Unit 3  0.01500  0.01500  0.01500  0.01500  0.01500 
Total Overlapping Rates  1.76935  1.76849  1.75373  1.75304  1.71326 

Total Tax Rate  2.31935  2.31849  2.30373  2.30304  2.25326 

Note: The above tax year rates are for use in the following fiscal year.
Source: Sarpy County Clerk’s Office and City of La Vista Finance Department

1 Tax rates are per $100 of assessed valuation and effective on September 1 of each year.
2 Overlapping Rates are those of local and county governments which apply to property owners 

within the City of La Vista, NE.
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Table 10
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

Current Year and Ten Years Ago

2022

Taxpayer Type of Business

Taxable 
Assessed

Value Rank

Percentage of
Total City 
Taxable

Assessed 
Value

JDHQ Hotels Conference Center/Hotel $ 64,625,000 1  3.60% 
Harrison Hills Apartments, LLC Apartments  42,410,000 2  2.30% 
Green Pointe, LLC Apartments  39,510,000 3  2.20% 
Oriental Trading Commercial  34,710,000 4  1.90 %
Streck Inc. Manufacturer  33,240,000 5  1.80 %
Paypal Inc. Office Building  29,520,000 6  1.60% 
Edward Rose Development Co, LLC Apartments  24,110,000 7  1.30% 
Lund Southport 14 LLC Commercial  19,230,000 8  1.10 %
Rotella’s Italian Bakery Inc. Commercial  18,660,000 9  1.00% 
Yahoo Holdings, Inc. (Oath) Commercial  16,930,000 10  0.90% 

Total $ 322,945,000  17.70% 

2013

Taxpayer Type of Business

Taxable 
Assessed

Value Rank

Percentage of 
Total City 
Taxable

Assessed 
Value

JQH Hotels, LLC Conference Center/Hotel $ 61,640,000 1  5.81 %
Harrison Hills Apartments, LLC Apartments  32,160,000 2  3.03 %
Toys NE QRD 15-74 Inc. Retail  28,992,366 3  2.73 %
Paypal Inc. Office Building  28,459,957 4  2.68 %
Green Pointe, LLC Apartments  27,530,000 5  2.60 %
Edward Rose Development Co, LLC Apartments  16,440,500 6  1.55 %
Streck Inc. Manufacturer  14,270,000 7  1.35 %
Yahoo Holdings, Inc. (Oath) Office Building  12,090,374 8  1.14 %
Southwind Partners Apartments  11,380,000 9  1.07 %
Lund Southport 14 LLC Retail  11,148,422 10  1.05 %

Total $ 244,111,619  23.02 %

Source: Sarpy County Assessor’s Office
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Table 11
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Collected within the 
Fiscal Year of

Total Collections 
to Date

Fiscal Year 
Ended 
September 30th,

Taxes Levied 
for the 

Fiscal Year Amount
Percentage 

of Levy

Collections in 
subsequent 

Years Amount
Percentage 

of Levy
2013 $ 5,832,060 $ 5,796,975  99.40 % $ 49,210 $ 5,846,184  100.00 %
2014  6,841,817  6,755,069  98.73 %  83,593  6,838,663  99.95 %
2015  6,979,969  6,895,803  98.79 %  86,693  6,982,495  100.00 %
2016  7,321,262  7,226,652  98.71 %  96,273  7,322,925  100.00 %
2017  7,758,746  7,665,825  98.80 %  84,958  7,750,783  99.90 %
2018  8,232,520  8,178,652  99.35 %  76,208  8,254,860  100.00 %
2019  8,481,779  8,350,204  98.45 %  137,194  8,487,398  100.00 %
2020  9,082,798  8,942,007  98.45 %  177,391  9,119,398  100.00 %
2021  9,653,090  9,585,921  99.30 %  82,370  9,668,292  100.00 %
2022  10,789,513  10,547,979  97.76 %  105,274  10,653,253  98.74 %

Note:   The fiscal year of the City begins October 1 and ends September 30. Taxes are levied in December. 
First installments of real estate taxes are delinquent the following April 1, second installments 
delinquent August 

Delinquent taxes bear 14 percent interest. The figures above do not include motor vehicle in lieu of ad 
valorem taxes. Tax receipts are not reported from the County separate from interest collected. 
Therefore taxes collected may be greater than original levy.

Source: Sarpy County Treasurer’s Office
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Table 12a
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Governmental Activities
General obligation bonds $ 55,595,000 $ 51,780,000 $ 48,945,000 $ 47,130,000 $ 43,145,000 
Registered warrants  —  —  —  —  — 
Tax revenue bonds  —  —  —  —  — 
Bond anticipation notes  —  —  —  11,215,000  11,215,000 
Notes from direct placements  —  —  —  —  — 
Notes payable  110,589  17,892  149,692  116,710  82,806 
Premium/discount on bonds 
issued  35,427  32,002  147,459  194,010  167,525 
Deferred for refunding  (751,687)  —  —  —  — 

Business Type Activities
Revenue bonds  125,000  —  —  —  — 
Notes payable  83,178  47,662  14,316  —  — 

Total Primary Government $ 56,576,098 $ 55,197,507 $ 51,877,556 $ 49,256,467 $ 58,655,720 

Net Debt per Capita  3,305  3,029  2,896  3,431  3,187 
Percentage of Personal 
Income  7.66%  6.85%  6.27%  7.30%  6.59% 

Source:  Finance Department
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Table 12b
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Governmental Activities
General obligation bonds $ 25,300,000 $ 18,850,000 $ 18,885,000 $ 29,270,000 $ 41,900,000 
Registered warrants  —  —  —  — 
Tax revenue bonds  18,560,000  17,570,000  17,560,000  17,695,000  37,775,000 
Bond anticipation notes  —  —  —  — 
Notes from direct placements  3,150,000  2,470,000  2,485,000  2,155,000  1,820,000 
Notes payable  531,208  —  213,811  70,927  — 
Premium/discount on bonds 
issued  285,118  209,564  451,552  836,583  2,355,005 
Deferred for refunding  —  —  —  —  — 

Business Type Activities
Revenue bonds  —  —  —  —  — 
Notes payable  —  —  —  —  — 

Total Primary Government $ 47,826,326 $ 39,099,564 $ 39,595,363  39,595,363 $ 50,027,510 $ 83,850,005 

Net Debt per Capita  2,787  2,278  2,306  3,005  5,037 *
Percentage of Personal 
Income  5.54%  4.53%  4.42%  5.45%  4.42% *

* 2022 Net Debt per Capital and Percentage of Personal Income is calculated using the City’s 2021 
demographic data.

Source:  Finance Department
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Table 13
RATIOS OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal 
Year

General 
Obligation 

Bonds

Bond 
Anticipation 

Notes

General 
Bonded 

Debt

Less: Net 
Position 

Restricted 
for Debt 
Service Total

Bonded 
Debt per 
Capita1

Ratio of Net 
Debt to 

Valuation of 
Taxable Real 

Property:2

2013 $ 54,878,740 $ — $ 54,878,740 $ — $ 54,878,740 3,286 4.41%
2014  51,812,002  —  51,812,002  —  51,812,002 3,026 4.08%
2015  49,092,459  —  49,092,459  —  49,092,459 2,887 3.69%
2016  47,324,010  11,215,000  58,539,010  4,127,637  54,411,373 3,183 3.86%
2017  43,312,525  11,215,000  54,527,525  4,419,875  50,107,650 2,924 3.35%
2018  47,295,118  —  47,295,118  5,663,117  41,632,001 2,426 2.70%
2019  43,197,341  —  43,197,341  3,596,498  39,600,843 2,306 2.40%
2020  39,381,552  —  39,381,552  3,752,028  35,629,524 2,075 2.16%
2021  49,956,583  —  49,956,583  3,658,748  46,297,835 2,765 2.64%
2022  83,850,005  —  83,850,005  3,573,810  80,276,195 4,822 * 4.02%

Note: Details regarding the City’s outstanding debt can be found in the Notes to the financial statements.
1 Population data can be found in Table 16 Demographic and Economic Statistics. Population is not 

available yet for 2022.
2 Property Value information can be found in Table 8 Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable 

Property.
* 2022 Bonded Debt per Capital ratio was calculated using the City’s 2021 population data.
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Table 14
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Governmental Units
Debt 

Outstanding

Estimated 
Percentage 
Applicable

Direct and 
Overlapping 

Debt to the City
City $ 83,850,005  100.00 % $ 83,850,005 

Overlapping:
Sarpy County** $ 148,625,000  9.75 % $ 14,490,938 
School District. 0027 Papillion-LaVista  145,485,000  26.65 %  38,771,753 

$ 294,110,000 $ 53,262,690 

Total $ 377,960,005 $ 137,112,695 

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of 
the City. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments 
that is borne by the residents and businesses of the City of La Vista. This process recognizes that, 
when considering the City’s ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden bone by 
the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However this does not imply that every 
taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping 
government.

The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. 
Applicable percentages were estmated by determining the portion of the City’s taxable assessed value 
and dividing it by the corresponding overlapping government unit’s taxable assessed value.

Source: Nebraska Auditor of Public Accounts; Each respective political subdivision’s 2022-23 budget.
** Includes debt issued by Sarpy County Leasing Corporation
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Table 15
PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Gross 
Revenue

Direct 
Operating
Expenses

Net 
Available 
Revenue

Debt Service Requirements
Principal Interest Total Coverage

Sewer System

Utility 
Service 
Charges

2013  2,647,766  2,617,284  30,482  83,178  3,292  86,470  0.35 
2014  2,675,782  3,032,588  (356,806)  47,662  1,213  48,875  (7.30) 
2015  3,002,042  3,020,231  (18,189)  14,316  151  14,467  (1.26) 
2016  3,322,246  3,299,763  22,483  —  —  — n/a
2017  3,849,421  3,540,832  308,589  —  —  — n/a
2018  3,959,894  3,305,178  654,716  —  —  — n/a
2019  4,203,683  3,571,122  632,561  —  —  — n/a
2020  4,235,768  3,655,074  580,694  —  —  — n/a
2021  4,637,741  3,859,354  778,387  —  —  — n/a
2022  5,157,748  4,170,783  986,965  —  —  — n/a

Golf
Gross 

Revenue
2013  236,325  378,954  (142,629)  125,000  3,406  128,406  (1.11) 
2014  229,615  391,541  (161,926)  —  —  — n/a
2015  248,149  367,118  (118,969)  —  —  — n/a
2016  246,215  668,985  (422,770)  —  —  — n/a
2017  3,470  12,715  (9,245)  —  —  — n/a
2018  —  —  —  —  —  — n/a
2019  —  —  —  —  —  — n/a
2020  —  —  —  —  —  — n/a
2021  —  —  —  —  —  — n/a
2022  —  —  —  —  —  — n/a

Source: Finance Department
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DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal 
Year Population1

Personal Income 
(thousands of dollars)2

Per Capita 
Personal 
Income2

Public School 
Enrollment3

Unemployment 
Rate4

2013  17,044 $ 7,380,850 $ 43,657  10,753  3.6 %
2014  16,987  7,703,885  44,805  11,023  2.7 %
2015  16,982  8,239,046  47,001  11,159  2.7 %
2016  17,063  8,502,549  47,645  11,334  2.8 %
2017  17,089  8,872,843  48,895  11,608  2.7 %
2018  17,104  9,420,158  51,167  11,730  2.5 %
2019  17,154  9,789,385  52,380  11,818  2.7 %
2020  17,057  10,419,698  55,173  11,573  3.0 %
2021  16,648  11,234,551  58,084  11,671 3.0%
2022 N/A N/A N/A  12,031 3.0%

Sources: 1
U.S. Census Bureau. 2022 numbers are not available.

2 U.S. Department of Commerce Bureau of Economic Analysis, Personal Income and Per Capital 
Income are based on Omaha-Council Bluffs NE-IA, Sarpy County NE.

3
Papillion-LaVista Community Schools (Sarpy County School District 0027)

4
Nebraska.gov - Department of Labor, statistics for Sarpy County, NE

Table 16
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Table 17
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS OF SARPY COUNTY

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2022 2013
EMPLOYER INDUSTRY EMPLOYER INDUSTRY
Offutt Air Force Base Government Offutt Air Force Base Government
PayPal, Inc. Service PayPal, Inc. Service
Papillion-La Vista Public 
Schools Education Bellevue Public Schools Education

Bellevue Public Schools Education Werner Enterprises Trucking
Werner Enterprises, Inc. Trucking Papillion-LaVista Schools Education
Gretna Public Schools Education InfoGroup Compilation Center Service
Sarpy County Government Bellevue University Education
Bellevue University Education Ehrling Bergquist Clinic Military Healthcare
Oriental Trading Company Retail Hillcrest Health Systems Healthcare
City of Bellevue Government Oriental Trading Company Warehouse/Distribution

Source:
Sarpy County 2022 and 2013 FY Continuing Disclosure statement
The Sarpy County 2022 Continuing Disclosure Statement was unavailable prior to issuance so 2021 
data was used.
Specific employee numbers are not available due to the proprietary nature of the information.
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Table 18a
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Function
General Fund
Administrative Services
Director  —  —  1.00  1.00  1.00  1.00  1.00  1.00  1.00  1.00 
Finance  2.50  2.50  2.50  3.00  2.00  2.00  3.00  3.00  3.00  3.00 
City Clerk  3.00  3.00  2.00  2.50  3.50  3.50  4.50  4.50  4.50  4.50 
Human Resources  1.50  1.50  2.50  2.00  2.00  2.00  2.00  2.00  2.00  2.00 
Information Technology  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  1.00  1.00 

Administration
City Administrator’s Office  4.88  4.88  4.88  4.88  5.00  5.00  5.00  5.00  5.00  6.00 
Intern (Paid)  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  0.70  — 
Intern (Unpaid)  0.25  0.25  0.25  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 

Community Development
Director’s Office  2.00  2.00  2.00  2.00  2.00  2.00  2.00  2.00  2.00  2.00 
Deputy Director  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  1.00  1.00  1.00 
Planning  1.00  1.00  1.00  1.00  1.00  1.00  2.00  1.00  1.00  1.00 
Building Inspection  3.50  3.50  3.50  2.00  2.00  2.00  2.00  2.00  2.00  2.00 
Intern (Paid)  0.50  0.50  0.50  0.50  0.72  0.72  —  —  —  — 

Public Safety
Police Sworn  34.00  34.00  34.00  34.00  34.00  36.00  38.00  39.00  40.00  41.00 
Police Civilian  5.50  5.50  5.50  5.50  5.50  5.50  5.50  5.50  5.50  5.50 

Public Works
Director's Office  4.00  4.00  4.00  4.00  5.00  5.00  6.00  5.00  5.00  6.00 
Intern (Paid)  0.24  0.62  0.70  0.70  0.70  0.70  0.70  0.70  0.70  — 
Building Maintenance  —  —  2.50  2.50  2.50  2.50  2.50  2.00  2.00  17.00 
Streets Operating  15.62  15.62  15.62  15.62  15.62  15.62  16.00  17.00  17.00  3.60 
Streets Part Time & Seasonal  1.88  1.88  1.88  1.88  1.88  1.88  1.88  3.60  3.60  3.00 
Parks Operating  8.00  7.00  8.00  8.00  9.00  9.00  11.00  11.00  11.00  11.00 
Parks Part Time & Seasonal  3.36  3.36  3.98  3.98  5.13  3.13  3.38  3.38  3.38  4.40 
Sports Complex  3.00  4.00  4.00  4.00  4.00  4.00  3.00  3.00  3.00  3.00 
Sports Complex Seasonal  0.84  0.84  0.84  0.84  1.08  2.12  2.20  2.20  2.20  2.20 
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Table 18b
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION (Continued)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Full Time Equivalent Employees as of September 30
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Library
Director's Office  5.00  5.00  5.00  5.00  5.00  5.00  6.00  6.00  6.00 7.00
Circulation Clerks  5.90  5.90  6.00  6.70  6.88  6.88  6.88  7.38  7.38 6.80
Library (Seasonal)  0.25  0.25  0.25  0.10  0.10  0.10  0.10  0.10  0.10 0.10

Recreation
Director's Office  5.00  5.00  5.00  5.00  6.00  6.00  6.00  5.50  5.00 5.00
Recreation Assistants  3.30  3.30  3.30  3.30  3.34  3.34  3.34  3.33  3.33 3.33
Senior Bus  1.30  1.75  1.83  1.83  1.84  1.84  1.80  1.80  1.80 1.80
Swimming Pool 
(Seasonal)  3.99  3.99  3.99  3.99  4.00  4.00  4.03  4.03  4.03 4.03

General Fund Total  120.31  121.14  126.52  125.82  130.79  131.83  139.81  142.02  144.22 148.26

Sewer Fund
Sewer Division  6.00  6.00  6.00  6.00  6.00  6.00  6.00  6.00  6.00 6.00Sewer Part Time & 
Seasonal  2.08  2.08  2.08  2.08  1.34  1.34  1.34  0.70  0.70 0.70

Sewer Fund Total  8.08  8.08  8.08  8.08  7.34  7.34  7.34  6.70  6.70 6.70

Police Academy Fund
Director  —  —  —  —  —  1.00  1.00  1.00  1.00 1.00
Instructor  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 1.00

Police Academy Fund 
Total  —  —  —  —  —  1.00  1.00  1.00  1.00 2.00

Lottery Fund
Community Events

Coordinator  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 1.00
Part-Time/Seasonal  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 0.00

Lottery Fund Total  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 1.00

All Funds Total  128.39  129.22  134.60  133.90  138.13  140.17  148.15  149.72  151.92 157.96

* * * * * * * * * * 
Source: Various City Departments

* Full-Time Equivalent information has been updated from the prior year report.
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Table 19a
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Function

Engineering
Miles of Street - Reconstruction  3  —  —  2  3 

Public Safety
Police

Arrests  566  652  534  350  317 
Parking/Ordinance Citations  54  73  33  34  40 
Traffic Citations  6,396  5,790  3,654  2,943  2,739 

Fire
Number of Calls Answered n/a  792  1,080  1,363  1,289 
Number of Facilities  2  2  2  2  2 

Building and Safety
Number of Commercial

Building Permits  35  34  45  42  51 
Number of Residential

Building Permits  137  124  115  99  107 
Miscellaneous Permits  784  786  725  798  1,428 
Building Inspections  1,960  2,093 n/a  1,661  2,126 

Culture and Recreation
Library

Total Circulation  153,697  158,336  176,633  166,197  165,606 
Recreation

Attendance: Community Center n/a  93,551  96,935  85,590  84,775 
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Table 19b
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION (Continued)

LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Function

Engineering
Miles of Street - Reconstruction  —  7  —  12  3 

Public Safety
Police

Arrests  390  275  252  206  241 
Parking/Ordinance Citations  33  96  20  79  26 
Traffic Citations  3,525  2,737  2,207  1,923  2,496 

Fire
Number of Calls Answered  1,239  1,427  1,354  1,402  1,729 
Number of Facilities  2  2  2  2  2 

Building and Safety
Number of Commercial

Building Permits  53  75  51  58  52 
Number of Residential

Building Permits  121  90  110  115  108 
Miscellaneous Permits  1,285  984  693  780  972 
Building Inspections  2,989  3,327  1,082  2,582  3,501 

Culture and Recreation
Library

Total Circulation  162,799  175,187  117,517  123,916  131,203 
Recreation

Attendance: Community Center  93,028  95,187  49,805  22,176  46,411 

Source: Various City Departments
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Table 20a
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Function
General Government

City Hall  1  1  1  1  1 
Public Safety

Police Stations  1  1  1  1  1 
Fire Stations  2  2  2  2  2 

Streets
Streets (Lane Miles)  206  207  209  210  210 

Culture and Recreation
Parks Acreage  153  153  153  153  153 
Parks #  17  17  17  17  17 
Swimming Pools (Public)  1  1  1  1  1 
Tennis Courts  3  3  3  3  3 
Baseball Fields  11  11  11  11  11 
Soccer Fields  12  12  12  12  12 
Football Fields  2  2  2  2  2 
Outdoor Basketball Court  1  1  1  1  1 
Remote Airplay Flying Field  1  1  1  1  1 
Golf Courses (Public)  1  1  1  1  — 
Library  1  1  1  1  1 

Sewer
Sanitary Sewer (miles)  54  54  54  54  54 
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Table 20b
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION (Continued)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Function
General Government

City Hall  1  1  1  1 1
Public Safety

Police Stations  1  1  1  1 1
Fire Stations  2  2  2  2 2

Streets
Streets (Lane Miles)  213  213  213  213 213

Culture and Recreation
Parks Acreage  153  153  153  153 153
Parks #  17  17  17  14 14
Swimming Pools (Public)  1  1  1  1 1
Tennis Courts  3  3  3  3 3
Baseball Fields  11  11  11  11 11
Soccer Fields  12  12  12  14 14
Football Fields  2  2  2  —  — 
Outdoor Basketball Court  1  1  1  4 4
Remote Airplay Flying Field  1  1  1  1 1
Golf Courses (Public)  —  —  —  —  — 
Library  1  1  1  1 1

Sewer
Sanitary Sewer (miles)  54  54  54  54 54

Source: Various City Departments
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Honorable. Mayor and Members 
of the City Cotlllcil 

Economic Development Fund 
City of La Vista 
La Vista, Nebraska 

berganKov 
Independent Auclitor's Report 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinio11~ 
We have audited the accoU1panying financial statelllents of the Economic Development FU!ld of the City 
of La Vista, Nebraska (the "Fund"), as of and for the year ended Septen1ber 30, 2022, and the related 
statement f revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance for the year then ended, and the related 
notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the Ftllld's basic financial statements as listed 
in the Table of Contents. 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial staten1ents referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the Economic 
Development Ftllld of the City of La Vista, Nebraska, as of Septen1ber 30, 2022, and the respective 
changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance v.~th accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 
We conducted our audit in accordance v.~th auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Con1ptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities ooder those 
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City ofL1 Vista and to meet our other 
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of l\Iauagement for the Financial Statements 
The City of La Vista's managen1ent is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance v.~th accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this inc hides the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial staten1ents that are free front material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of La Vista's ability to 
continue as a going concern for one year beyond the financial statement date, including any currently 
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

BERGANKDV, LLC I BERGAN KDV.COM I DO MORE. 
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Auclitor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial Statements 
Our objectives are. to obtain reasonable-assurance about whe.ther the financial statements as a whole are 
free. from material misstaten1ent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Govemment 
Auditing Standards ·will always detect a material misstaten1ent when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control 

Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelibood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statemen.ts. 

In perfomling an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the. audit. 
• Identify and assess the risks of mate.rial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perfom1 audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to desigr1 audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion ou the effectiveness of City of La Vista's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion 
is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun.ting policies used and the reasonableness of sigrlificant 
accounting estinlates made by management, as well as evahiate the. overall presentation of the 
financial staten1ents. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate., 
that raise substantial doubt about City ofL1 Vista's ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable. period of tin1e. 

We are required to communicate v.~th those charged \,~th governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and tinling of the audit, sigrlificant audit findings, and certain internal controkelated 
matters that we iden.tified during the audit. 

P1ior Petiod financial Statements 
TI1e financial statements of the Economic Development f und of the. City of La Vista, Nebraska as of 
Septen1ber 30, 2021, were audited with a report dated March 3, 2022, expressed an unmodified opinion 
on those statements. 

BERGA N KDV, UC I BERGANKDV.COM I 00 MORE. 
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Emphasis of !\fatter 
As discussed in Note 1, the financ.ial statements present only the Economic Development Food and do 
not putp0rt to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of La Vista, Nebraska, as of 
Septen1ber 30, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in its financ.ial position for the years then ended in 
accordance \,ith accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion 
is not modified with respect to this maner. 

St. Cloud, Minnesota 
March 28. 2023 
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Economic Development Fund
Balance Sheet

September 30, 2022

2022 2021
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,975,283 $ 5,509,493 
Accounts receivable  3,502,423  — 

Total assets  8,477,706  5,509,493 

Liabilities

Total liabilities  —  — 

Fund Balance
  Restricted for economic development  8,477,706  5,509,493 

Total fund balance $ 8,477,706 $ 5,509,493 
See Notes to the Financial Statements
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Economic Development Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022

2022 2021
Revenues

Other Sales $ 21,114 $ — 
Interest income  7,644 $ 1,445 

Total revenues  28,758  1,445 

Expenditures
Debt service

Interest  64,115  — 
Bond issuance costs  76,430  109,021 

Total expenditures  140,545  109,021 

Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenditures  (111,787)  (107,576) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from the issuance of bonds  3,080,000  5,610,000 

Total other financing sources (uses)  3,080,000  5,610,000 

Net Change in Fund Balance  2,968,213  5,502,424 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  5,509,493  7,069 

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 8,477,706 $ 5,509,493 

See Notes to the Financial Statements

City of La Vista, Nebraska Economic Development Fund  Annual Financial Report

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022 8



Notes to Financial 
Statements
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND  ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT / CITY OF LA VISTA, NEBRASKA

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022 9



Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization
On September 30, 2003, the citizens of the City of La Vista, Nebraska (the “City”) voted to establish the Economic 
Development Program to create jobs and/or develop tourism for the purpose of supporting the City’s commercial 
developments, rehabilitate residential neighborhoods and expand industrial development in order to ensure the 
economic stability and vitality of the City.

Financial Reporting Entity
The financial statements of the Economic Development Fund include all significant separately administered 
activities for which the Economic Development Fund is financially accountable. Financial accountability is 
determined on the basis of selection of governing authority, imposition of will, a financial benefit/burden 
relationship, and/or fiscal dependency. The Economic Development Fund’s financial statements are included in 
the City’s financial statements as a major governmental fund.

The financial statements present only the Economic Development Fund and do not purport to, and do not, present 
fairly the financial position of the City as of September 30, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in its financial position 
for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.

Basis of Accounting
The Economic Development Fund financial statements are prepared using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual (when they become both measurable and available). 
“Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period and that it is legally 
available for such purposes. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for debt 
service expenditures which are reported as expenditures in the year due.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a government’s deposits may not be returned to 
it. The Economic Development Fund follows the City’s deposit policy for custodial credit risk which requires 
compliance with the provisions of state law.

State law requires collateralization of all deposits with federal depository insurance; bonds and other obligations of 
the U.S. Treasury, U.S. agencies or instrumentalities of the State of Nebraska; bonds of any city, county, school 
district or special road district of the State of Nebraska; bonds of any state; or a surety bond having an aggregate 
value at least equal to the amount of the deposits. The Statutes allow pledged securities to be reduced by the 
amount of the deposit insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

The Economic Development Fund participates in the pooled cash accounts maintained by the City.  The Fund’s 
share of this pool was $4,975,283 and $5,509,493 at September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

City of La Vista, Nebraska Economic Development Fund  Annual Financial Report
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Note 2: Long-term Debt

On July 1, 2021, the City issued Economic Development Fund Bonds, Series 2021 for $5,610,000. The interest 
rates on these bonds are 0.350%-1.850% and are callable on July 1, 2026, and mature on October 15, 2029. 
There were interest payments of $47,926 and no principal payments made on these bonds during the year ended 
September 30, 2022.

On November 11, 2021, the City issued Economic Development Fund Bonds, Series 2021B for $3,080,000. The 
interest rates on these bonds are 0.637%-1.800% and are callable on October 15, 2026, and mature on October 
15, 2029. There were interest payments of $16,189 and no principal payments made on these bonds during the 
year ended September 30, 2022. 

Maturities of the long-term debt, subject to mandatory redemption are as follows:

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 
2022 Principal Interest Total

2023  1,050,000  99,136  1,149,136 
2024  1,060,000  94,025  1,154,025 
2025  1,060,000  86,694  1,146,694 
2026  1,075,000  76,449  1,151,449 
2027  1,085,000  63,606  1,148,606 

Total $ 8,690,000 $ 508,887 $ 9,198,887 

Note 3: Receivables

Economic Development Fund 
In connection with the financing of City Centre Music Venue the City has an agreement with the developer to loan 
up to $5,500,000. As of September 30, 2022, the City has transferred a total of $3,487,581. $3,000,000 of the 
amount loaned will be forgiven and discharged upon completion and commencement of operations. $2,500,000 
will be paid back to the City, with interest on or before August 31, 2029. The repayable portion will accrue interest 
at a rate equal to the Prime Rate published in the Wall Street Journal plus 2.25% (7.75% as of September 30, 
2022). This rate resets at the beginning of each month. For the year ended September 30, 2022, the City has 
recorded interest income in the amount of $21,114 and $14,842 of this is accrued for and included in the 
receivable balance at year end.

City of La Vista, Nebraska Economic Development Fund  Annual Financial Report
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ITEM ______ 

CITY OF LA VISTA 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORT

APRIL 4, 2023 AGENDA 

Subject: Type: Submitted By: 

AWARD OF CONTRACT – 
CONCESSION STAND OPERATIONS 

 RESOLUTION
ORDINANCE
RECEIVE/FILE

      RITA RAMIREZ 
  ASSISTANT CITY ADMINISTRATOR/ 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DIRECTOR 

SYNOPSIS 

A resolution has been prepared authorizing the Mayor to execute an extension to the contract with A.L. 
Vending and Concessions, LLC., Monica Larsen, for operation of the concession stands at the Softball 
Complex, Soccer Complex, City Park, and the La Vista Community Center. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The Contractor will pay the City a monthly commission of ten percent (10%) of gross food, beverage and 
merchandise concessions sold from the Softball Complex, Soccer Complex, City Park and Community Center. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approval. 

BACKGROUND 

In April of 2022 bids were solicitated for the operation of concession stands at City facilities.  Only one 
bid was received from A.L. Vending and Concessions, LLC. 

A.L. Vending & Concessions has performed successfully over the last year and has expressed a desire to extend
the contract for another year.  A.L. Vending & Concessions, LLC is a family owned and operated business
with an extensive background in the food and beverage industry. Monica Larsen, owner of A.L. Vending &
Concessions, LLC has owned and operated full food and drink service venues and currently operates food and
drink vending services in multiple locations in the Omaha and Lincoln areas.
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RESOLUTION NO.   
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA, 
NEBRASKA, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A ONE-YEAR CONTRACT WITH 
A.L. VENDING AND CONCESSIONS, LLC., OMAHA, NEBRASKA FOR THE OPERATION OF 
CONCESSIONS AT THE SOFTBALL COMPLEX, SOCCER COMPLEX, CITY PARK, AND 
COMMUNITY CENTER. 

 
WHEREAS,  the City has determined that it is desirable to contract for the operation of 

concession stands at various recreation sites in the City; and  
 

WHEREAS,  A.L. Vending and Concessions, LLC. was awarded a contract in April of 2022 to  
operate the City’s  concession stands at various recreation sites in the City; and 

 
WHEREAS A.L. Vending and Concessions, LLC has performed satisfactorily over the last year 

and is agreeable to extending the current contract for an additional year; and 
 

WHEREAS,  the Recreation Youth and Adult Sports Program Manager recommends awarding 
the contract extension to A.L Vending and Concessions, LLC for one year; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of La Vista, Nebraska, 

do hereby authorize the Mayor to sign a one-year contract extension with A.L 
Vending and Concessions, LLC., Omaha, Nebraska for the operation of the 
concessions at the Softball Complex, Soccer Complex, City Park, and La Vista 
Community Center. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 4TH DAY OF APRIL 2023. 
 

       CITY OF LA VISTA 
 
 
             
       Douglas Kindig, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Pamela A. Buethe, MMC              
City Clerk  
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SOFTBALL COMPLEX, SOCCER COMPLEX, CITY PARK AND COMMUNITY CENTER CONCESSION 
OPERATION AGREEMENT 

THIS SOFTBALL COMPLEX, SOCCER COMPLEX, CITY PARK AND COMMUNITY CENTER 
CONCESSION OPERATION AGREEMENT is made and entered into on April 5, 2023 by and between the 
City of La Vista , a Nebraska municipal corporation (hereinafter referred to as the "City") and AL. Vending and 
Concessions, LLC, a Nebraska corporation, (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Contractor"), and Monica 
Larsen (hereinafter referred to as "Guarantor"). 

WHEREAS, City has established and caused to be operated on its behalf, a softball complex 
concession stand , soccer complex concession stand , city park concession stand, and community center 
concession stand; and 

WHEREAS, City has determined that it is necessary and desirable to cause the softball complex 
concession stand, soccer complex concession stand, city park concession stand , and community center 
concession stand as defined herein (the "Concession Operations") to be operated by Contractor as an 
independent contractor of City ; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor is willing and able to manage and operate such Concession Operations in 
accordance with terms hereinafter set forth. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises, terms, and covenants 
contained , the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Appointment of Contractor. The City hereby appoints Contractor, and Contractor hereby accepts 
such appointment, to operate the Concession Operations on behalf of the City pursuant to the terms 
contained herein . Such Concession Operations shall include, but not be limited to, staffing and 
supervision with Contractor's own employees; record keeping and daily accounting of all revenues 
and expenses related to Softball Complex, Soccer Complex, City Park and Community Center 
Concessions Operations; preparation and submission of statements of operations; operation of 
Softball Complex, Soccer Complex, City Park and Community Center collection of revenues and 
disbursement of all expenses; purchasing and selling food and beverage concessions; purchasing 
supplies and services; procurement of insurance coverage's; maintenance and cleaning of the Softball 
Complex, Soccer Complex, City Park and Community Center concession facilities; maintenance of the 
area immediately surrounding the concession stands to keep the area free of litter during the stands' 
normal hours of operation; collecting, reporting and paying all payroll taxes in respect to all personnel 
employed by the Contractor; development and implementation of sales promotion programs; and such 
other activities as shall be necessary to successful Concession Operations. Contractor shall provide 
all services hereunder under the direct supervision of Monica Larsen. Contractor shall operate all 
aspects of the Concession Operations such that concession stands are open for business during such 
hours as determined by the City and the City 's Recreation Director. 

2. Independent Contractor. In all matters pertaining to Concession Operations, Contractor is and shall 
be an independent contactor. Nothing contained in the Agreement or in the practice or course of 
dealing between the parties shall be construed to create a partnership, joint venture, agency , or 
employment relationship or to create in Contractor any ownership interest in the Concession Buildings 
Softball Complex, Soccer Complex, City Park and Community Center or the operations thereof, except 
as otherwise specifically provided herein. No employee of Contractor shall be deemed to be an 
employee of city. However, the City expressly reserves the right to approve matters pertaining to 
policy for the concession Operations, including but not limited to , general staffing and qualifications 
therefore, concession products, and inventory mixture. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that it 
shall be the obligation of Contractor to report all income, compensation and fees received hereunder 
and to pay all applicable taxes in respect thereto and Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless 
City against any obligation imposed on City to pay withholding , social security, unemployment, or other 
taxes, including interest and penalties in connection with any payments made to Contractor. 



3. Contractor's Employee's. Contractor shall be responsible for hiring and staffing of employees at the 
concession stands and shall be responsible for the withholding and payment of all payroll taxes and 
the payment of all compensation and fringe benefits of its staff in compliance with all applicable laws. 

4. Term and Termination. This Agreement shall be and become effective commencing April 5, 2023, 
and shall be effective for a term of one (1) year ending on April 4, 2024, with the option to renew for 
one additional twelve (12) month period at the discretion of both the City and the Contractor. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing , either the City or Contractor may terminate this Agreement for any 
reason at any time upon written notice given from one party to the other at least thirty (30) days prior to 
the effective date of termination ; provided, however, that if Contractor desires to terminate this 
Agreement and the date of termination is to occur during the months of April through November, 
Contractor shall provide at least ninety (90) days notice of termination . Notice of termination of the 
agreement shall not negate the contractor's obligation to pay rental fees to City and Contractor's 
obligation to operate Concession Operations as provided herein to the date of termination. 

5. Record Keeping Requirements. Contractor agrees to maintain or cause to be maintained, on a 
calendar year basis, complete books, and records of all aspects of the Concession Operations. 
Contractor shall submit to the City monthly financial reports for said operations no later than ten ( 10) 
days following the last day of each month 's operations. Such monthly reports shall contain all 
information related to revenues , expenses, inventories, and cost of goods sold, taxes and fees for the 
month reported . Contractor shall submit a year end report to City reporting such operations for the 
previous year on or before January 1st of each year. All records and reports shall be kept by 
Contractor in the manner and on the forms approved by City. City reserves the right to prescribe cash 
handling, accounting , and reporting practices and procedures which shall be strictly followed by 
Contractor and shall at any time have the right without notice to review and examine all books and 
records of Contractor relating to the concession Operations. In addition, the City reserves the right to 
conduct, or cause to be conducted , an audit of contractor's books and records pertaining to the 
concession Operations, annually or more frequently as it shall determine. In such event, the City shall 
pay for the expense of such audit, provided however, that if such audit discloses shortages or non­
compliance on the part of the Contractor, then Contractor shall pay the cost of the audit. 

6. Equipment and Furnishings. Except for Concession inventory, supplies, and equipment purchased 
by Contractor in connection with Concession Operations, all machinery, equipment, furnishings, and 
replacements thereof, whether purchased or leased by City, shall be the property of the City , and , at 
the termination of this Agreement, possession thereof shall be peaceably given to the city. All 
machinery, equipment and furnishings owned or leased by the City and used by the Contractor for 
Concession Operations shall be maintained, cleaned, and repaired in a husband like manner by 
Contractor and Contractor shall , at all times, keep said machinery , equipment and furnishings in good 
working condition and repair. All City parts, mechanisms and devices required to keep the City 
equipment running in good repair shall be provided at the expense of the City. All Contractor parts, 
mechanisms and devices required to keep the Contractor equipment running in good repair shall be 
provided at the expense of the Contractor. Contractor shall have no authority to mortgage, encumber 
or otherwise hypothecate any of such equipment, machinery, and furnishings, or to contract on behalf 
of the City for any improvements or repairs which would give rise to a mechanic's, artisans, or other 
lien against any of the same. 

7. Fees. In consideration of use of the Concession buildings in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement, Contractor shall pay operation fees as follows: 

a. Contractor shall pay to the City a commission in the amount of ten percent (10%) of gross food , 
beverage and merchandise concessions sold from the Softball Complex, Soccer Complex, City 
Park and Community Center premises. Commissions shall be paid to City by contractor on a 
monthly basis no later than the 10th day of the month and shall accompany the contractor's 
monthly financial report. 



8. Insurance. Contractor shall provide and maintain , at its own expense, general liability insurance in 
the amount of $1,000,000 combined single limit for products liability insurance, property damage 
insurance and personal injury insurance. Contractor shall name the City as additional insured as 
pertains to the performance of this agreement. The insurance policies shall insure the City from any 
and all demands, claims, and causes of action at low or in equity resulting from the performance of 
these services. Contractor agrees to indemnify and save harmless the City from any and all demands, 
claims, causes of action at law or in equity arising out of the performance of these services. 
Contractor shall provide and at all times maintain, at its own expense, Workers' Compensation 
coverage on all personnel employed by Contractor in connection with the concession Operations with 
such endorsements as City shall deem appropriate and with an insurer acceptable to the City. 
Contractor shall provide City with certification of such insurances, subject to the approval of the City 
Attorney. 

9. Notices. Any notices or payments required hereunder shall be made in writing and delivered 
personally or by the U.S. mail in certified or reg istered form, with postage fully prepaid, and addressed 
as follows: 

If to the Corporation: 

If to the Contractor: 

City of La Vista 
8116 Park View Boulevard 
La Vista, Nebraska 68128 

Monica Larsen 
1721 So. 165 Circle 
Omaha, Nebraska 68130 

or such different address as either party may designate in writing to the other. Notice shall be deemed 
given or made upon request. 

10. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed and governed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Nebraska. 

11 . Binding Nature. This agreement shall inure to the benefit and be binding upon the parties hereto and 
their respective successors and assigns. Nothing in this Agreement, either express or implied , is 
intended to confer upon any other person or entity any rights or revenues under or by reason of this 
Agreement. 

12. Waiver. No waiver by either party to this Agreement at any time of any breach of the other party of or 
compliance by the other party with any condition or provision of this Agreement to be performed by the 
other party shall be deemed to be a waiver of similar or dissimilar provisions or conditions at the same 
or any prior to subsequent time. 

13. Counterparts. This document may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed to be an original and each of which shall constitute the parties' Agreement. 

14. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto with 
respect to the subject matter hereof, superseding any prior agreement, understanding, arrangement, 
warranty or representation, oral or written , express or implied, with respect to such subject matter. It 
may not be amended except by a writing signed by the parties hereto. 

15. Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by Contractor without the prior written consent of 
the City . 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands the day and year first set forth above. 

Pamela A. Buethe, MMC 
City Clerk 

CITY OF LA VISTA, NEBRASKA, 
A municipal corporation 

BY: ____________ _ 
Douglas Kindig, Mayor 

CONTRACTOR: AL. VENDING and CONCESSIONS, LLC 
A Nebraska corporation, 

BY: ---------------
Monica Larsen, Managing Member 

"Personal Guarantees: 

The undersigned hereby guarantees full performance of AL. Vending and Concessions, LLC under the 
foregoing Agreement. 

Date: -------------

Monica Larsen , Guarantor 



ITEM _______ 
CITY OF LA VISTA 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
APRIL 4, 2023 AGENDA 

Subject: Type: Submitted By: 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT –  RESOLUTION 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION ORDINANCE JEFF CALENTINE 
AMENDMENT NO. 1 RECEIVE/FILE DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 

SYNOPSIS 

A resolution has been prepared to approve Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Agreement with 
Alfred Benesch and Company, Omaha, Nebraska for construction phase services associated with the pavement 
rehabilitation of Terry Dr., Lillian Ave., and S.78th St. in an amount not to exceed $251,038.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

The FY23/FY24 biennial budget provides funding for this project.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Approval 

BACKGROUND 

On September 6, 2022, City Council approved an agreement with Alfred Benesch and Company to provide 
engineering services for the design and construction of the above-mentioned project.  Benesch has provided 
additional scope to cover the Construction Phase Services of the project, inclusive of project management & 
meetings, construction observation, materials sampling & testing, project closeout, and engineering consultation 
& support. Costs will be accrued on a time and materials basis, for an amount not-to-exceed of $193,284. 

A copy of the scope is attached. 

K:\APPS\City Hall\CNCLRPT (Blue Letters)\23file\23    PW Authorize Amendment 1- Terry Dr, Lillian Ave And 78th St - Pavement Rehab 04.05.2023.Doc 

D



 RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA, 
NEBRASKA AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH ALFRED BENESCH AND COMPANY, 
OMAHA, NEBRASKA FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES ASSOCIATED WITH 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION OF TERRY DR., LILLIAN AVE., AND S.78TH ST IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $251,038.00. 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have determined that professional services for the 

construction phase of Terry Dr., Lillian Ave., and S.78th St are necessary; and 
 
WHEREAS, the FY23/FY24 Biennial Budget provides funding for this project;  
 
WHEREAS, Subsection (c) of Section 31.23 of the La Vista Municipal Code requires that the City 

Administrator secure Council approval prior to authorizing any purchase over 
$5,000.00. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of La Vista, Nebraska, 

do hereby approve amendment No. 1 to the professional services agreement with 
Alfred Benesch and Company for construction phase services associated with 
pavement rehabilitation of Terry Dr., Lillian Ave., and S.78th St in an amount not to 
exceed $251,038.00. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 4TH DAY OF APRIL 2023. 
 
      CITY OF LA VISTA 
 
 
 
            
ATTEST:      Douglas Kindig, Mayor 
 
 
 
     
Pamela A. Buethe, MMC 
City Clerk 
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City of LaVista Consulting WA 
February 2020 

EXHIBIT  A 
 

WORK AUTHORIZATION NO.  01 

PROJECT NO.         DATE  March 27th , 2023  

PROJECT NAME  Terry Dr, Lillian Ave, and S 78th St Pavement Rehabilitation  

CLIENT City of La Vista Public Works  

CLIENT PM  Pat Dowse  CONSULTANT PM  Mike Higgins  

PHONE NO.  402-331-8927  PHONE NO.  402-333-5792  

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
This WORK AUTHORIZATION Number 01, with the Agreement dated March 27th , 2023 , 
between City of La Vista Public Works, herein called Client and Alfred Benesch & Company herein called 
Consultant, constitutes the express authority given Consultant by Client to do work as follows (or as shown in 
Attachment A): 
 
      

The following are attached to and hereby made a part of this Work Authorization: 

 Attachment A: Scope of Services and Fee Estimate 

 Attachment B: Schedule of Unit Rates 

 Exhibit "B" - Scope of Services and Exhibit "C" - Fee Estimate  

        

 

FEE ESTIMATE 
 
CONSULTANT will perform the Scope of Services described above or in Attachment A, and invoice monthly as 
noted below in accordance with the selected payment method: 
 

 Client will pay a Fee based on a Time and Materials not to exceed $193,284 and invoice using 
 Attachment B:  Schedule of Unit Billing Rates. 
 

 Client will pay a Lump Sum Fee of $      and invoice using a percentage completed basis. 
 

 Client will pay by another method as described:       

 CLIENT ALFRED BENESCH & COMPANY 
 
BY: ________________________________________  BY:  
 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE  AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
 
PRINT NAME:_______________________________      PRINT NAME: Jeffery A. Sockel, PE  
 
TITLE: _____________________________________  TITLE: Sr Vice President  
 
DATE: , 20  DATE: March 27th , 2023  
  
 BENESCH OFFICE: Omaha  
 
 ADDRESS: 16910 Marcy St Suite 102  
   
  Omaha, NE 68118  

  
PLEASE SIGN AND RETURN ONE COPY TO ALFRED BENESCH & COMPANY (ADDRESS ABOVE).  

□ 
□ 
~ 

□ 

benesch 
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City of La Vista – Terry Drive, Lillian Avenue, & South 78th Street 

 

CONSULTANT SCOPE OF SERVICES 

CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES  

CITY OF LA VISTA 

TERRY DRIVE, LILLIAN AVENUE, & SOUTH 78TH STREET PAVEMENT REHABILITATION  

 

OVERVIEW 

 

Alfred Benesch & Company (Benesch) proposes to provide the professional services related to 

the project management, construction observation, and material testing for ADA ramp 

construction, concrete pavement repair, asphalt resurfacing, and other related improvements 

on Terry Drive between 81st Street and Park View Boulevard, Lillian Avenue between Park View 

Boulevard and James Avenue, and South 78th Street between Parkview Boulevard and Harrison 

Street in the City of La Vista (City).  The City is considering adding approximately one thousand 

five hundred (1500) square yards of concrete pavement repair on Josephine Street between 

South 78th Street and South 72nd Street to the construction contract associated with this scope 

of services. Services Benesch will provide for the potential work performed on Josephine Street 

by the Contractor are included in this scope. Benesch agrees to provide the services detailed 

below through the identified completion date, or beyond, if mutually agreeable by both parties 

provided the requested services can be performed within the Not-to-Exceed fee limits.  

 

UNDERSTANDING & ASSUMPTIONS 

 

The following identifies assumptions associated with this scope of services and corresponding 

fee estimate: 

• The City shall provide or identify publicly available Contract Documents governing 

construction. 

• The City shall provide any documentation templates or electronic system(s) access 

required for the project. 

• Construction is anticipated to begin on May 1st, 2023, or later 

• Construction is anticipated to be substantially complete by August 5th, 2023, with minor 

work and final completion expected to occur by September 2nd, 2023. 

• Staffing requirements for the projects assigned will consist of one (1) principal- in-charge, 

one (1) project manager, one (1) lead construction observer, one (1) supporting 

construction observer (as needed during peak activities), one (1) materials testing 

technician (as needed), and necessary coordination or administrative support personnel 

as well as regular consultation services. 

• It is anticipated that the lead construction observer will be on site any time the contractor 

is performing work requiring documentation of compliance and/or direct measurement 

for payment on site for the duration of the project. The lead construction observer is 

anticipated to be on site, full-time no more than fifteen (15) weeks (average of 50 hours 

per week). 

• The lead construction observer is anticipated to be on site for an additional two (2) weeks 
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during punch list and site clean-up activities at the end of the project (average of 40 hours 

per week). 

• A supporting construction observer will be on site when the Contractor has multiple, 

major, concurrent operations taking place – estimated effort for the supporting 

construction observer is no more than 204 hours. 

• It is assumed that no SWPPP inspections or construction staking will be required for the 

project 

 

Exhibit "C" indicates the estimated number of hours, personnel, and testing services, and the 

associated fees Benesch anticipates for the  proposed work assigned to Benesch under this 

agreement. Variation of these estimates is expected due to factors beyond Benesch's control 

such as contractor operations, field changes, requested support services, or other situations 

may occur. Benesch’s overall scope of services shall be limited to those that can be performed 

within the approved Contract Not-to-Exceed fee.  

 

The professional services provided by Benesch shall be described under the following major 

categories: 

 

1. Project Management & Meetings 

2. Construction Observation 

3. Materials Sampling & Testing 

4. Project Closeout 

5. Engineering Consultation & Support 

 

The following describes the scope of work related to each of these categories. Services may be 

added or deleted upon request. Changes to the total contract amount will be addressed as 

indicated above. 

 

For the purposes of this agreement, the parties understand that construction observation and 

construction inspection shall be used interchangeably and Benesch is not responsible for the 

Contractor’s means and methods of construction, acceptance or rejection of the work, or the 

authority to approve or deny contracts, change orders, extra work, modifications to the 

requirements of the Contract Documents, etc. To the extent the Construction Contract 

Documents and the Manuals specify sequencing of work, equipment requirements, or other 

construction methods, Benesch shall keep the City informed about the progress and quality of 

the work and shall advise the City about observed or measured deficiencies or deviations in the 

work. 
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PROJECT MANAGEMENT & ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANCE 

 

Benesch shall provide project management services to the City of La Vista in the following 

areas: 

 

• Coordinate activities between the City of La Vista and the Contractor. 

• Assist in project planning and oversight of construction activities. 

• Communicate project updates on a regular basis to the City 

• Review and submit partial pay estimates to the City’s Designated Representative(s) for 

processing and payment. 

• Scheduling personnel and testing activities to comply with the requirements of the City of 

La Vista Public Works Department. 

• Facilitate the pre-construction meeting) and distribute meeting minutes.  

• Facilitate regular progress meetings (anticipate no more than fifteen (15) meetings) and 

distribute meeting minutes. 

• Assist the City with project scheduling and other administrative items upon request. 

 

Administrative assistance shall include, but not be limited to, supporting the City in program 

budget monitoring, construction contract interpretation, conflict resolution, utility and other 

public agency coordination, project stakeholder engagement, and interacting with the public to 

address questions, concerns, or special requests.  

 

CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION 

 

Benesch shall provide construction observation services to the City of La Vista using a member 

of our technical staff. Benesch construction observers will perform the following tasks: 

• Paint removal limits for ADA, concrete panel repair, and milling operations for the City’s 

review. 

• Observe and document the site conditions and the Contractor’s work. 

• Review work for compliance with contract documents and report any observed deficiencies 

to the City in a timely manner. 

• Measure and record quantities of work performed by the contractor. 

• Observe and record potential (when identified) or actual change order and/or force account 

work. 

• Document and address questions and concerns from stakeholder in or near the project site. 

• Complete materials testing on site when project work and staffing allows. 

• Create a punch list, distribute to the Contractor, and confirm items are addressed 
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MATERIALS SAMPLING & TESTING 

 

Benesch shall provide materials testing services consistent with the current version of the City 

of Omaha’s Materials and Testing Manual for Public Works Construction and any project 

specific requirements using our nationally accredited and/or NDOT-certified materials testing 

laboratories. As determined to be appropriate, Benesch will utilize on site inspectors to perform 

field testing. Any testing that is not performed by inspectors will be performed by lab 

personnel. These services will include the following as deemed necessary by the Project 

Manager or the City: 

 

• Quality assurance acceptance testing of the plant-produced hot-mix asphalt for 

volumetric properties, gradations, and consensus aggregate properties (assume no more 

than two (2) tests). 

• Quality assurance acceptance testing of pavement core samples to determine density, 

thickness, and percent compaction (assume no more than four (4) cores). 

• Periodic sampling and testing of Portland cement concrete used in construction of curb 

and gutter, curb ramps, pavement repair, and utility adjustments for air content, slump, 

temperature, and compressive strength (assume no more than thirty (30) tests performed 

by inspectors and twenty (20) tests performed by lab personnel). 

 

PROJECT CLOSEOUT 

 

Benesch will provide the following services for closeout at the completion of the project: 

 

• Create and issue a final punch list to the contractor. 

• Verify all work is complete according to the contract documents. 

• Provide As-builts of work completed to the City in PDF format. 

• Complete a final project walk through with the City, Contractor, and any others as 

determined by the City. 

• Submit a final closeout package to the City including field diaries, quantity calculations, 

pertinent project correspondence, field photos, and material test reports. 

 

ENGINEERING CONSULTATION & SUPPORT  

 

Benesch shall provide technical support to assess site conditions, work performed, and provide 

technical advice or guidance to complete the work outlined in the Contract Documents on an 

as-needed or as-requested basis subject to budget availability. Support anticipated as part of 

this task include, but are not limited to, consultation from a Professional Engineer or similar 

qualified individual regarding construction engineering best practices, contractor means & 

methods, soils/geotechnical issues, or other relevant issues.  Benesch will also provide training 

for City personnel on standard processes and procedures common to the work taking place as 

requested by the City. 
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COMPENSATION 

 

Compensation for professional services related to project management. construction 

observation. consultation & other support services, and project closeout shall be on an hourly 

rate basis using established hourly billing rates determined by the classification of the 

personnel, as defined by Benesch, and the corresponding rates indicated in Exhibit "C" 

consistent with Benesch’s current Construction Testing Services Fee Schedule, updated 

annually. A list of staff including their corresponding classification will be provided for review 

and approval prior to the start of work upon request.  

 

Compensation for laboratory and field testing of asphalt, concrete, and soil materials shall be 

based upon the current Construction Testing Services Fee Schedule, updated annually and 

supplemented by Benesch (Omaha Division) standard rate schedule for required/requested 

tests not covered under the City's standard testing rate schedule. Compensation for on-site 

plant monitoring shall be based upon the employee classification and corresponding hourly 

billing rate. 

 

Vehicle mileage (including rental vehicles) shall be reimbursed at a rate of $0.75/mile. 

Administrative (copying, printing, postage, etc.), observation (paint, lathe, rental equipment, 

etc.), software access fees, and other direct expenses shall be reimbursed at actual cost unless 

specific reimbursement rates are indicated in Exhibit "C".  

 



Exhibit "C"

Rate Est. Estimated

Personnel Classification $/Hour Hours Cost

E1 - Professional Engineer (Consultant or Principal) 251.00$        4 $1,004.00

E2a - Project Scientist II, Project Engineer II 176.00$        45 $7,920.00

E3b - Project Coordinator I, Construction Representative II 127.00$        369 $46,863.00

E4 - Sr Tech, Sr Project Inspector, Sr Env Tech 110.00$        116 $12,760.00

E5 - Engg Tech II, Project Inspector II, Env Tech II, Party Chief 98.00$          930 $91,140.00

E6 - Engg Tech I, Project Inspector I, Env Tech I 84.00$          104 $8,736.00

Subtotal Direct Labor Costs $168,423.00

Direct Nonsalary Costs

Printing, Communication, Misc. Suppies/Expenses @ est. 1% of Labor Charges $1,700.00

Vehicle Mileage @ $0.75/mi $4,725.00

Construction Materials Testing Trip Charge @ $118/Trip $5,900.00

Asphalt Unit Rate Testing $3,376.00

Concrete Unit Rate Testing $7,560.00

Misc Unit Rate Testing $0.00

Misc Chargeable Expenses $1,600.00

Subtotal Direct Expense Costs $24,861.00

Total Estimated Not to Exceed Fee $193,284.00

La Vista Pavement Rehabilitation Construction Engineering & Inspection Services

Terry Drive, Lillian Avenue, & South 78th Street - City of La Vista Public Works Department

Fee Estimate for Professional Engineering Services

Fee Estimate

Page 1 of 2
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Task 1 Project Management & Meetings 1 32 205 0 0 0 238 31,918.00$ 400$ 675$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 1,075$ 32,993.00$ 

Task 2 Construction Observation 1 6 130 100 890 104 1231 124,773.00$ 1,300$ 3,675$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 1,600$ 6,575$ 131,348.00$ 

Task 3 Materials Sampling & Testing 0 0 0 16 0 0 16 1,760.00$ -$ 75$ 5,900$ 3,376$ 7,560$ -$ -$ 16,911$ 18,671.00$ 

Task 4 Project Closeout 0 3 14 0 40 0 57 6,226.00$ -$ 225$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 225$ 6,451.00$ 

Task 5 Engineering Consultation & Support 2 4 20 0 0 0 26 3,746.00$ -$ 75$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 75$ 3,821.00$ 

4 45 369 116 930 104 1568 1,700$ 4,725$ 5,900$ 3,376$ 7,560$ -$ 1,600$ 

168,423.00$ 24,861$ 193,284.00$ 

Reimbursables

Task

Subtotal

Project Subtotal

La Vista Pavement Rehabilitation Construction Engineering & 
Terry Drive, Lillian Avenue, & South 78th Street - City of La Vista Public Works 

Fee Estimate for Professional Engineering Services

Project Summary

Personnel Services

Page 2 of 2



ITEM _______ 
CITY OF LA VISTA 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORT 
APRIL 4, 2023 AGENDA 

Subject: Type: Submitted By: 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT –  RESOLUTION 
EAST LA VISTA SEWER & PAVEMENT ORDINANCE PAT DOWSE 
REHABILITATION – AMENDMENT NO. 3 RECEIVE/FILE CITY ENGINEER 

SYNOPSIS 

A resolution has been prepared authorizing the execution of Amendment No. 3 to the Professional Services 
Agreement with HGM Associates, Inc., Omaha, Nebraska for construction phase services associated with the 
East La Vista Sewer and Pavement Rehabilitation Project in an additional amount not to exceed $774,431.      

FISCAL IMPACT 

The FY23/FY24 Biennial Budget provides funding for this project. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approval. 

BACKGROUND 

The City’s current agreement with HGM Associates Inc. was executed on June 4, 2019, to which a subsequent 
administrative amendment was executed on November 11, 2019, to study the conditions of the existing sanitary 
sewer and pavement conditions on the original east side of La Vista, from east of 72nd Street to 69th Avenue, 
from south of Harrison Street to 69th Street.  The 2nd Amendment was approved on July 7, 2021, for the final 
design of the project.  The 3rd Amendment is to provide construction phase services inclusive of scope items 
such as:  contractor progress meetings; contractor submittal reviews; construction observation, reporting and 
inspections; construction staking; materials testing; and project closeout items. 

A copy of the scope is attached. 

K:\APPS\City Hall\CNCLRPT (Blue Letters)\21file\21   PW - East La Vista Sewer - Amendment No. 2 07.06.2021.Doc 
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RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA, 
NEBRASKA AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AMENDMENT NO. 3 TO THE 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH HGM ASSOCIATES, INC., OMAHA, 
NEBRASKA FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES ASSOCIATED WITH THE EAST LA 
VISTA SEWER AND PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT IN AN ADDITIONAL AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $774,431.00. 
  
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have determined that professional services for the 

construction phase services associated with the East La Vista Sewer and 
Pavement Rehabilitation Project are necessary; and 

 
WHEREAS, the FY23/FY24 Biennial Budget includes funding for this project; and 
 
WHEREAS, Subsection (C) (9) of Section 31.23 of the La Vista Municipal Code requires that 

the City Administrator secure council approval prior to authorizing any purchases 
over $5,000;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of the City of La Vista, 

Nebraska, do hereby approve amendment No. 3 to the professional services 
agreement with HGM Associates, Inc. to provide construction phase services 
associated with the East La Vista Sewer and Pavement Rehabilitation Project in an 
additional amount not to exceed $774,431.00. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 4TH DAY OF APRIL 2023. 
 
       CITY OF LA VISTA 
        
 
 
               
       Douglas Kindig, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Pamela A. Buethe, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
K:\APPS\City Hall\23 FINAL RESOLUTIONS\23.   PSA With HGM  
04.04.2023.Doc 
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640 FIFTH AVENUE, COUNCIL BLUFFS, IOWA 51501-6427, (712) 323-0530, FAX (712) 323-0779 

 

 
 
 
 
March 27, 2023 
 
 
 
Mr. Pat Dowse, P.E. 
City Engineer 
City of LaVista  
9900 Portal Road 
LaVista, Nebraska 68128 
 
 
Subject: East LaVista Sewer and Pavement Rehabilitation Amendment No. 3 
  Phase III Construction Administration Services 
  HGM Project No. 702619 
   
 
Dear Mr. Dowse: 
 
On behalf of HGM ASSOCIATES INC. (HGM) we are pleased to provide Phase III Construction 
Administration Services for the above referenced project as Amendment No.3 to our agreement dated 
June 4, 2019.  This amendment consists of this letter, the attached Scope of Services labeled as Exhibit 
A and the attached Manhour & Fee Estimate labeled as Exhibit B.   
 
HGM will provide Basic Engineering Services for Construction Administration.  These services are 
more specifically defined in the attached Scope of Services, Exhibit A.  We will also provide 
Additional Services upon your request and receipt of your written authorization. 
 
HGM will provide these Basic Services on an hourly basis with our total estimated cost to be 
$744,431.00.  Additional Services will be charged on an hourly basis in accordance with our standard 
hourly rate schedule.   
 
We anticipate that we will be able to begin work on this project upon receiving your authorization to 
proceed in the form of your acceptance of this agreement.  We estimate that all as-built and project 
documentation work can then be completed within 60 days of the construction contractors completion 
of the project.  If at any time we are delayed in the performance of these services, we will notify you 
immediately.  Please note that any information to be provided by you as defined under Client's 
Responsibilities in the attached Scope of Services will need to be furnished to HGM prior to our 
beginning work. 
  

_hgm_ 
ASSOCIATES INC. 
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City of La Vista 
March 27, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 
Please indicate your authorization of these additional services by signing where indicated below 
and returning one original signed copy to this office; OR, you may then scan a complete set of 
this document and email in its entirety to HGM. We sincerely appreciate the opportunity to work 
with you. 
 
 
Yours very truly, 
HGM ASSOCIATES INC. - CONSULTANT 

 

William J. Glismann, P.E. Stephen W. Moffitt, P.E.   
Senior Project Manager Vice President    
      
 
 
 
 
Authorization of Additional Services: 
City of LaVista 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Authorized Signature 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Printed Name & Title 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Date 
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This is an exhibit attached to and made part of the Amendment No. 3, dated March 27, 2023, to 
the letter agreement dated June 4, 2019 between: CITY OF LA VISTA (CLIENT) and HGM 
ASSOCIATES INC. (CONSULTANT). 
 

 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION AND OBSERVATION  

FOR EAST LA VISTA SEWER & PAVEMENT REHABILITATION  

PROJECT NO. M375(228) 

 

HGM will furnish Construction Administration and full-time Observation Services during the 
construction phase of the East La Vista Sewer & Pavement Rehabilitation project.     

In the performance of these services, HGM shall not have authority or responsibility to supervise, direct, 
or control the Contractor's work or the Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures 
of construction.  HGM shall not have authority or responsibility for safety precautions and programs 
incident to the Contractor's work or for any failure of the Contractor to comply with laws, regulations, 
rules, ordinances, codes or orders applicable to the Contractor furnishing and performing the work.  The 
Contractor shall have sole responsibility for safety and for maintaining safe practices and avoiding unsafe 
practices or conditions.  These services shall in no way relieve the Contractor of complete supervision of 
the work or the Contractor's obligation for complete compliance with the drawings and specifications.  
Specific services performed by the HGM are as follows: 

1. Pre-construction Conference - At the date and time selected by the Owner and at 
facilities provided by the Owner, conduct a pre-construction conference. HGM will 
prepare an agenda for the conference, record and distribute meeting minutes to those in 
attendance. The pre-construction conference will include: 

a. Discussion of the Contractor's tentative schedule; procedures for transmittal and review 
of the Contractor's submittals; processing payment applications, frequency of 
payment, and deadline for submittal of pay request; critical work sequencing; change 
orders; record documents; and the Contractor's responsibilities for safety and first 
aid. Procedures for dealing with unforeseen problems will be developed and discussed. 

b. Discussion of utilities point of contact, utility locations and conflicts, critical work 
sequencing and scheduling, and procedures for dealing with unforeseen problems. 

c. Discussion of weekly Progress Meeting time and location. 

2. Progress Meetings - HGM will conduct progress meetings as needed during the project 
construction time frame. HGM Project Engineer will attend and prepare meeting attendance 
sheets and agendas, record and distribute meeting minutes for a maximum of 6-meetings over 
the course of the contract. 

3. Review Contractor's Submittals – HGM will coordinate Contractor submittals for equipment, 
materials, and construction with the HGM Project Engineer.  All requests for variations from the 
contract documents will be reviewed with City of La Vista before issuing an approval to the 
contractor.  Such reviews shall not extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences, or 
procedures of construction or to safety precautions and programs incident thereto. 



SCOPE OF SERVICES        EXHIBIT A 
           Page 2 of 3 
 

4. Construction Observation - HGM will furnish full-time Construction Administration and 
Observation Services during the construction phase of the projects based the dates outlined in 
Exhibit B, Manhours & Fee Proposal. Full-time Construction Observation will be of the general 
progress of the work to assist in determining if the work is proceeding in accordance with the 
plans and specifications.  All discrepancies observed during full-time observation will be reported 
to City of La Vista, and Contractor.  The HGM Project Manager shall approve corrective 
measures prior to correcting work. 

5. Construction Reporting – HGM will provide a Weekly Work Report that will be a weekly 
summary of observed days of the contractor’s work.  A field diary will be kept as a record of the 
construction activities and collection of shipping tickets of delivered materials. 

6. Pay Requests – Pay requests will be generated by HGM based on the measured quantities of 
work.   HGM will review the quantities with City of La Vista’s representative and will verify 
quantity discrepancies with the Contractor, as needed. 

7. Process Change Orders - HGM will coordinate the preparation of change orders that are agreed to 
by the contract parties.  Documentation to support the basis for the claim will be developed, as 
well as justification for change to the contract price.  HGM will review change order requests and 
they will be discussed with City of La Vista before they are developed in final form. 

8. Drawing Interpretation – HGM will provide any contractor questions to City of La Vista through 
the Project Manager.  HGM has assumed only enough staff time to process information from the 
Contractor to City of La Vista and to document decisions resulting from interpretations provided 
by City of La Vista. 

9. Final Inspection – HGM will schedule a final walk through for the project with the City of La 
Vista, Owner and Contractors.  HGM will conduct the final completion walk through to identify 
items requiring completion or correction prior to final payment.  HGM will prepare the final 
completion punch list and distribute to City of La Vista and Contractor. 

10. Record Drawings – HGM will maintain record drawings and specifications based on site 
observation and the Contractor’s record drawings. This information will be combined and one a 
copy of the record drawings will be provided to City of La Vista at the completion of the project. 

11. Construction Staking – HGM will provide the following construction survey staking services. 

a. Verify project control 

b. Mark Removals – 14 Phases 

c. Stake Paving Hubs – Phases A, B & C. 

12. Construction Testing – Thiele Geotech will provide material testing and earthwork compaction 
testing in accordance with their attached scope of services. 
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13. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP)  -  HGM will provide the following SWPPP 
Inspection Services: 

a. Prepare NPDES permit application and submit to NE Department Environment & 
Energy. 

b. Prepare and Submit Grading Permit / SWPPP Application through the Papillion Creek 
Watershed Partnership (PCWP) website. 

c. Set up Reporting Information on Papillion Creek Watershed Partnership website 
(PERMIX). 

d. Perform SWPPP Inspection of site in accordance with NDEQ and PCWP requirements. 
Inspection of site to be done weekly and after all rainfall events greater than ½ inch. 

e. Submit Inspection Reports electronically on the Papillion Creek Watershed 
Partnership website. 

f. Prepare project closeout documents for SWPPP final submittal.  

g. Inspection period shall be from start of construction until final closeout of SWPPP 
after vegetation has been established.  Closeout estimated to be October 2024.   

14. Project Management – Project management services will be provided including: 

a. Contact utilities, distribute a project map, and schedule a utility meeting (if required), 

b. Contract management and invoicing,  

c. Other general project management tasks as required for the project based on the current 
scope and construction completion schedule of 30 - working days. 

15. Project Close-Out – HGM will compile the following files and paperwork to submit to City of La 
Vista.  

a. As-built Plan 

b. Itemized project costs 

c. Electronic Files of the following: 

i. As-built drawings - pdf files 

ii. Project daily inspection reports – pdf 

iii. Project test reports – pdf 

iv. As-built certification form – pdf 

v. Itemized project costs - pdf 
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MANHOUR AND FEE ESTIMATE
CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING / OBSERVATION

WJG PAP RJM JLE DEF ZEH JML+JDD

Task Task Description
Project 

Mgr
Constr 

Manager
Constr 

Observer
2nd Const 
Observer

RLS
CADD 
Tech

Survey 
Crew

Total

2023 Construction - East La Vista Construction Phase Services (193 work days M-S, 35 weeks)
1 Pre-Construction Activity 6 20 20 46
2 Construction Phase 105 772 1930 483 3290
3 Post-Construction Activity 12 20 20 52
4 Project Management 35 35
5 Contruction Survey 20 12 133 165
6 Contingency Hours (0%) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Hours - 2023 158 812 1970 483 20 12 133 3588

Hourly Rate $223.68 $140.00 $136.32 $98.40 $190.78 $115.20 $245.00
2023 Amount per Disipline $35,341 $113,680 $268,550 $47,527 $3,816 $1,382 $32,585

2024 Construction - East La Vista Construction Phase Services (62 work days M-S, 11 weeks)
1 Pre-Construction Activity 2 10 10 22
2 Construction Phase 33 248 620 155 1056
3 Post-Construction Activity 12 20 20 52
4 Project Management 11 11
5 Contruction Survey 0
6 Contingency Hours (0%) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Hours - 2024 58 278 650 155 0 0 0 1141

Hourly Rate $237.10 $148.40 $144.50 $104.30 $202.23 $122.11 $259.70
2024 Amount per Disipline $13,752 $41,255 $93,924 $16,167 $0 $0 $0

Grand Total Hours 216 1090 2620 638 20 12 133 4729
Amount per Disipline $49,093 $154,935 $362,474 $63,694 $3,816 $1,382 $32,585

TOTAL DIRECT LABOR $667,979
SUBCONTRACTOR (Thiele - Material Testing) $93,873

SUBCONTRACTOR (TREKK - Sanitary Sewer Review) $12,579

TOTAL FEE $774,431

Awarded Contract Price 4,715,079$    
% of EST. 16.42%

EXHIBIT "B"

I 

I 



Working Day Calculation (See Next Tab) 2023 2024 Totals

449 Contract Calendar Days 241 74 315
4/3/23 Start Date

5/31/24 End Date
314 Working Days (Mon-Sat) 193 62 255

65 Calendar Weeks 35 11 45
Winter days from 12/1/2023 thru 3/17/2024 are excluded

Construction Observer Construction Manager Project Manager
Preconstruction Phase 20 hours Preconstruction Phase 20 hours Preconstruction Phase 6 hours

Distribute Leaflets Create Information Leaflets Manage resources
Attend precon meeting
Review and approve construction schedule Arrange and direct precon meeting Contract administration
Take, document and provide precon photos Review and approve construction schedule Attend precon meeting

Provide PR contact to repond to public Review and approve construction schedule

Construction Phase - 1 10 hrs/day 6 days/wk Construction Phase - 1 4 hrs/day 6 days/wk Construction Phase - 1 3 hrs/wk
Maintain field documents Establish document management system Manage resources

Input daily entries into Daily Report form Direct weekly meetings, take minutes Contract administration
Monitor contractor for compliance Process change order paperwork Provide Engineering Assistance

Review traffic control daily Provide PR contact to repond to public
Observe and record change order work Act as Construction Observer when required
Mark removals per City standards Overlap with other projects or Observer Ill
Document manhole conditions using provided software
Provide 2nd Observer for 25% of working days

Post Construction 20 hours Post Construction 20 hours Post Construction 12 hours
Final Walkthrough Final Walkthrough Final Walkthrough
Preprare Punchlist Preprare Punchlist Manage resources
Verify all work completed and approved Verify all work completed and approved Contract administration

Material Testing - included above Material Testing - included above Material Testing - Included above
Perform on site tests Perform on site tests Manage resources

Acquire and record material certifications Acquire and record material certifications Contract administration

- - -
- - -

- - -



 
A D/WBE, SBA 8(A), WOSB Certified 

Civil Engineering Firm 

 

 

IMPROVING LIVES. 

ATTACHMENT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR 

HGM – EAST La VISTA SEWER 

CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
 

The general scope of this work includes construction phase services for the sanitary sewer rehabilitation 

work associated with the East La Vista project.  

 

TASK 1 – PROJECT ADMINISTRATION: 

1. TREKK’s in-house project management, administration, budget tracking, and monthly billing 

(based on 2 months). 

 

TASK 2 – CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES: 

1. Review project submittals (up to 2 @ 1hr per month). 
2. Attend Monthly Progress Meetings during construction (up to 2 @ 1 per month). 

3. Attend public meeting (up to 1 @ 3 hr/each). 

4. Respond to RFI’s, SDI’s and Contractor coordination during construction (up to 6 request at 1 

hr/each). 

5. Site visits in response to Contractor questions (up to 6 visits @ 2 hr/each). 

6. Substantial Completion Inspection (up to 1 visit up to 6 hrs). 

7. Final Completion Inspection (up to 1 visit up to 6 hrs). 

8. Perform post construction CCTV review (up to 16 hrs). 

 

ITEMS NOT INCLUDED IN THE SCOPE: 

1. Construction Staking,  

2. Construction Materials Testing. 
3. Construction Observation. 

4. Other items not listed in the scope above. 

TR:KK 
DESIGN GROUP LLC 



Project Name & Number HGM - East La vista CPS Fee

Mileage

 Labor                    

Sub-Total  Direct Exp        Sub-Total  TOTAL 

Fee Billing Rate 0.685$                   Description Quantity Cost/Unit Sub-Total

Task 1 - Project Adminstration 1,384.00$                  -$                                        1,384.00$                

Project Administration (based on 2 months) -$                     1,384.00$                  -$                                        1,384.00$                

Task 2 - Construction Phase Services  11,010.00$                184.95$                                  11,194.95$              

Submittal Review -$                     1,340.00$                  -$                                        1,340.00$                

Monthly Progress Meetings - (Up to 2 @ 1 hr per month) -$                     710.00$                     -$                                        710.00$                   

Public Meetings - (Up to 1 @ 3 hr/each) 30 -$                     705.00$                     20.55$                                    725.55$                   

RFI's/Coordination with Contractor (Up to 6 request at 1 hr/each) -$                     1,105.00$                  -$                                        1,105.00$                

Site Visits in response to Contractor questions (up to 6 visits @ 2hr/each) 180 -$                     2,850.00$                  123.30$                                  2,973.30$                

Substantial Completion 30 -$                     955.00$                     20.55$                                    975.55$                   

Final Completion 30 -$                     955.00$                     20.55$                                    975.55$                   

CCTV Review -$                     2,390.00$                  -$                                        2,390.00$                

TOTAL MAN-HOURS / QUANTITY 270

UNIT RATE 0.69$                     

TREKK DESIGN GROUP FEE TOTAL 184.95$        -$             12,394.00$      184.95$                      12,578.95$     

18 0 0 12 42 0 0 0 0 

1 6 

3 

1 6 

2 4 2 

Survey Crew

Direct Expenses

$235.00 $176.00 $235.00 $145.00 $120.00 $105.00 $145.00 $115.00 $185.00 

2023 Fee Estimate Worksheet

Project Principal Project Manager
Senior Professional 

Engineer
Project Engineer I Project Designer III

Senior 

Administration

Survey Manager 

(PLS)
Utility Locator

2 4 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 

WORK TASK DESCRIPTION

04 0 12 42 2 0 0

16 

2 

2 

1 6 

6 12 

 $                  -   

$115.00 $185.00 

 $         4,700.00  $         704.00  $                     -    $      1,740.00  $      5,040.00  $         210.00  $                  -    $                  -   

$176.00 $235.00 $145.00 $120.00 $105.00 $145.00 $235.00 

20

2 6 

2 

TR:r<K 



T h i e l e  G e o t e c h  I n c

Proposal for Material Testing Services
East La Vista Sewer and Pavement Rehabilitation

72nd and Harrison St.
La Vista, Nebraska
January 23, 2023

Thiele Geotech, Inc. is pleased to submit our proposal for material testing services for the referenced project.  The 
following sections detail services that may be provided.  A listing of applicable unit rates is attached in Exhibit A and 
the contract terms are attached in Exhibit B.

SCOPE OF SERVICES – MATERIALS TESTING

Material testing on this project may consist of the following services:

1. Observation of site stripping and proof-rolling

2. Compaction tests on structural fill and backfill

3. Compaction tests on pavement subgrades

4. Test concrete materials and make cylinders

5. Sample asphalt materials and periodically monitor laydown compaction

6. Appurtenant laboratory tests on soil, concrete, and asphalt materials

7. Engineering consultation, reports, and project management

Test procedures, requirements, frequency, and locations will be as set forth in the plans and specifications or as 
directed by the Architect/Engineer or field representative.  Testing will be conducted on an "on-call" basis.

ESTIMATED COST & BILLING

Material testing services will be billed at the unit rates listed in Exhibit A.  Any tests not listed will be billed at our 
normal fee schedule rates in effect at the time of the test.  Based on the number of tests in Exhibit A, the total cost 
for testing services is estimated at $93,873.  This cost estimate is not intended as a not-to-exceed or lump-sum cost.  
The number of tests performed is highly dependent upon numerous factors beyond our control, including weather 
conditions, the contractor's schedule and performance, and the amount of discretionary testing requested.  
Consequently, the actual cost may be higher or lower than the estimated cost.  We will bill only for the tests actually 
performed, and not on any lump sum or minimum cost basis.

EXHIBITS

Exhibit A - Unit Rate Schedule
Exhibit B - General Conditions

THIELE GEOTECH, INC. CLIENT:  

By:  By:  Date:  

Robert E. Matlock, SVP Name:  

13478 Chandler Road Address:  

Omaha, Nebraska  68138-3716 City, State:  

402/556-2171      Fax 402/556-7831 Phone:  Fax:  

~ 



 T     h     i     e     l     e            G     e     o     t     e     c     h            I     n     c

Material Testing Proposal January 23, 2023
Exhibit A

COST ESTIMATE
East La Vista Sewer and Pavement Rehabilitation

Description Estimated Unit Estimated
Quantity Rate Cost

Sanitary Sewer
Compaction Test (ea.) 331.0 50.00 16,550.00
Trip Charge - Zone 1 Metro Area (/trip) 67.0 80.00 5,360.00

Driveway and Sidewalk
Compaction Test (ea.) 21.0 50.00 1,050.00
Trip Charge - Zone 1 Metro Area (/trip) 11.0 80.00 880.00
Concrete Test Set (slump/air/temp/cast 4-4"x8" OR 3-6"x12" Cyl) 31.0 110.00 3,410.00
Compressive Strength of Cylinder (ea.) 124.0 24.00 2,976.00
Trip Charge - Zone 1 Metro Area (/trip) 45.0 80.00 3,600.00

Concrete Paving
Compaction Test (ea.) 154.0 50.00 7,700.00
Trip Charge - Zone 1 Metro Area (/trip) 31.0 80.00 2,480.00
Concrete Test Set (slump/air/temp/cast 4-4"x8" OR 3-6"x12" Cyl) 24.0 110.00 2,640.00
Compressive Strength of Cylinder (ea.) 96.0 24.00 2,304.00
Trip Charge - Zone 1 Metro Area (/trip) 16.0 80.00 1,280.00
Pavement Core (includes patch) (ea.) 14.0 94.00 1,316.00
Measured Length of Core (ea.) 14.0 17.00 238.00
Trip Charge - Zone 1 Metro Area (/trip) 2.0 80.00 160.00

HMA Overlay
HMA Gyratory (% AC, Gradation, MLD, MTD) /(set) 20.0 570.00 11,400.00
Coarse Aggregate Angularity (ea.) 20.0 120.00 2,400.00
Fine Aggregate Angularity (ea.) 20.0 120.00 2,400.00
Engineering Technician (/hr.) 30.0 98.00 2,940.00
Trip Charge - Zone 1 Metro Area (/trip) 20.0 80.00 1,600.00
Pavement Core (includes patch) (ea.) 20.0 94.00 1,880.00
Core Compaction and Measured Length (ea.) 20.0 44.00 880.00
Trip Charge - Zone 1 Metro Area (/trip) 5.0 80.00 400.00

Miscellaneous
Senior Project Engineer (/hr.) 77.0 208.00 16,016.00
Standard Proctor (ea.) 3.0 215.00 645.00
Modified Proctor (ea.) 3.0 240.00 720.00
Atterberg Limits (/set) 6.0 108.00 648.00

Total 93,873.00



Material Testing Proposal January 23, 2023
Exhibit B

GENERAL CONDITIONS

T h i e l e  G e o t e c h  I n c

1. SCOPE OF WORK:  Thiele Geotech, Inc. (including its officers, 
directors, employees and subconsultants, hereafter referred to as TG) shall 
perform the services described in the contract and shall invoice the client 
for those services at the Fee Schedule rates.  Any cost estimates stated in 
this contract shall not be considered as firm figures unless specifically 
stated in this contract.  If unexpected site conditions are discovered, the 
scope of services may change.  TG will provide additional services at the 
contract Fee Schedule rates.

2. ACCESS TO SITES, PERMITS, AND APPROVALS:  The client shall 
furnish TG with right-of-access to the site in order to conduct the planned 
exploration.  Unless otherwise agreed, the client will also secure all 
necessary permits, approvals, licenses, and consents necessary to the 
performance of the services hereunder.  While TG will take reasonable 
precautions to minimize damage to the property, it is understood by the 
client that, in the normal course of work, some damage may occur, the 
restoration of which is not part of this agreement.

3. UTILITIES:  In the performance of its work, TG will take reasonable 
precautions to avoid damage or injury to subsurface utilities or structures.  
This includes requesting locates of utility owned lines and services.  The 
client agrees to hold TG harmless and indemnify TG for any claims, 
payments, or other liability, including attorney fees, incurred by TG for 
damage to any privately owned subsurface utilities or structures which are 
not correctly identified to TG.

4. UNANTICIPATED HAZARDOUS MATERIALS:  It shall be the duty of 
the client to advise TG of any known or suspected hazardous substances 
which are or may be related to the services provided; such hazardous 
substances including but not limited to products, materials, or wastes which 
may exist on or near any premises upon which work is to be performed by 
TG.  If TG observes or suspects the existence of hazardous materials 
during the course of providing services, TG may, at its option, suspend 
further work on the project and notify client of the conditions.  Services will 
be resumed only after a renegotiation of scope of services and fees.  In the 
event that such renegotiation cannot occur to the satisfaction of TG, TG 
may, at its option, terminate this contract.  It is understood and agreed that 
TG does not create, generate, or at any time take possession or ownership 
of hazardous materials as a result of its exploration services.

5. REPORTS AND INVOICES:  TG will furnish up to 3 copies of reports 
to the client.  Additional copies will be provided at the expense of the client.  
TG may submit invoices to the client monthly and upon completion of 
services.  Payment is due upon presentation of invoices and past due 30 
days from the invoice date.  Client agrees to pay a finance charge on past 
due invoices of 1.25 percent per month, but not exceeding the maximum 
rate allowed by law.

6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS:  All reports, boring logs, data, notes, 
calculations, estimates, and other documents prepared by TG as 
instruments of service shall remain the property of TG.

7. SAMPLE DISPOSAL:  Unless otherwise agreed, test specimens or 
samples will be disposed immediately upon completion of the test.

8. CONFIDENTIALITY:  TG will hold confidential all business or technical 
information obtained from the client or generated in the performance of 
services hereunder and identified in writing by the client as confidential.  TG 
will not disclose such information without the client's consent except to the 
extent required for; 1) performance of services under this contract; 2) 
compliance with professional standards of conduct for preservation of 
public safety, health, and welfare; 3) compliance with any court order or 
other governmental directive; and/or 4) protection of TG against claims or 
liabilities arising from performance of services under this contract.  TG's 
obligations hereunder shall not apply to information in the public domain or 
lawfully acquired on a non-confidential basis from others.  TG's technical 
and pricing information are to be considered confidential and proprietary, 
and shall not be released or otherwise made available to any third party 
without the express written consent of TG.

9. STANDARD OF CARE:  Services performed by TG under this contract 
will be conducted in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill 
ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently practicing 

under similar conditions.  No other warranty, express or implied, is made or 
intended by the proposal for services or by furnishing oral or written reports 
of the findings made.  The client recognizes that TG does not owe any 
fiduciary responsibility to the client.  The client further recognizes that 
subsurface conditions may vary from those encountered at the location 
where borings, surveys, tests, or explorations are made by TG, and that the 
data, interpretations, and recommendations of TG are based solely upon 
the data available to TG.  TG will be responsible for those data, 
interpretations, and recommendations, but shall not be responsible for the 
interpretation by others of the information developed.

10. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY:  In recognition of the relative risks, 
rewards, and benefits to both the client and to TG, the risks have been 
allocated such that the client agrees to limit TG's liability to the client and 
all other parties claiming to have relied on TG's work provided through the 
client to $50,000 or TG's total fee for services rendered on this project, 
whichever is greater.  This limitation of liability is a business understanding 
between the parties voluntarily and knowingly entered into, and shall apply 
to all theories of recovery including, but not limited to, breach of contract, 
warranty, tort (including negligence), strict or statutory liability, or any other 
cause of action except for willful misconduct or gross negligence.

11. CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES:  Neither party, including their 
respective contractors or subconsultants, shall be liable to the other or shall 
make any claim for any incidental, indirect or consequential damages. This 
mutual waiver of consequential damages shall include, but is not limited to: 
loss of use, loss of profit, loss of business, loss of income, loss of reputation, 
and any other consequential damages that either party may have incurred 
from any cause of action including negligence, strict liability, breach of 
contract, and breach of strict or implied warranty.

12. CLAIMS:  Client agrees that any claim for damages filed against TG by 
Client or any contractor or subcontractor hired directly or indirectly by Client 
will be filed solely against TG or its successors or assigns, and that no 
individual person shall be made personally liable for damages, in whole or 
in part. All claims by Client shall be deemed relinquished unless filed within 
one year after substantial completion of TG’s services under this 
agreement.

13. TERMINATION:  This contract may be terminated by either party upon 
7 days prior written notice.  In the event of termination, TG shall be 
compensated by client for all services performed up to and including the 
termination date and for the completion of such services and records as are 
necessary to place TG's files in order and/or protect its professional 
reputation. If either party terminates this contract, these General Conditions 
shall survive termination and shall remain enforceable between the parties.

14. DISPUTE RESOLUTION:  In an effort to resolve any conflicts that arise 
during or following this project, the client and TG agree that all disputes 
between them arising out of or related to this agreement shall be submitted 
to nonbinding mediation unless the parties mutually agree otherwise.  The 
client and TG also agree to include a similar mediation provision in all 
agreements with independent contractors and consultants thereby 
providing for mediation as the primary method for dispute resolution for all 
parties on the project.

15. PRECEDENCE:  These standards, terms, and conditions shall take 
precedence over any inconsistent or contradictory language contained in 
any proposal, contract, purchase order, requisition, notice to proceed, or 
like document regarding TG's services.

16. ASSIGNMENT:  Neither party under this contract may transfer or 
assign any rights under or interests in this contract without the prior written 
consent of the other party.

17. PROVISIONS SEVERABLE:  In the event that any of the provisions of 
these General Conditions should be found to be unenforceable, it shall be 
stricken and the remaining provisions shall be enforceable.



ITEM _______ 
CITY OF LA VISTA 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORT 
APRIL 4, 2023 AGENDA 

Subject: Type: Submitted By: 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT –  RESOLUTION 
PARKING STRUCTURE NO. 2 ORDINANCE PAT DOWSE 
AMENDMENT NO. 10 RECEIVE/FILE CITY ENGINEER

SYNOPSIS 

A resolution has been prepared authorizing the execution of Amendment No. 10 to the Professional Services 
Agreement with DLR Group for additional construction phase services for Parking Structure No. 2 in an 
increased amount not to exceed $53,655.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

The FY23/FY24 Biennial Budget provides funding for this project.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Approval. 

BACKGROUND 

On December 20, 2016, City Council approved Resolution No. 16-057 authorizing a professional services 
agreement with DLR Group for schematic design phase architectural services for off-street public parking 
facilities. Subsequent amendments to this agreement authorized construction phase services for both Parking 
Structure No. 1 and No. 2. This amendment provides for additional construction phase services, special 
inspections and testing generally resulting from and/or anticipated by the Contractor’s work as listed within the 
attached amendment document.   

The proposed agreement is attached for review. 

K:\APPS\City Hall\CNCLRPT (Blue Letters)\23file\23   PW Parking Stucture #2 - Authorize Amendment No. 10 04.04.2023.Doc 
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RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA, 
NEBRASKA APPROVING AMENDMENT NUMBER TEN TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH DLR GROUP FOR ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
FOR PARKING STRUCTURE NO. 2 IN AN INCREASED AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$53,655.00. 
  
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of La Vista Nebraska have determined 

additional construction phase services for Parking Structure No. 2 are necessary; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council on behalf of the City of La Vista desires to approve amendment 

number ten to the professional services agreement with DLR Group to provide 
additional construction phase services; and 

 
WHEREAS, The FY23/FY24 Biennial Budget provides funding for this project;  
 
WHEREAS, Subsection (c) of Section 31.23 of the La Vista Municipal Code requires that the City 

Administrator secure Council approval prior to authorizing any purchase over 
$5,000.00. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of the City of La Vista, 

Nebraska, do hereby approve amendment number ten to the professional services 
agreement with DLR Group for additional construction phase services for Parking 
Structure No. 2 in an increased amount not to exceed $53,655.00.  

 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 4TH DAY OF APRIL 2023. 
 
       CITY OF LA VISTA 
 
 
 
             
       Douglas Kindig, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
     
Pamela A. Buethe, MMC 
City Clerk  
 
  
 
K:\APPS\City Hall\23 FINAL RESOLUTIONS\23.   Amendment No. 10 -  
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ºr®���ŗ�������¦r��������rÂr���r̈�����r��r¥¦¦������±r¶��±¦r����¦r��¢��������ŗ�����r��ŗ����
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Ǽ������µ�

�r�r¥¦¦������±r���¡����r¦�����r�̈�r������������r���¡����r®̈���r¬��r����������¦r¥��̈��������r��¦r���������±r²����������r
���¡����r¬��r�̈�r£�±����r�¬r�̈�r������������r���¡����r®̈����rr���r��r²Å���¦ŗ��ŗ �̈����¦r¶�¡�rÁ��¦��¦r��±±���ŕÆ������µ�
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ITEM _______ 
CITY OF LA VISTA 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORT 
APRIL 4, 2023 AGENDA 

Subject: Type: Submitted By: 

AUTHORIZE CONSULTANT SELECTION &  RESOLUTION RACHEL CARL 
CONTRACT NEGOTIATION – MASTER  ORDINANCE ASSISTANT TO THE CITY 
PLANNING & CONCEPTUAL DESIGN SERVICES RECEIVE/FILE ADMINISTRATOR

SYNOPSIS 

A resolution has been prepared to authorize the selection of RDG Planning & Design and the negotiation of a 
contract for master planning and conceptual design services related to the La Vista Municipal Campus in an 
amount not to exceed $150,000. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The FY23/FY24 Biennial Budget contains funding for this project.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Approval. 

BACKGROUND 

On January 17, 2023, the City Council approved Resolution No. 23-005 authorizing the advertisement of a 
request for proposals for master planning and conceptual design services. The City received proposals from the 
following four companies: Clark & Enersen, DLR Group, Leo A Daly, and RDG Planning & Design. Two were 
selected for interviews (Clark & Enersen and RDG Planning & Design), which took place on March 21, 2023.   

Staff is recommending the selection of RDG Planning & Design from Omaha. After interviewing the finalists, 
this firm was the unanimous choice for their related experience, the expertise of their team, and their approach 
for this project.   

The attached resolution authorizes the selection of RDG Planning & Design and authorizes the City 
Administrator, subject to approval by the City Attorney, to negotiate a contract in an amount not to exceed 
$150,000. 

RDG’s proposal is available in Dropbox. 
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RESOLUTION NO.  ________ 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA, 
NEBRASKA, AUTHORIZING THE SELECTION OF RDG PLANNING & DESIGN AND THE 
NEGOTIATION OF A CONTRACT FOR MASTER PLANNING AND CONCEPTUAL DESIGN 
SERVICES RELATED TO THE LA VISTA MUNICIPAL CAMPUS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $150,000.00. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of La Vista has determined that master planning and 

conceptual design services related to the La Vista Municipal Campus are 
necessary; and 

 
WHEREAS, the FY23/FY24 Biennial Budget contains funding for this project; and 
 
WHEREAS, City staff have interviewed and recommended the selection of RDG Planning & 

Design; and 
 
WHEREAS Subsection (C) (9) of Section 31.23 of the La Vista Municipal Code requires that 

the City Administrator secures Council approval prior to authorizing any purchase 
over $5,000.00. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of La Vista, Nebraska 

authorize the selection of RDG Planning & Design and the negotiation of a 
contract for master planning and conceptual design services subject to any 
modifications the City Administrator or her designee determines necessary. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 4TH DAY OF APRIL 2023. 
 
      CITY OF LA VISTA 
 
 

       
 _________________________ 

       Douglas Kindig, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Pamela A. Buethe, MMC 
City Clerk 
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ITEM _______ 
CITY OF LA VISTA 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORT 
APRIL 4, 2023 AGENDA 

Subject: Type: Submitted By: 

 RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZE PURCHASE − ORDINANCE TODD ARMBRUST 
POLICE RADIO EQUIPMENT UPGRADES RECEIVE/FILE POLICE CAPTAIN  

SYNOPSIS 

A resolution has been prepared to authorize the purchase of police radio equipment upgrades from Motorola 
Solutions Inc., Chicago, Il, in an amount not to exceed $38,000. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The FY23/FY24 Biennial Budget includes funding for the proposed purchase. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approval. 

BACKGROUND 

The Police Department initially requested the purchase of eight (8) portable radios.  A review of the department 
radio inventory however determined an upgrade to our existing radios will provide the needed inventory for 
current staffing at a lower cost than purchasing new.  Additional updates are necessary for inter-operability in the 
Metro area.  The upgrades will be completed on thirty-three (33) portable and eight (8) mobile radios.  Motorola 
is a sole-source provider, and the prices are based off the Nebraska State contract. 
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RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA, NEBRASKA 
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF POLICE RADIO EQUIPMENT UPGRADES FROM 
MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, CHICAGO, IL IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $38,000.00. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of La Vista has determined that the purchase of police 

radio equipment upgrades for Motorola radios is necessary, and 
 
WHEREAS, the FY23/FY24 Biennial Budget includes funding for the proposed purchase, and  
 
WHEREAS, Motorola Solutions is a sole source vendor and will extend that price to the City of 

La Vista, and 
 
WHEREAS,  Motorola Solutions is a highly qualified specialty public safety communications 

provider, and    
 
WHEREAS, Subsection (c) of Section 31.23 of the La Vista Municipal Code requires that the City 

Administrator secure Council approval prior to authorizing any purchase over 
$5,000.00. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of La Vista, Nebraska, 

authorize the purchase of police radio equipment upgrades from Motorola 
Solutions, Chicago, IL, in an amount not to exceed $38,000.00. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 4TH DAY OF APRIL 2023. 
 
       CITY OF LA VISTA 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Douglas Kindig, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 

Pamela A. Buethe, MMC 
City Clerk 
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QUOTE-2077095
 

 

  

LA VISTA POLICE DEPT 
 

03/06/2023

 

The design, technical, pricing, and other information (“Information”) furnished with this submission is confidential proprietary information of Motorola Solutions, Inc. or the Motorola Solutions entity providing this quote
(“Motorola”) and is submitted with the restriction that it is to be used for evaluation purposes only. To the fullest extent allowed by applicable law, the Information is not to be disclosed publicly or in any manner to
anyone other than those required to evaluate the Information without the express written permission of Motorola.
MOTOROLA, MOTO, MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, and the Stylized M Logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Motorola Trademark Holdings, LLC and are used under license. All other trademarks are the
property of their respective owners. © 2020 Motorola Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.
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03/06/2023

LA VISTA POLICE DEPT 
7701 S 96TH ST
LA VISTA, NE 68128 
 
 
  

Dear Brian Stolley,
 
Motorola Solutions is pleased to present LA VISTA POLICE DEPT with this quote for quality communications equipment
and services.  The development of this quote provided us the opportunity to evaluate your requirements and propose a
solution to best fulfill your communications needs.
 
This information is provided to assist you in your evaluation process. Our goal is to provide LA VISTA POLICE DEPT with
the best products and services available in the communications industry. Please direct any questions to Bob
Stephany at bobs@firstwirelessinc.com.
 
We thank you for the opportunity to provide you with premier communications and look forward to your review and feedback
regarding this quote. 
 
 
Sincerely,
 
 
 
Bob Stephany 

 
Motorola Solutions Manufacturer's Representative

 

 

QUOTE-2077095
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Billing Address:
LA VISTA POLICE DEPT 
7701 S 96TH ST 
LA VISTA, NE 68128 
US 
 
 

 

Quote Date:03/06/2023
Expiration Date:05/05/2023
Quote Created By:
Bob Stephany
bobs@firstwirelessinc.com

End Customer:
LA VISTA POLICE DEPT 
Brian Stolley 
bstolley@cityoflavista.org 
402-331-1582 
 

 

  

Payment Terms:30 NET
 

 

Line #
 

Item Number
 

Description
 

Qty
 

List Price
 

Sale Price
 

Ext. Sale Price
 

 

 

 

FLASHport Series
 

APX6000FLASHPORT
     

 

 

1
 

T7664A
 

DIGITAL SMARTZONE
 

1
 

$696.00
 

$556.80
 

$13,363.20
 

 

 

1a
 

G996AX
 

ENH: PROGRAMMING OVER
P25 (OTAP)
 

24
    

 

 

1b
 

QA00580AE
 

ENH: TDMA OPERATION
 

24
    

 

 

 

FLASHport Series
 

APX6000FLASHPORT
     

 

 

2
 

T7664A
 

DIGITAL SMARTZONE
 

1
 

$1,113.00
 

$890.40
 

$6,232.80
 

 

 

2a
 

G996AX
 

ENH: PROGRAMMING OVER
P25 (OTAP)
 

7
    

 

 

2b
 

H869CC
 

ENH: MULTIKEY
 

7
    

 

 

2c
 

QA00580AE
 

ENH: TDMA OPERATION
 

7
    

 

 

 

FLASHport Series
 

APX6500FLASHPORT
     

 

 

3
 

T7698A
 

TDMA
 

1
 

$127.00
 

$101.60
 

$304.80
 

 

 

3a
 

G996AY
 

ENH: OVER THE AIR
PROVISIONING
 

3
    

 

 

 

FLASHport Series
 

APX6500FLASHPORT
     

 

 

4
 

T7697A
 

DIGITAL SMARTZONE
 

1
 

$1,619.00
 

$1,295.20
 

$10,361.60
 

 

 

4a
 

G996AY
 

ENH: OVER THE AIR
PROVISIONING
 

8
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Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products.
 Motorola Solutions, Inc.: 500 West Monroe, United States - 60661 ~ #: 36-1115800  
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Line #
 

Item Number
 

Description
 

Qty
 

List Price
 

Sale Price
 

Ext. Sale Price
 

 

 

4b
 

GA00229AC
 

ENH: APX GPS ACTIVATION
 

8
    

 

 

4c
 

GA00580AC
 

ENH: UPGRADE TO TDMA
 

8
    

 

 

4d
 

W947AX
 

ADD: ASTRO 25 INTEGRATED
VOICE & DATA
 

8
    

 

 

4e
 

W969BL
 

ENH: MULTIKEY OPERATION
 

8
    

 

 

 

After Market Encryption
Upgrades
 

     

 

 

5
 

T7936A
 

APX UCM UPGRADE CD
 

1
 

$753.50
 

$550.06
 

$7,663.18
 

 

 

5a
 

CA00182AR
 

ADD: AES ENCRYPTION
SOFTWARE
 

15
    

 

Grand Total
 

$37,925.58(USD)
 

 

Notes:
 

●
 

 

 

Unless otherwise noted, this quote excludes sales tax or other applicable taxes (such as Goods and Services Tax,
sales tax, Value Added Tax and other taxes of a similar nature). Any tax the customer is subject to will be added to
invoices.
 

 

 

QUOTE-2077095
 

 

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products.
 Motorola Solutions, Inc.: 500 West Monroe, United States - 60661 ~ #: 36-1115800  
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Purchase Order Checklist

Purchase Order Checklist

Marked as PO/ Contract/ Notice to Proceed on Company Letterhead
(PO will not be processed without this)

PO Number/ Contract Number

PO Date

Vendor = Motorola Solutions, Inc.

Payment (Billing) Terms/ State Contract Number

Bill-To Name on PO must be equal to the Legal Bill-To Name

Bill-To Address

Ship-To Address (If we are shipping to a MR location, it must be documented on PO)

Ultimate Address (If the Ship-To address is the MR location then the Ultimate Destination address 
must be documented on PO )

PO Amount must be equal to or greater than Order Total

Non-Editable Format (Word/ Excel templates cannot be accepted)

Bill To Contact Name & Phone # and EMAIL for customer accounts payable dept

Ship To Contact Name & Phone #

Tax Exemption Status

Signatures (As required)

G MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS 



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

A B C D E F G H I J K
Mobile Radios AN or BN Model Multi-Key TDMA AES

Make Model Serial # ID # Location Condition Notes
Motorola XTL2500 514CNB1266 742058 Mobile Ops Fair Roll Off 
Motorola XTL2500 514CNB1269 752061 573 Good Replace with 559 Radio
Motorola XTL2500 527CNB1270 742062 Records Fair Roll Off or replace with 561
Motorola APX6500 527CNZ0092 742066 564 Good * AN No No No
Motorola APX6500 527CNZ0093 742067 571 Good * AN No No No
Motorola APX6500 527CNZ0094 742068 570 Good * AN No No No
Motorola APX6500 527CNZ0095 742069 562 Good * AN No No No
Motorola APX6500 527CNZ0096 742070 567 Good * AN No No No
Motorola APX6500 527CNZ0097 742071 568 Good * AN No No No
Motorola APX6500 527CNZ0098 742072 559 Good 41642 AN No No No
Motorola APX6500 527CPX1906 742092 561 Good * AN No No No
Motorola APX6500 527CUZ3993 540 Good * AN Yes Yes
Motorola APX6500 527CUZ3994 Inventory Good * AN Yes Yes
Motorola APX6500 527CUZ3995 541 Good 42165 BN Yes Yes
Motorola APX6500 527CWH0236 543 Good 42846 AN Yes Yes
Motorola APX6500 527CWH0237 544 Good 42847 AN Yes Yes
Motorola APX6500 527CWH0238 752061 572 Good 42848 AN Yes Yes
Motorola APX6500 527CXH1608 742059 565 Good 42940 BN Yes Yes
Motorola APX6500 527CXH1609 749056 566 Good 42941 BN Yes Yes
Motorola APX6500 527CXZ6101 545 New 42987 BN Yes Yes
Motorola APX6500 527CXZ6102 546 New 42988 BN Yes Yes
Motorola APX6500 527CYX3128 Inventory New 43030 BN Yes Yes
Motorola APX6500 527CYX3129 Inventory New 43031 BN Yes Yes
Motorola APX6500 527CYX3130 Inventory New 43032 BN Yes Yes
Motorola APX6500 527CYX3131 Inventory New 43033 BN Yes Yes

Multi-Key



ITEM _______ 
CITY OF LA VISTA 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORT 
APRIL 4, 2023 AGENDA 

Subject: Type: Submitted By: 

 RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZE PURCHASE – ORDINANCE JEFF CALENTINE 
PUBLIC WORKS VEHICLES RECEIVE/FILE DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 

SYNOPSIS 

A resolution has been prepared authorizing the purchase of two (2) Silverado 1500 crew cab short box trucks 
from Gregg Young Chevrolet, Omaha, NE in an amount not to exceed $80,000.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

The FY23/FY24 Biennial Budget includes funding for the proposed purchase.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Approval. 

BACKGROUND 

The FY23/FY24 budget includes funding for the purchase of two (2) crew cab short box trucks.  One truck is for 
the Building Superintendent to provide an additional vehicle for staff that was added in FY22.  The other truck 
is for the Park Superintendent to replace the 2002 Chevrolet Tahoe (187,000 miles) that is at the end of its useful 
life.       

K:\APPS\City Hall\CNCLRPT (Blue Letters)\23file\23   PW Purchase 2 Crew Cab Work Trucks 04.04.2023.Docx 
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RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LA VISTA, 
NEBRASKA AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF TWO (2) SILVERADO 1500 CREW CAB 
SHORT BOX TRUCKS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $80,000.00.  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of La Vista has determined that the purchase of two 

(2) 1500 Crew Cab Short Box Trucks are necessary; and 
 
WHEREAS, the FY23/FY24 Biennial Budget provides funding for the proposed purchase; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, Subsection (C) (9) of Section 31.23 of the La Vista Municipal code requires that 

the City Administrator secure council approval prior to authorizing any 
purchases over $5,000; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of the City of La 

Vista, Nebraska authorize the purchase of two (2) Silverado 1500 Crew Cab 
Short Box Trucks in an amount not to exceed $80,000.00. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 4TH DAY OF APRIL 2023. 
 
      CITY OF LA VISTA 
 
 
 
            
      Douglas Kindig, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Pamela A. Buethe, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
K:\APPS\City Hall\23 FINAL RESOLUTIONS\23.   Authorize Purchase -  
2 Crew Cab Work Trucks 04.04.2023.Doc 



GREGG YOUNG 
CHEVROLET I O[,,LUU. 

17750 Burt St Omaha NE 6811 8 

Company City of La Vista 

Address 8116 Park View Blvd 

City La Vista 

County SARPY 

Home 

Cell Phone (402) 214-7880 

Email 

*Added Equipment: 

Total I 
Rebate 

This is not a cont ract 

State 

Zip 

Bus Phone 

CASH OPTION 

$39,644.00 

$6,400.00 

Customer 

NE 

68128 

Date 3/20/2023 

Sa lesperson Keenan Bowery 

0 New D Demo D Rental Unit D Used 

Year 2023 Make CHEVROLET Stock C28271 

Model SILVERADO 1500 Body CREW CAB SHORT BOX WOR ... 

Color ______ ____ Top Trim 

VIN 3GCPDAEK3PG237719 Mi les 0 

TRADE IN (1) PU RCHASE 

Year Make Market Value $45,645.00 

Model Pri ce $45,645.00 

VIN Added Equip* $0.00 

Miles 

Stock 

TRADE IN (2) 

Year Make 
SUBTOTAL $45,645.00 

Model 

VIN Sales Tax $0.00 

Miles Doc Fee $399.00 

Stock 

Allowance 
TOTAL 
CASH $46,044.00 

Rebate $6,400.00 PRICE 

Cash Due $0.00 
Total ($6,400.00) Credits 

Deposit $0.00 
TRADE-IN 

$0.00 PAYOFF 
TOTAL $6,400.00 CREDITS 

BALANCE $39,644.00 DUE 

Sa les Manager 

Prepared by Keenan Bowery 
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